2004 Concise Annual Report

e n e r g y
to deliver performance

about this report
This 2004 Concise Annual Report is a summary of Woodside’s activities and
financial position.
In this document, the use of "this report" refers to the 2004 Concise Annual
Report. The expressions "Woodside", "the company" and "the group" refers
to Woodside Petroleum Ltd. and its controlled entities as a whole and "NWS
Venture" refers to the North West Shelf Venture.
The Concise Financial Report included in this report is derived from the 2004
Full Financial Report presented in a separate document. The Concise
Financial Report cannot be expected to provide as full an understanding of
the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing
activities of Woodside as the Full Financial Report. You may obtain a copy of
the Full Financial Report if you wish (see page 70 of this report for details).
Reference in this report to a "year" is to the calendar year ended 31
December 2004 unless otherwise stated. All dollar figures are expressed in
Australian currency unless otherwise stated.
Key abbreviations used in this report include:
LNG
Liquefied Natural Gas
LPG
Liquefied Petroleum Gas
MMbbl
Million barrels
MMboe
Million barrels of oil equivalent. This is a standard measure
used to convert oil and gas product volumes to allow
comparison.

Woodside Petroleum Ltd.

(A.B.N. 55 004 898 962)

Shareholder Information
For detailed shareholder information, please refer to
page 70 of this report.
Key shareholder contact points are:
Woodside Petroleum Ltd.
Woodside Plaza
240 St Georges Terrace
Perth Western Australia 6000
Telephone: (+61) 8 9348 4000
Facsimile: (+61) 8 9214 2777
Website: www.woodside.com.au
Company Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services Pty. Limited
GPO Box D182
Perth Western Australia 6840
Telephone: (+61) 3 9415 5000 (outside Australia)
1300 557 010 (within Australia)
Facsimile: (+61) 8 9323 2033
Email: web.queries@computershare.com.au
Website: www.computershare.com
Annual General Meeting
The 34th Annual General Meeting of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. will be
held at the Perth Convention Exhibition Centre, 21 Mounts Bay Road,
Perth, Western Australia on Tuesday, 19 April 2005 at 10am (AWST)

2004 Health, Safety and Environment Report
Woodside will publish its inaugural Health, Safety and Environment
(HSE) Report in April 2005, detailing its achievements and challenges
for 2004. This report will be available on request or from the
company’s website (www.woodside.com.au).
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Charles Goode, AC

Chairman’s
OVERVIEW
The 2004 year marked a
significant milestone in
Woodside’s history, the
company’s 50th Anniversary.
Over five decades, Woodside has
strengthened its solid foundation
of Australian assets and today
has interests in key areas across
the globe.

Woodside maintains its strong focus to
grow shareholder returns throughout
future decades. It is noteworthy that the
company achieved a record reported profit
of $1,083.6 million in, this, its 50th year.

the US$625 million Phase 1 development
of the Chinguetti oil project in Mauritania.
These key projects are expected to deliver
significant growth in production levels in
2006 and will considerably broaden
Woodside’s future production and
revenue base.

Achievements
In 2004, efforts were directed at
optimising production to offset the
identified short-term production gap. The
NWS Venture’s LNG expansion project
involving the fourth processing train (Train
4) was completed during the year and
made a solid contribution to production in
the fourth quarter together with a number
of infill wells drilled to lift production from
oil fields in natural decline. This was offset
by the impact of lower domestic gas and
condensate production resulting from
the suspension of operations at BHP
Billiton’s hot briquetted iron (HBI) plant
from May and the adjustment in Ohanet
barrel entitlement due to the higher oil
price environment.
The company achieved a net profit after
tax and before significant items for the
year of $650.9 million ($526.7 million in
2003); the earnings per share excluding
significant items was 97.6 cents per share
compared to 79.0 cents per share in 2003,
and gearing ended the year at 8.5%
compared with 26.8% in 2003.

Exploration success in Mauritania and
modest success in the Gulf of Mexico
(GoM) has provided the company with
further long-term growth opportunities.
Five and possibly up to seven projects will
be considered for final investment
decisions in 2005. These include the
NWS Venture’s Angel gas field
development, Perseus 1B project and
LNG Train 5 project, the Blacktip gas
project and the Neptune oil project in the
GoM. Additional projects that may be
considered include the Stybarrow oil
development in north west Australia and
the Midway gas project in the GoM.

Dividends
The Directors declared a fully-franked final
dividend of 32 cents per share (25 cents
per share in 2003). The dividend will be
paid on 23 March 2005 and will lift the
full-year dividend to 59 cents per share,
compared to 46 cents per share in 2003.

Governance
Significant advancement of Woodside’s
key future development projects was
achieved during the year.
Australian projects approved in 2004
included the $1.48 billion Enfield oil
development and the $1.1 billion Otway
gas project. Approval was also granted for
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During 2004, the company further
reviewed and updated its policies
and procedures in the light of the
Australian Stock Exchange’s Principles of
Good Corporate Governance and Best
Practice Recommendations. A statement
detailing compliance is on pages 42 to 45
of this report.

Workers on a barge deck with NWS Venture’s North Rankin
platform behind.

About WOODSIDE
Woodside is Australia’s leading oil and gas exploration and production
company with interests across the globe in three regions of focus –
Australasia, Africa and the United States of America.

Our Business
Directors
In April 2004, the Board appointed Mr
Don Voelte to the position of Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director.
Mr Richard Searby and Mr Ken Dean
retired from the Board in April 2004 and
Mr Peter de Wit retired from the Board
in February 2005. I would like to thank
them for their valued contribution to
Woodside. Mr Dean, a Shell-nominated
non-executive Director, was replaced by
Mr Peter van Rossum and Mr de Wit,
also a Shell-nominated non-executive
Director, was replaced by Mr Andrew
Jamieson. I welcome both new
Directors to the Board.

Our business is focused on creating and delivering value by finding and
monetising hydrocarbon reserves. Across the company, we
concentrate and direct our energy to making the best use of assets
and resources to generate sustainable profits. These profits are
returned as dividends to our more than 72,000 shareholders or
reinvested in the business.

Company Objective
Woodside’s mission is to create outstanding growth and shareholder
wealth while conforming to our core values of:
• Strong performance
• Care and respect
• Integrity and trust
• Initiative and accountability
• Creativity and enterprise

On behalf of the Board, I thank the
company’s management, employees and
contractors for their dedication,
contributions and efforts during the year,
in particular, for the ongoing focus and
commitment to continuous improvement
in health, safety and environmental
performance.

• Working together
Our vision is to be a preferred partner of governments, joint venture
participants, customers and communities due to our delivery speed,
commercial acumen, cost focus, technical capability and values.
By achieving our mission and striving toward our vision, we will satisfy
our shareholders while enhancing the quality of life by meeting
society’s energy needs in ways that make us proud.

Share Price Performance

Charles Goode, AC
Chairman

16th February 2005
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achieving success

Performance
SUMMARY
Proved plus Probable Reserves &
Three-Year Average Reserves
Replacement Ratio (RRR)

Health & Safety
Total Recordable Case Frequency

Finding Cost - Three-Year Average

15.0

0

1000
00

01

02

03

04

Includes lost time injury, medical treatment cases
and restricted work cases
Adjusted for late incident reporting post year-end

*

161

00

01

02

03

125

RRR Percent

144*

158

1100

A$ per Barrel of Oil Equivalent

2.5

150

1,293.9*
1,404.9**

5.4

5.0

1200

1,303.6

6.2*

175

1,304.1

6.7

1,214.3

9.3*

7.5

167

10.0

1300

1,192.8

12.4

Proved plus Probable Reserves
Million Barrels of Oil Equivalent

Per Million Hours Worked

12.5

2.5

200

187

1400

2.0

1.5
1.23

0

100

00

04

01

02

*Includes acquisitions of additional Contingent Resources

Return on Average Capital Employed

Operating Cash Flow After Tax

(Before Significant Items)

1750

100

04

0.61

& Dividends per Share
1000

03

1.37

0.5

Net Profit After Tax
(Before Significant Items)

2.10*

1.0

Proved plus Probable Reserves
RRR (Three-Year Average)
With acqusitions/divestments
Without acqusitions/divestments

*
**

2.06*

30
26.8

1,108

750
02

03

04

00

Total Shareholder Returns (TSR)
& Five-Year Average TSR

03

04

* 2003 boe recalculated in line with
accepted industry practice to report on
volumetric basis.

02

03

04

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
Five-Year Rolling Average TSR
Assumes dividends fully reinvested in WPL shares

26.8

20

10

0
01

37

750
500
250

00

30

8.5

41.7

28.8

1000

296

02

40

891

01

$ Million

19.8

22.7
8.5

10
0

50

1250

-10

00

04

1,274

0

20

-1.2

20

30

13.0

40

40

-0.7

56.2

20.3

60.7*

03

1750
1500

37.8

64.2

02

Gearing & Net Debt

50

60

01

Without Successful Efforts
With 2002 Successful Efforts

00

01

02

03

04

Net Debt
Gearing

0

Gearing Percent

01

*
**

Shareholder Return Percent

Million Barrels of Oil Equivalent

0
00

35.5

04

80
66.3

10
5

0

NPAT (Before Significant Items)
Dividends
Without Successful Efforts
With 2002 Successful Efforts

65.0

17.3
14.9

15

1000

Total Production Volume

4

1,207 1,203

ROACE Percent

$ Million

1,318
1250

*19.1
**16.5

1,502

03

650.9

02

22.4
20

35.1

01

527

00

*729
**658

0

818

877

25

1,493

1,140

250

50

Cents Per Share

46

59

62

500

*
**

1500

75
70

$ Million

750

82

25

Results at a Glance

2004

2003

Change

5.4

6.2

13% ▼

56.2

60.7*

7% ▼

Proved plus Probable Reserves (MMboe)

1,293.9

1,303.6

1% ▼

Proved plus Probable Reserves (before acquisitions/divestments) (MMboe)

1,404.9

1,303.6

8% ▲

144

158.1

9% ▼

Total Recordable Case Frequency (per million hours worked)
Production (MMboe)

Reserves Replacement Ratio (%) (three-year average)
Finding Cost (A$ per barrel of oil equivalent) (three-year average)
Revenue ($ million)
Net Profit After Tax ($ million) (before significant items)
Earnings per Share (cents) (before significant items)
Operating Cash Flow After Tax ($ million)
Return on Average Capital Employed (%) (before significant items)

2.10

2.06

2% ▲

2,158.6

2,059.3

5% ▲

650.9

526.7

24% ▲

97.6

79.0

24% ▲

1,318.1

1,202.9

10% ▲

17.3

14.9

16% ▲
28% ▲

Dividends per Share (cents)
Payout Ratio (%) (before significant items)
Gearing (%)
*

59

46

60.4

58.2

4% ▲

8.5

26.8

68% ▼

2003 boe recalculated in line with accepted industry practice to report on volumetric basis.

Production Volumes
Woodside Share
LNG (Mt)
Domestic Gas (TJ/d)

Sales Volumes

2004

2003

2004

2003

1.5

1.3

1.5

1.3

278

302

278

302

Sales Revenue ($ million)
2004

2003

729.4#

707.7#

Condensate (MMbbl)
NWS Venture

8.6

9.7

8.6

9.7

452.8

409.0

Ohanet Entitlement

0.7

0.1*

0.7

0.1*

46.6

6.3*

Oil (MMbbl)
NWS Venture

5.6

6.6

5.6

6.4

303.3

287.0

Legendre

4.2

4.6

3.8

4.8

217.2

204.3

Laminaria

5.2

8.4

5.4

8.5

275.6

347.6

126,632

127,623

131,699

127,823

63.8

54.6

51,602

6,857*

51,602

6,857*

30.4

2.1*

LPG (t)
NWS LPG
Ohanet Entitlement
*

Ohanet production commenced in October 2003.

#

Revenue for LNG and Domestic Gas combined.

2004
Sales Volume by Product
56.2 MMboe

2004
Proved plus Probable Reserves by Product
1,293.9 MMboe
Crude Oil 20%

2004
Sales Revenue by Product
$2,119.1 million

LNG/Domestic Gas 54%
Crude Oil 27%

Dry Gas 69%
LNG/Domestic
Gas 34%

Condensate 11%

Crude Oil 38%

Condensate 17%
LPG 4%
LPG 2%

Condensate 24%
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moving faster

Don Voelte

Chief
Executive
Officer’s
REPORT
I welcome this opportunity to
report to shareholders on my
first year as Woodside’s Chief
Executive Officer and Managing
Director.

Since joining the company in April 2004,
I have been delighted that my initial
views of Woodside have been confirmed:
the company has an outstanding asset
base, enormous growth potential, and a
solid management team.
We are focused on creating and
delivering value through the execution of
the company’s strategic objectives: to
deliver top-quartile shareholder returns,
to profitably grow the business, to
continue to pay dividends, and to
balance growth through strategic focus
in key regions of the world.
This perspective of the business – value
creation and value delivery – also
describes my role as CEO and Keith
Spence’s role as Chief Operating Officer.
As CEO, I spend most of my time
creating the value which Keith is charged
with delivering.
In this sense, we are a team focused on
maximising value from our existing
assets, delivering our portfolio of growth
assets, and securing future assets to
deliver outstanding growth and
shareholder wealth.

Existing Assets
Our existing producing assets – the
foundation North West Shelf LNG and
natural gas business and our Laminaria
and Legendre oil business – continue to
be the company’s bedrock and underpin
Woodside’s expansion around Australia
and the rest of the world. It is vital that
we continue to invest in these assets to
maintain and grow production and
revenue.
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In this light, the $2.7 billion LNG
expansion project was completed ontime and within budget in 2004 – an
outstanding achievement – and four
additional NWS Venture production
projects, with a total value of about
$1.8 billion, were underway or planned
during the year. These included tying in
additional wells, enhancing production
from the Goodwyn platform and
progressing the Angel gas project.
In 2005, the NWS Venture participants
will also consider expanding LNG
production through a fifth train and a
second LNG shipping berth.

Growth Assets
On delivering our growth assets, the
Board approved several key
developments in Australia and Africa
during 2004, including the Enfield and
Chinguetti oil projects and the Otway gas
project, that will contribute to
Woodside’s growth from 2006.
As these projects come on line over the
next couple of years, I expect them to
come into production on-time and on
budget, and to play significant roles in
delivering value to shareholders.
And we are progressing the activity for
delivering on projects such as Tiof and
Tevét in Mauritania and Neptune in the
US Gulf of Mexico (GoM).

The Northern Endeavour’s operational performance achieved an oil uptime of 94% in 2004.

Future Assets
When looking ahead to creating new
value for Woodside, our exploration
effort will continue to focus on a mix of
deep and shallow water, offshore and
onshore, and frontier and proven
provinces as well as a mix of
opportunities in differing fiscal regimes.
In Africa, for example, we continue to
grow our exploration portfolio and now
have plans for extensive seismic and
drilling campaigns across Libya, Algeria,
the Canary Islands, Mauritania, Sierra
Leone, Liberia and Kenya.
Our strategy is providing a pipeline of
exploration opportunities where we are
able to apply our substantial sub-surface
skills to evaluating seismic data and
maturing prospects for drilling.
Importantly for shareholders, our
strategy includes appropriate exit points
should the risks outweigh the rewards.
We also signed a two-year
memorandum of cooperation with the
Iraq Oil Ministry in 2004 to evaluate
potential oil and gas projects in the
Kurdistan region in northern Iraq. The
parties will do a six-month study to
identify viable oil and gas projects.
We see this step as establishing our
credentials with the people of Iraq and
better understanding the region’s
geological, fiscal and political risks in the
lead up to what we believe will be an
improving situation in Iraq over the
coming years when opportunities will
present themselves to those who are
able to move quickly to seize them.

Woodside also stepped out in 2004 in
ways that are relatively novel for the
company and a challenge to our
traditional business-build approach.
First, through our agreement with
Crystal Energy LLC in the United States
of America (US), we have an opportunity
to gain access to the world’s biggest
energy consumption market through
development of the Clearwater Port LNG
regasification project off California.
With Woodside’s substantial gas
reserves and experience in LNG
production and transportation,
Clearwater could provide Woodside with
preferential access to the US of about
six million tonnes of LNG a year and
help to unlock stranded Woodside-equity
gas in the north west of Australia.
Second, Woodside joined Explore
Enterprises of Louisiana LLC (Explore) in
a five-year alliance covering exploration,
acquisition, development and production
activities in the GoM following an
extensive review of our Gulf strategy.
Under the alliance, Explore provides
Woodside with an established and
experienced management team for our
Gulf operations which we have identified
as the key competitive issue for our
business in the region. The team comes
to us with a first-class record of building
significant businesses in the GoM.

Developing Leaders
Finally, the creation and delivery of value
transcends the current generation of
Woodside executives and we are now
preparing the next generation of leaders.
We have started exposing future leaders
to the responsibilities facing the
company through broader assignments
and through ensuring that several
candidates are available to compete for
every key role.
We are also continuing to groom longterm Woodside staff whose performance
is consistently outstanding and we are
looking outside to expand our
international and financial competency.
All of these approaches are necessary to
provide the company with a superior,
multi-talented management team
leading an experienced, diverse and
multi-skilled workforce. Indeed, they
provide the underlying strength of your
future shareholding in Woodside.
I have no doubt that the people who
work at Woodside are up to the
challenge to continue to deliver leading
shareholder returns. I look forward to
sharing their achievements with you
throughout 2005.

Don Voelte
Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director
16th February 2005
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Business
OUTLINE
Woodside’s oil and gas portfolio
includes interests in Australasia,
Africa and the United States of
America (US).

Investing for Future Returns
Woodside also has significant oil and gas
discoveries at various stages of
appraisal, development or construction in
Australasia, Africa and the US.

Capitalising on Woodside’s
Strengths

Actively Exploring for
Increased Growth

Woodside’s Australian operations
produce LNG, crude oil, condensate,
domestic gas and LPG from the NWS
Venture’s fields in the Carnarvon Basin,
as well as crude oil from the Laminaria
and Corallina fields in the Timor Sea and
the Legendre North and South fields in
the Carnarvon Basin.

An active exploration and appraisal
program is maintained to generate
reserves for company growth. This
program is balanced between delivering
high-margin oil and gas near existing
fields and infrastructure, and capturing
and testing new opportunities in proven
and frontier basins.

Woodside receives a fixed a rate of
return based on product prices and
volume, limited to a maximum revenue
entitlement of LPG and condensate from
the Ohanet operations in Algeria.

19 March

Chinguetti discovery
declared commercial

8

As part of its growth strategy, Woodside
acquired interests in an additional 59
titles in 2004 – two in Australia, four in
Africa and the remaining 53 in the GoM,
as well as increasing its interest in 15
titles.
In addition, Woodside was awarded five
new production licences in the Enfield,
Thylacine-Geographe and the nonoperated Mutineer-Exeter fields and
acquired an interest in the WA-34-R
retention lease in the Bonaparte Basin.
Nineteen titles were relinquished and
four were partially divested during
the year.

Otway gas project
approved

Woodside approves
Enfield oil development

6 January
Building on the

Woodside screens opportunities to enter
new international focus regions to
position itself for long-term growth in oil
and gas and to maintain a balanced
portfolio of risk versus reward.

Woodside holds acreage in Australasia,
Africa and the US. At 31 December
2004, Woodside had interests in
272 titles covering a gross area of about
384,000 km2 – 66 in the Australian,
Timor Sea and Papua New Guinea
portfolio and 206 in the international
portfolio. Effective portfolio
management assists Woodside in
balancing its exploration risk and
expenditure profile, and the company
divests its lowest performing acreage.

20 May

SUCCESSES of 2004

Voelte named MD and CEO,
Spence as COO

31 March

Chinguetti oil
project approved

17 February

Woodside sells 40%
interest Enfield oil project

31 May

Australian foundation – GLOBAL FOCUS

USA

Africa
Australasia

Exploration Interests

28 July
15 years NWS Venture
LNG production

Major Woodside Customers

Developments: Existing & Planned

Mauritania drilling
campaign starts

16 November

10 September

Woodside and Iraq sign
co-operation agreement

23 August
20 years NWS gas to
Western Australia

Woodside backs Crystal
Energy’s US LNG
terminal

28 October

Woodside Offices

13 December
Guangdong, China
LNG agreement
finalised
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Legendre joint venture’s Ocean Legend facility.

Business
SUMMARY
2004 Key Objectives

2004 Key Achievements

2005 Key Objectives

•

Train 4 LNG to storage in September

•

Improve safety performance
Progress Train 5 project approval

AUSTRALASIA
NWS Venture
•

LNG Train 4 on-stream
Commission second trunkline
Deliver 9th LNG ship

•

Second trunkline on-line in February

•

•

Northwest Swan sailed in April

•

•

Progress towards Train 5 project approval

•

Train 5 project planning progressed

Achieve budget & schedule for development
projects:

•

Pursue LNG marketing opportunities

•

3 new S&P1 agreements signed

•

Perseus- over-Goodwyn

•

Improve safety performance

•

LTIFR improved 50%

•

Goodwyn low pressure train

•

Maximise production, reduce operating costs

•

Completed & tied-in Wanaea-8, Lambert-6
infill wells

•

Angel gas field

•

Wanaea-Cossack, Lambert-Hermes gas lift

•
•

•

Record 156 LNG cargoes delivered

•

Complete planned shutdowns on schedule

•

Pursue LNG marketing opportunities

•

Maximise production, reduce operating costs

Laminaria and Corallina
•

Corallina-2 sidetrack online first quarter

•

Operational performance 94% oil uptime

•

Maximise tail-end field production

•

Evaluate infill well opportunities

•

2005 appraisal well identified

•

Reinstate production from Laminaria-2,
Laminaria-5 wells

Legendre
•

Evaluate infill well opportunities

•

Successful drilling, completion Legendre
North-5H well

•

Maximise tail-end field production

•

Completed appraisal Stybarrow-3,
Stybarrow-4

•

Complete drilling Falcone-1 well

•

Further possible exploration drilling

Enfield Area
•

Drill Stybarrow-3 appraisal well

•

Further exploration drilling
•

Drilled & completed 3 wells, Eskdale-2,
Knott-1, Indian-1

•

Project approval in March

•

Start Enfield drilling program

•

Divestment 40% interest WA-271-P and
WA-28-L to Mitsui E&P Australia

•

Maintain FPSO construction schedule

•

FPSO Nganhurra under construction

•

Planned project start-up in March-April 2005

Enfield Oil Project
•

Project approval first quarter

Mutineer-Exeter Oil Project
•

Start development drilling first quarter

•

Development wells drilled.

•

Exploration wells Bounty-2/3 and Norfolk
North-1 drilled

Browse Basin
•

Assess development options

•

Development options assessed

•

Appraisal drilling and acquire seismic

•

Progress assessment of LNG and domestic
gas market opportunities

•

Building market opportunities

•

Progress concept development

•

Commence market discussions

1 Sales and Purchase
10

2004 Key Achievements

2005 Key Objectives

• Project approval fourth quarter

• Approval now early 2005

• Project approval second quarter

• Pursue tie-back options to planned
infrastructure

• Polkadot -1 well drilled

• Pursue additional market opportunities

• Pursue additional market opportunities

• Alcan Gove S&P1 agreement signed

2004 Key Objectives
Bonaparte Basin – Blacktip Gas Project

• Acquired Rubicon and Prometheus gas fields

Otway Basin – Otway Gas Project
• Otway gas project environmental, field
development plan and project approval planned
for second quarter

• Otway gas project approved

• Progress project. First gas expected mid-2006

• TXU Electricity S&P1 agreement signed

• Drill Halladale, Blackwatch wells and acquire

• Shell Australia condensate sales agreement
signed
• Construction started

Aragorn seismic survey
• Pursue growth from new discoveries and
processing other gas

Timor Sea – Greater Sunrise
• Governments’ ratification of International
Unitisation Agreement

• IUA ratified by Australia

• Secure foundation LNG customers

• No fiscal, legal or regulatory certainty

• Progress LNG development concept

• Development concept progressed

• IUA not ratified by Timor-Leste

• Project stalled until fiscal, legal and regulatory
certainty

• At year-end, project stalled

Africa
Algeria
Ohanet Operations
• Optimise performance

• Delivered first full-year production

• Optimise performance

• Two wells drilled – RERC-1, RERW-1

• Determine RERW-1 well commerciality

• Declaration of Chinguetti commerciality

• Chinguetti commerciality declared

• Deliver Chinguetti project targets

• Chinguetti project approval mid-year

• Chinguetti project approved in May

• Decide Tiof development concept

• Fully appraise Tiof discovery and establish
commerciality

• Appraisal drilling 4 wells, continuing into 2005

• Further exploration to establish multiple
production opportunities in Mauritania

• Exploration program to discover additional
production opportunities

• Tevét oil discovery

Block 401d
• Drill two exploration wells, prior to partial
relinquishment
Mauritania

• 4 exploration wells drilled
• Acquired Kiffa, Tanit and Atar 3-D seismic data

Libya
• Establish Tripoli office and start geological and
geophysical operations

• Tripoli office open

• Continue 2-D and 3-D seismic survey

• Data retrieval, 2-D and 3-D seismic surveys
started

• Possibly drill exploration well

• Seismic interpretation completed

• Interpret 2-D seismic data

• Withdrew from 4 blocks

• Plan for one well by 2006

Kenya
• Interpret seismic and make drill/drop decisions
on individual blocks

• Acquired 2-D seismic
Sierra Leone
• Acquire and interpret 3-D seismic data

• Interpret 3-D seismic data

• Interpret 3-D seismic data

• Interpret 3-D seismic data

• Possibly drill exploration well

• Appraisal drilling Neptune-6/7

• Neptune project investment decision expected

Canary Islands
• Participate in first exploration well

United States of America
Gulf of Mexico
• Establish commerciality of Neptune field
development

• Midway-1 well gas discovery

• Enhance regional understanding via seismic
reprocessing and interpretation

2005
• Production test Midway discovery, possible
production first half 2005
• Acquire production base

California – Clearwater Port
• Agreement signed with LNG import terminal
developer, Crystal Energy LLC

• Progress permit applications
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NWS Venture’s North Rankin A platform.

Business
REVIEW
Australasia
Focus on optimising production
efficiently and safely from the
company’s portfolio of
producing assets in the
Carnarvon Basin and the Timor
Sea and developing key
Australian assets to enhance
shareholder wealth.

Australia
North West Shelf Venture
Woodside Interest

NWS Venture
Domestic Gas Joint Venture

Operator

Woodside

Produces

LNG, domestic gas, condensate,
crude oil and LPG

Location (offshore facilities)

130 km north of Karratha
in north west Australia

Location (onshore facilities)

1,260 km north of Perth at Karratha
in north west Australia

Water Depth

80 metres - Cossack Pioneer
130 metres - North Rankin A
and Goodwyn A

Production

16.67%
50.00%

2004

2003

9.3

8.1

LNG
Total (Mt)
Woodside share (Mt)
Cargoes

1.5

1.3

156

139

Domestic Gas
Total (TJ/d)

556

604

Woodside share (TJ/d)

278

302

36.0

39.6

8.6

9.7

33.7

39.3

5.6

6.6

Total (t)

759,791

765,746

Woodside share (t)

126,632

127,623

Condensate
Total (MMbbl)
Woodside share (MMbbl)
Crude Oil
Total (MMbbl)
Woodside share (MMbbl)

LPG
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maximising value

The NWS Venture is Australia’s largest
resource development, producing gas
through the North Rankin A and
Goodwyn A production platforms and
crude oil through the Cossack Pioneer, a
Floating Production Storage and Offtake
facility (FPSO). Gas and condensate are
transported ashore by two subsea
trunklines to the NWS Venture’s onshore
processing facilities on the Burrup
Peninsula, near Karratha, in Western
Australia. The onshore gas plant
includes facilities for processing natural
gas and associated liquids into LNG,
condensate, domestic gas (domgas) and
LPG.

Activities
The NWS Venture’s LNG production
performance lifted in 2004 to a record
1.5 Mt (Woodside share). This was
achieved with a solid contribution from
the venture’s $2.7 billion LNG expansion
project. This project delivered gas to
shore through a second offshore
trunkline from February and was
followed, in April, by the arrival and
loading of the venture’s ninth LNG
carrier, the Northwest Swan. The
4.2 Mt/a fourth LNG processing train
(Train 4) was completed at the Karratha
onshore gas plant during the year, with
first LNG from Train 4 produced to
storage tanks in September.
A record 156 LNG cargoes were
delivered during the year, exceeding the
record by 17 cargoes. In July, Australian
Prime Minister John Howard unveiled a
commemorative plaque at the gas plant
to mark 15 years of safe and reliable
LNG production.

LNG sales and purchase agreements
were signed with Chubu Electric Power
Company, Inc for the supply of 0.6 Mt/a
of LNG for 15 years, starting in 2009 and
with Kansai Electric Power Company, Inc
for 0.5 Mt/a between 2009 and 2014 and
0.925 Mt/a between 2015 and 2023.
In December, the NWS Venture finalised
a gas sales and purchase agreement
with the Guangdong Dapeng LNG
Company Ltd for the supply of at least
3.3 Mt/a of LNG to Guangdong, China
for 25 years.
The venture participants then finalised
equity arrangements with the Chinese
National Offshore Oil Corporation
Limited (CNOOC) which entitle CNOOC
to gas and associated liquids equal to
about a 5.3% interest in gas in the
venture’s titles. This contract also
secures CNOOC’s rights to use NWS
Venture infrastructure to process gas and
associated liquids from the acquired gas
resources at an agreed tarrif. A new
joint venture, the China LNG Joint
Venture, has been established to
accommodate CNOOC and to supply
LNG to the Guangdong LNG project.
CNOOC holds a 25% share in the new
joint venture, with each of the existing
participants taking 12.5%.
The NWS Venture’s 2004 domgas
production was affected from late May
by the ongoing suspension of operations
at BHP Billiton’s hot briquetted iron (HBI)
plant in Western Australia. The
suspension reduced Woodside’s domgas
and associated condensate production
by about 1.9 MMboe.

Domgas is sold mostly under long-term
take or pay contracts with the NWS
Venture supplying up to 65% of Western
Australia’s annual domestic gas
requirements. In March 2004, a gas
sales and purchase agreement was
signed with Western Power Corporation
for a total of 700 PJ. The contract
extends to the end of 2020 or until the
700 PJ of gas is consumed, whichever
comes first. In August, the venture
celebrated 20 years of gas supply to
Western Australia.
Oil production from the Cossack Pioneer
continued to be impacted by natural field
decline with about 5.6 MMbbl
(Woodside share) produced in 2004
down from 6.6 MMbbl the previous year.
However two infill wells, Wanaea-8 and
Lambert-6, drilled and tied-in during the
second half of the year, contributed over
4,000 bbl/d to Woodside’s production
total from late-December. At year-end,
the Cossack Pioneer’s total production
rate had increased to 120,000 bbl/d
(Woodside share: 20,000 bbl/d).
The NWS Venture’s Lost Time Injury
Frequency Rate (LTIFR) was halved
during 2004, however, the total number
of recordable injury case frequency
remained static. The Train 4 project set a
new benchmark for excellent safety
performance for major construction
projects in Australia, reaching a record of
over 7 million manhours worked without
a lost time injury. Key safety learnings
from this project will be implemented
into safety processes across the
company.
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Work also continued during 2004 on
several development projects to maintain
and grow the NWS Venture’s production
capacity.
The Perseus-over-Goodwyn gas
project, to bring the Perseus field into
production to fully utilise the Goodwyn A
platform’s capacity as it becomes
available, received final investment
approval in December. The project
comprises a four-well subsea tieback to
Goodwyn A and start-up is expected in
early 2007.
Work also progressed on modifying
process equipment and utilities of one
train on the venture’s Goodwyn A
platform to a low pressure train. This
will allow Goodwyn reserves to be
produced at a lower system pressure,
enabling increased deliverability and
higher reserves recovery. Start-up of the
Goodwyn A Low Pressure Train is
expected in the first quarter of 2006
and was about 75% complete at
year-end 2004.
During the year, the venture progressed
plans to develop the liquids-rich Angel
gas field in WA-3-L. A final investment
decision is scheduled for the second half
of 2005 and gas production from the
Angel field is expected to start in 2008.

In December, the venture submitted a
proposal to the Western Australian
Government for a further expansion of
LNG facilities at the Karratha gas plant.
The submission was for a fifth LNG train
(Train 5) with 4.2 Mt/a capacity and
supporting fractionation, compressor and
power generation facilities and a second
LNG shipping berth. A final investment
decision on the LNG expansion project is
expected in the first half of 2005, with
start-up planned in 2008. Final approval
is subject to acceptable progress on
LNG sales, satisfactory project costs and
approval by the venture participant
companies.

Laminaria and Corallina
Titles

AC/L5, AC/P8

Woodside
Interest

Laminaria 44.92%**
Corallina 50.00%

Operator

Woodside

Produces

Crude oil

Location

Offshore in Timor Sea
about 550 km north west
of Darwin, Northern
Territory

Water Depth

~340 metres

Production Start

November 1999

Production

Demand for LNG remains strong in the
region resulting in market opportunities
for spot sales as the additional LNG
capacity from Train 4 is ramped up to full
availability and reliability. A development
plan is in place to drill further wells in the
Wanaea and Cossack oil fields to help
offset production decline. These wells
are planned to be in production from late
2005.
Plans to extend the Cossack Pioneer’s
operating life are being developed, as are
plans to ensure ongoing reliable
operation of the onshore LNG facilities in
support of anticipated customer
re-contracting. Final decisions on these
activities will be taken through 2005.

2003

10.5

17.4

5.2

8.4

Crude Oil
Total (MMbbl)

Outlook

2004

Woodside share (MMbbl)

** Interests on a post-unitisation basis, that is, after
agreeing to pool Woodside’s interest with other
field owners and to exploit the field as a single
venture.

The Laminaria-Corallina joint venture has
produced oil through nine wells
connected to the Northern Endeavour
FPSO. The Laminaria and Corallina fields
are in natural decline with production
averaging about 26,678 bbl/d in 2004.
Laminaria crude oil is sought by refiners
and petrochemical producers in the
region.

Activities
The Northern Endeavour’s operational
performance achieved an oil uptime of
94% in 2004 while annual operating
costs were reduced significantly.
Woodside’s 2004 production entitlement
was 5.2 MMbbl. Annual production was
impacted by the Laminaria-2 well being
offline since July and the Laminaria field
shut-in for subsea leak diagnostics on
the Laminaria-5 well in November and
early December. Laminaria production
was reinstated by year-end and a work
program approved to reinstate
production from the Laminaria-5 and
Laminaria-2 wells during 2005.

Outlook
At year-end, about 78% of field reserves
had been produced, however, activities
continue to focus on maximising tail-end
field production and pursuing infill
opportunities.
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Investing in Growth

Legendre
Titles

WA-20-L, WA-1-P

Woodside Interest

45.94%

Operator

Woodside

Produces

Crude oil

Location

Offshore 100 km
north of Dampier,
Western Australia

Water Depth

~50 metres

Production Start

May 2001

Production

2004

Exploration and development
opportunities in Australia and
the Timor Sea.
Woodside’s Australian exploration
program aims to optimise the value of
the company’s mature Australian
business by delivering profitable
development opportunities.
2003

Crude Oil
Total (MMbbl)

9.1

10.1

Woodside share (MMbbl)

4.2

4.6

The Legendre joint venture produces oil
from five production wells connected to
the Ocean Legend, a converted jack-up
drilling rig. A 2.5 km subsea pipeline
transfers oil from this facility to the
Karratha Spirit FSO. The Legendre North
and South fields are in natural decline
with total production averaging about
24,785 bbl/d in 2004. Woodside’s
Legendre oil entitlement is sold on a
spot basis.

At 31 December 2004, Woodside’s
Australasia portfolio contained interests
in 48 exploration permits and retention
leases and 18 production licences
covering a gross area of 185,540 km2.
During 2004, Woodside spent
$56 million on Australian exploration,
drilling four exploration and three
appraisal wells. The four exploration
wells resulted in one gas discovery
(commerciality to be determined), one
sub-commercial oil discovery and two
dry holes.
Woodside’s 2005 domestic exploration
program has a budget of $79 million.

Activities
The Legendre joint venture achieved an
outstanding operational performance of
95% capacity utilisation, combined with
the successful drilling and completion of
the Legendre North 5-H well in June.
The infill well initially lifted production to
26,275 bbl/d, however, natural decline
and increased water production
depressed oil production to 21,100 bbl/d
by year-end.

Outlook
At year-end, about 88% of field reserves
had been produced. Activities continue
to focus on maximising and extending
tail-end field production and pursuing
further infill opportunities.

Greater Enfield Area
The Enfield oil field is within WA-28-L.
The Greater Enfield Area also includes
the Vincent, Stybarrow and Laverda oil
fields.

Enfield Oil Project
Titles

WA-28-L, WA-271-P

Woodside Interest

60.00%

Operator

Woodside

Produces

Crude oil

Location

Offshore about 40km
north west of the
North West Cape,
Western Australia

Water Depth

~400-550 metres

Project Approval

March 2004

Estimated Capital
Expenditure

$888 million
(Woodside Share)

Planned First Oil

Fourth quarter 2006

The Woodside-operated Enfield oil
project will include five production wells,
six water injection wells and two gas
injection wells with flowlines to a
disconnectable FPSO vessel. The
project has an expected production life
of 12 to 13 years.

Activities
In March 2004, Woodside sold a 40%
interest in the WA-271-P exploration
permit and associated Enfield production
licence, WA-28-L, to Mitsui E&P Australia
Pty Ltd for US$464.5 million. Under the
sale and joint operating agreements,
Mitsui became a full joint venture
participant in WA-271-P and WA-28-L.
The sale followed Woodside’s decision,
announced earlier in March, to invest
$1.48 billion in the Enfield oil project.
The development will be the company’s
first production in the Exmouth
region, with initial output planned at
about 100,000 bbl/d. It also provides
growth potential through the tie-back
of nearby discoveries.

Outlook
The FPSO, named Nganhurra, which
means ‘we all’ in the language of the
Bayungu people, is under construction at
Samsung Heavy Industries’ Korean yard
and due for delivery in mid-2006.
The drilling rig, Jack Bates, arrived in
Australia in late-2004 and is scheduled to
start the Enfield development drilling
program in February 2005. The project
remains on budget and schedule for
production start-up in the fourth quarter
of 2006.
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Vincent

Carnarvon Basin

The Vincent field was discovered in
1998. Work to date has made significant
improvements to the development
concept and costs. Commercial
alignment with the WA-155-P joint
venture will be required to progress the
project.

Mutineer-Exeter Oil Project
Titles
Woodside Interest

8.20%

Operator

Santos

Location

Offshore about
150 km north of Dampier,
Western Australia

Stybarrow
Titles

WA-255-P

Water Depth

~165 metres

Woodside Interest

50.00%

Project Approval

October 2003

Operator

BHP Billiton

Location

Offshore about
55 km north west of
Exmouth, Western
Australia

Estimated Capital
Expenditure

$37 million
(Woodside share)

Planned First Oil

March-April 2005

Water Depth

~800 to 900 metres

Woodside acquired a 50% non-operating
interest in WA-255-P in February 2003
and participated in the drilling of four
wells. The first, Stybarrow-1, intersected
oil and the second, the appraisal well
Stybarrow-2, eliminated the possible
presence of a gas cap. In 2004, the
Stybarrow field was successfully
appraised when Stybarrow-3 drilled
through 2 metres of oil bearing sands,
before being side-tracked updip (as
Stybarrow-4) and encountering 11
metres of oil bearing reservoir.
Development studies are underway.

WA-255-P Exploration
During the year, the 2003 Eskdale
discovery was appraised updip by the
Eskdale-2 well. It encountered a 24
metre gas column and 13 metre oil
column with no oil-water contact seen in
the well. Subsequent studies showed
the well to be sub-commercial. The
Knott-1 well in the same permit was a
dry hole.

WA-271-P Exploration
An exploration well, Indian-1, was
drilled in 2004 and was a dry hole. The
Falcone-1 exploration well will be drilled
early in 2005. Further exploration wells
may be drilled in WA-271-P in 2005 to
assess the potential for future Enfield
tie-backs and for an additional production
facility in the area.
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WA-191-P, WA-26-L,
WA-27-L

Production licences WA-26-L and
WA-27-L were awarded during the year
for this non-Woodside operated project.
The development plan includes a
contracted FPSO, the Modec Venture II,
with a production rate of about
100,000 bbl/d and first oil production is
expected in March-April 2005. The
project has an expected production life
of seven years. Drilling of the horizontal
development wells commenced in
February 2004 and will continue into
2005.
In 2004, Woodside participated in drilling
two wells in the Mutineer-Exeter area.
The Bounty-2 appraisal well drilled in
WA-191-P encountered two minor oil
columns before being sidetracked (as
Bounty-3) to appraise oil sands 500
metres to the north prior to being
determined sub-commercial. The
Norfolk North-1 exploration well,
drilled in WA-26-L, intersected a thin
sub-commercial oil reservoir.

Carnarvon Basin Exploration
Acquisition of the Demeter 3-D seismic
survey, covering most of the NWS
Venture acreage, was completed in
February 2004. Interpretation of the
high resolution data started during the
year and is delivering prospects for
drilling in 2005.
Woodside reduced its interest in
WA-208-P by 10% to 34% and
operatorship transferred to Santos Ltd.

In the outer Carnarvon basin, Woodside
was awarded a 100% interest in the
WA-350-P and WA-353-P permits and
increased its interest in the Beagle subbasin permits, WA-294-P, WA-296-P and
WA-297-P.
In addition, the company relinquished its
interest in WA-205-P and in WA-280-P.

Browse Basin
Scott Reef, Brecknock and
Brecknock South Gas Fields
Titles

TR/5, R/2, WA-28-R,
WA-29-R, WA-30-R,
WA-31-R, WA-32-R

Woodside Interest

50.00% TR/5, R/2,
WA-30-R, WA-31-R,
WA-32-R and 25.00%
WA-28-R, WA-29-R

Operator

Woodside

Location

Offshore 425 kms
north of Broome,
Western Australia

Water Depth

~400 to 800 metres

Woodside continues to pursue
development of its Browse Basin fields.
The development timing depends on
continued growth in LNG demand and
domestic gas market opportunities.
Start-up is possible from 2011 or 2012,
depending on regulatory, government
and joint venture participant approvals
and securing gas or LNG sales
agreements.
The initial concept for Browse involves
offshore facilities and an onshore
liquefied natural gas plant with capacity
to process up to 7 Mt/a and potential for
expansion. Browse could also supply
natural gas to Australian markets. Further
exploration and appraisal drilling and
concept development is planned for
2005.

Bonaparte Basin

Great Australian Bight Exploration

Blacktip Gas Project

Titles

Titles

WA-279-P, WA-313-P,
NT/P57, WA-34-R

EPP-28 to 31

Woodside Interest

70.00%

Operator

Woodside

Woodside Interest

53.85%, 50.00%,
66.67%, 39.00%
respectively

Location

Duntroon sub-basin
adjacent to the
Great Australian Bight

Operator

Woodside

Water Depth

~100 to 4,000 metres

Location

Offshore about
250 km south west of
Darwin, Northern Territory

Water Depth

~50 metres

Project Approval

Second quarter 2005

Estimated Capital
Expenditure

$265 million
(Woodside share)

Planned First Gas

Fourth quarter 2007

The Blacktip gas field is a series of
stacked reservoirs of dry gas in
exploration permit WA-279-P which was
discovered in 2001.
In November 2004, Woodside signed a
gas sales agreement with Alcan Gove
Pty Ltd to supply 800 PJ of natural gas
from the Blacktip gas project to Alcan’s
alumina and bauxite refinery at Gove,
Northern Territory. The contract, for 44
PJ/a, is conditional on project approval,
all regulatory approvals and satisfactory
arrangements for the construction and
operation, by Alcan, of the 940 km
onshore gas pipeline from the Joseph
Bonaparte Gulf to the Gove plant.
Blacktip project approval is now
expected in the second quarter of 2005
(previously fourth quarter 2004). The
onshore gas pipeline has been delayed
primarily due to the extended 2003-2004
northern Australia wet season. The
project’s expected start-up is now fourth
quarter 2007.

Woodside increased its interest in the
EPP-28, 29, 30 and 31 exploration
permits in the Duntroon sub-basin.
Acquisition of the 2-D Whidbey seismic
survey started in December 2004 and
data processing and interpretation will
take place during 2005.

Otway Basin
Otway Gas Project
Titles

T/L2, VIC/L23, VIC/P43
T/30P, VIC/P37(v)

Woodside Interest

51.55%, except
VIC/P37(v) 62.5%

Operator

Woodside

Location

Thylacine – 70 kms
offshore and
Geographe – 55 kms
offshore, south of
Port Campbell in south
east Australia

Water Depth

Thylacine – 100 metres
Geographe – 85 metres

Project Approval

May 2004

Estimated Capital
Expenditure

$387 million
(Woodside share)

Planned First Gas

Mid-2006

Production licences T/L2 and VIC/L23
over the Thylacine and Geographe gas
fields were granted to Woodside and its
joint venture participants in 2004.

In May, the joint venture participants
approved development of the $1.1 billion
Otway gas project. This decision
followed Woodside’s signing of a gas
sales agreement with TXU Electricity Ltd
in April, for TXU to buy the company’s
share of natural gas from the project,
around 30 PJ/a for more than 10 years.
In December, a sales agreement was
signed to supply Shell Australia Limited
with 12.2 MMbbl of condensate for the
project’s life.
Over the project’s life, the fields are
expected to supply 950 Bcf of raw gas
which results in 885 PJ of sales gas,
12.2 MMbbl of condensate and 1.7 Mt of
LPG. The project involves initial
expenditure of $810 million on the
Thylacine gas field in T/L2, the offshore
gas pipeline and onshore gas treatment
plant.
The project will include a remotely
operated platform, offshore and onshore
pipelines and a new gas plant to be built
near the Iona gas plant, next to Port
Campbell. Work on the gas plant and
coastal crossing were started during the
year. The Geographe field, in VIC/L23,
will be connected to the main offshore
pipeline in a later development phase.
The project initially will produce a
total of about 60 PJ/a of sales gas
and production is scheduled to begin in
mid-2006.

Otway Basin Exploration
Processing and interpretation of the
Antares 3-D seismic survey was
completed in 2004, with two prospects
in VIC/P37(v), Halladale and Blackwatch
identified for drilling in early 2005.

Bonaparte Basin Exploration
The Polkadot-1 well was drilled in
WA-313-P in September 2004. The well
intersected three gas zones with a
cumulative gross thickness of about 50
metres. The larger gas-bearing interval
was perforated over 19 metres although
the production testing did not flow
hydrocarbons to surface. Commerciality
has yet to be determined. Woodside
withdrew from permit WA-280-P during
the year. Woodside acquired a 39%
interest in WA-34-R in July 2004 which
includes the Rubicon and Prometheus
gas fields.
Woodside Petroleum Ltd. | Concise Annual Report 2004
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Gippsland Basin

Timor Sea

Kipper Gas Field

Sunrise Gas Project

Title

VIC/RL2

Woodside Interest

30.00%

Operator

Esso

Woodside Interest

33.44% (unitised basis)

Offshore about 65 kms
from the Victorian coast
in south east Australia

Operator

Woodside

Location

Offshore 450 kms north
west of Darwin and
150 kms south of
Timor-Lesté

Water Depth

~75 to 750 metres

Location

Water Depth

Titles

Metasource

~150 to 300 metres

The VIC/RL2 permit includes the Kipper
gas field which could be developed via
integration with Esso/BHP Billiton’s
Gippsland Basin joint venture facilities or
as a stand-alone development. The
current retention lease has been
extended until June 2005.
Woodside sold its 100% interest in the
Basker, Manta and Gummy fields
(VIC/RL6, 9 and 10) to Anzon Energy
Australia Limited during the year.

NT/RL2, NT/P55,
JPDA 03-19, JPDA 03-20

The Timor-Lesté Government’s
ratification of the International
Unitisation Agreement (IUA) and
securing foundation LNG customers
are pre-requisites for any progress on
the Sunrise gas project.
The IUA, signed by the Governments of
Australia and Timor-Lesté on 6 March
2003 was ratified by the Australian
Parliament on 30 March 2004. The
already ratified and in force Timor Sea
Treaty and related IUA are designed to
enable resource developments to
proceed ahead of both countries
agreeing permanent maritime borders.
The IUA was not ratified by the
Parliament of Timor-Lesté by year-end
and, in the absence of fiscal, legal and
regulatory certainty, Woodside was
forced to stall its work on the Sunrise
gas project.
Jahal and Kuda Tasi Oil Fields
Permit

JPDA 03-01

Woodside Interest

40.00%

Operator

Woodside

Location

Timor Sea about 20 kms
east of Laminaria

Water Depth

~400 metres

Woodside and its joint venture
participants are awaiting finalisation of
the new Petroleum Mining Code and the
Production Sharing Contract (PSC) that
will apply to certain areas within the
Joint Petroleum Development Area
(JPDA), including JPDA 03-01.
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The key function of Metasource Pty. Ltd,
a wholly-owned Woodside subsidiary, is
to assess and manage the business risks
and opportunities from global and
national measures to reduce gas
emissions implicated in global warming,
known as "greenhouse gases". As well
as maintaining and reporting Woodside’s
inventory and forecasts for these
emissions, Metasource actively
participates in activities to influence
policy formulation and the commercial
implications, both independently and in
government and industry forums.
Metasource also maintains a portfolio of
investments in sustainable and
renewable energy technologies.
Investment Portfolio

Equity

Ceramic Fuel Cells Limited

34.73%

Geodynamics Limited

13.59%

Ocean Power
Technologies Incorporated

2.91%

Ocean Power
Technologies Australasia

11.76%

Significant milestones achieved by
investments during 2004 included
Ceramic Fuel Cells Limited’s successful
$25 million capital raising and listing on
the Australian Stock Exchange.
Geodynamics Limited successfully
fractured part of its Cooper Basin granite
heat resource and drilled the company’s
first production well to target depth.
Ocean Power Technologies secured
US$4 million in contracts for
development of wave energy conversion
systems and entered a joint venture
agreement for development of a wave
power station off the coast of Spain.

A team discuss a 3-D visualisation of the Mauritanian sub-sea
structure in Woodside’s purpose-built facilities.

International Interests –
Diversifying our Portfolio

Algeria

Ksar Hirane

Ohanet Operations

Titles

ALG-408a, 409

Maximising opportunities to create
outstanding growth and value for
the company.

Woodside Interest

Woodside Interest

37.50%

Woodside has targeted several
international areas for their potential and
for the diversification and balance they
add to the exploration, development and
production portfolio. As at 31 December
2004, the international portfolio had
interests in 206 exploration blocks – 34
in Africa and 172 in the Gulf of Mexico in
the United States of America – covering
a gross area of almost 200,000 km2.
During 2004, Woodside spent
$167 million on international exploration
and drilled 13 exploration and appraisal
wells overseas. Development drilling for
the Chinguetti development also
commenced in September 2004.
The 2005 international exploration
program has a budget of $196 million.

Africa
In Africa, the company drilled 10
exploration and appraisal wells resulting
in two discoveries (commerciality for one
is to be determined), four successful
appraisals (appraisal drilling still
operational at year end) and four dry
holes.

Operator

15.00%
BHP Billiton

Produces

LPG and condensate**

Location

Onshore Illizi Basin in
southern Algeria

Production Start

October 2003

Production

2004

2003

51,602

6,857

0.7

0.1

LPG
Woodside share (t)

Operator

BHP Billiton

Location

Onshore, Touggourt
Uplift Basin, Algeria

Interest Acquired

September 2004

The Ksar Hirane Blocks ALG-408a and
409, in which Woodside holds a 37.50%
interest, were awarded in September
2004.

Condensate

Mauritania

Woodside share
(MMbbl)

** Ohanet Operations is a wet gas project. Sonatrach
receives all the dry gas and Woodside receives a
fixed rate of return based on product price and
volume, limited to a maximum revenue entitlement
of LPG and condensate.

Titles

Areas A, B, C2, C6,
Blocks 7, 11 and 12
Chinguetti EP#

Woodside Interest

Area A and Area B –
53.846% in each,
Area C2 – 41.75%*
Area C6 – 37.58%
Block 7 – 5.00%
Blocks Ta11, Ta12 – 75%*
Chinguetti EP# – 47.384%

Operator

Woodside

Location

Offshore and onshore
Mauritania

In 2004, the Ohanet operations
completed the first full year of
production.
The project is run under a Risk Service
Contract with Sonatrach, the Algerian
national oil company. Under the contract
terms, the project participants receive a
fixed rate of return based on product
price and volume, limited to a maximum
revenue entitlement of LPG and
condensate over eight years. Woodside
received maximum revenue entitlement
for 2004.

Algeria Exploration
Block 401d
Title

ALG-401d

Woodside Interest

26.25%

Operator

Repsol YPF

Location

Onshore Berkine
Basin, Algeria

Interest Acquired

June 2002

Woodside participated in the drilling of
two wells in Block 401d in 2004. The
RERC-1 was a dry hole while RERW-1’s
commerciality is yet to be determined.

Water Depth

0 to 2,200 metres

PSCs Signed

1998 and 2004

* Subject to title transfer
#

EP – Exploitation Perimeter

In January 2004, Woodside acquired
additional interests in Areas A and B
from AGIP Mauritania B.V. In February,
Woodside on-sold to the remaining joint
venture participants their pro-rata share
of the 35% interest acquired in each
contract area. Following the
transactions, Woodside’s equity in both
contract areas increased from 35% to
53.846%.
During the year, Woodside acquired
interests in three new PSCs, Block 7
and two onshore blocks, Block Ta11 and
Block Ta12. These transactions are
subject to title transfer.
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Chinguetti Oil Project

Mauritanian Exploration

Kenya

Title

Block 4 in Area B

Kenya Exploration

Woodside Interest

47.384%

Operator

Woodside

Location

Offshore about 80 kms
from the Mauritania coast

Water Depth

~800 metres

Project Approval

May 2004

Four exploration wells were drilled
in Mauritania during 2004 with one
discovery and three dry holes. The
Tevét-1 well encountered a 70 metre
gross gas column overlying a 44 metre
gross oil column. The Dorade-1,
Capitaine-1/1A and Merou-1 wells were
plugged and abandoned as dry holes.

Planned First Oil

March 2006

Following the initial Chinguetti-1 oil
discovery in 2001, Woodside made a
formal declaration of commerciality to
the Mauritanian Government in January
2004.

During the year, acquisition of the Kiffa
3-D, Tanit 3-D, and Atar 3-D seismic
surveys were conducted in Areas A, B
and C6. The Atar 3-D survey was still
operational at year-end.

Libya
In May, joint venture participants
approved development of the Chinguetti
oil project. The project’s first
development phase (Phase 1) includes
up to six production wells, one gas
injection well and five water injection
wells with flowlines to a permanently
moored FPSO vessel, the Berge Helene.
Total joint venture capital investment in
Phase 1 is US$625 million.

Libya Exploration
Titles

45.00%

Operator

Woodside

Location

Onshore Sirte Basin in
northern Libya with
NC210 the Murzuq Basin
in west Libya

EPSA Signed

The Chinguetti Exploitation Perimeter
was granted in May and, in November,
the Mauritanian Government exercised
an option to participate in the Chinguetti
development proportionately reducing
the holding of Area B participants.
Development drilling was ongoing at
year-end. First oil is expected into
production by March 2006 at an initial
rate of 75,000 bbl/d.

Tiof Oil discovery
Appraisal drilling on the 2003 Tiof
discovery involved four wells in 2004.
The Tiof-3 well intersected a 134 metre
gross oil column, the Tiof-4 well a 113
metre gross oil column and the Tiof-5
well a 23 metre gross oil column.
Appraisal drilling of the Tiof field (Tiof-6)
was ongoing at
year-end.

Blocks NC205 to 210

Woodside Interest

November 2003

In 2003, Woodside signed a 30-year
Exploration and Production Sharing
Agreement (EPSA) with the Libyan
National Oil Corporation. In addition, a
three-year feasibility study was
negotiated over an oil and gas field in the
Murzuq Basin. The study includes an
option to negotiate a commercial
production agreement within a further
three years.
Efforts during 2004 focused on
successful data retrieval and onshore
seismic acquisition which started in
October. 2-D and 3-D surveys were still
operational at year-end.

Titles

Blocks L-5, L-7 and L-11

Woodside Interest

40.00%

Operator

Woodside

Location

Offshore Kenya

Water Depth

0 to 3,000 metres

Interests Acquired

2003

Woodside high-graded its portfolio in
2004 and withdrew from four blocks in
Kenya. The company continues to
operate three blocks in Kenya covering
an area of 30,669 km2. Woodside and
its joint venture participants are acquiring
3,609 km of 2-D seismic to assist in the
exploration of this area before a
commitment to exploration drilling is
required in 2006.

Sierra Leone
Sierra Leone Exploration
Titles

Blocks SL6, SL7

Woodside Interest

50.00%

Operator

Repsol YPF

Location

Offshore Sierra Leone

Water Depth

~50 to 4,000 metres

Interests Acquired

2003

Woodside has a 50% interest in two
exploration blocks covering an area of
about 10,500 km2. The focus in 2004
was on processing and interpreting the
3-D seismic data acquired in 2003. A
decision to enter an elective drilling
program is due in 2007.

Canary Islands
Canary Islands Exploration
Titles

Canarias-1 to 9

Woodside Interest

30.00%

Operator

Repsol YPF

Location

Offshore east of the
Canary Islands

Water Depth

~1,000 metres

Interests Acquired

2002

Evaluation of 3-D seismic data acquired
during 2003 was the focus for 2004 prior
to drilling, possibly in 2005.
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United States of America
In 2004, Woodside drilled three
exploration and appraisal wells in United
States’ acreage, resulting in one
discovery, one successful appraisal and
one dry hole.

Gulf of Mexico
Neptune Oil Project
Titles

Atwater Valley Blocks
573- 575, 617, 618

Woodside Interest

20.00%

Operator

BHP Billiton

Location

Offshore 275 km south
of New Orleans,
Louisiana

Water Depth

~2,000 metres

Discovered

1995

Project Approval

Scheduled for 2005

Possible First Oil

Late 2007 – early 2008

Appraisal operations of the Neptune field
in the Atwater Foldbelt region of the
Central Gulf of Mexico continued during
2004 with the drilling of the Neptune-6/7
well. The well encountered a net oil
column of 114 feet (34.7 metres).
An investment decision for project
development is anticipated in 2005.
Midway Gas
Titles

Brazos Area
Block A 39-5

Woodside Interest

50.00%

Operator

Pioneer

Location

Offshore about 185 km
south of Houston, Texas

Water Depth

~43 metres

Discovered

2004

Project Approval

Dependent on testing

Possible First Gas

First half 2005

Midway is a small gas field in shallow
water on the Texas Shelf region of the
Gulf of Mexico.

In January 2004, a well targeting deep
gas encountered 30 feet (9 metres) of
net gas pay. An additional 60 feet (18
metres) of gas bearing sands were
encountered in three other intervals.
Production testing is planned for early
2005 and if successful, production is
scheduled to begin in the first half of
2005 through a tie-back to an existing
production platform nearby in the Brazos
region.

Gulf of Mexico Exploration
During 2004, Woodside’s portfolio
increased from 129 leases to 172 leases
at year-end. Woodside successfully bid
on 39 leases at the Central and Western
lease sales and relinquished nine lowpotential leases during the year.
Two exploration wells were drilled in the
year. The Midway-1 well discovered gas
while the Kansas-2/3 well, in the Atwater
Valley area, was plugged and abandoned
as a dry hole.

Californian LNG
Clearwater Port
In October 2004, Woodside executed a
heads of agreement with Crystal Energy
LLC, the developer of an LNG import
terminal off the coast of California.

Explore Enterprises Alliance
In January 2005, Woodside announced
an alliance with Explore Enterprises of
Louisiana LLC (Explore) to jointly conduct
exploration, acquisition, development
and production activities in the Gulf of
Mexico. The decision followed an
extensive review of Woodside’s United
States operations in 2004. Under the
agreement, Woodside and Explore will
jointly invest in the shelf and deep
waters of the Gulf.
For each project, Woodside will hold
95% of the alliance’s combined
interests, while Explore will hold the
remaining 5%. As part of the
agreement, Explore also paid Woodside
for a 5% interest in Woodside’s existing
leases in the Gulf, excluding Woodside’s
holding in the Neptune and Midway
discoveries. Explore’s interest in each
project will increase from 5% to 12.5%
after Woodside has recovered the
present value of its invested capital in
those projects.
The alliance is for five years and includes
an option to extend for a further two
years.

Under the agreement with Crystal, a
privately-owned US corporation with
headquarters in Houston, Texas,
Woodside and Crystal will complete
engineering and design work and
negotiate agreements to cover
preferential terminal use and operations.
Subject to those agreements,
Woodside will operate the terminal
and have access to at least 80% of its
annual capacity of 6 Mt of LNG (about
800 million standard cubic feet of gas
a day).
Crystal's US$350 million Clearwater Port
proposal involves conversion of an oil
and gas platform 21 km off Ventura
County to receive LNG and pipe gas into
the Southern California Gas Company's
pipeline network.

Woodside Petroleum Ltd. | Concise Annual Report 2004

21

Reser ves
STATEMENT
The following Reserves Statement
and tables present a summary of
the key changes to Woodside’s
hydrocarbon Reserves and
Contingent Resources during
2004, and the resulting resource
estimates as at 31 December
2004.

Woodside is an Australian company
listed on the Australian Stock Exchange
and reports its hydrocarbon resources
using definitions and guidelines prepared
by the Society of Petroleum Engineers
Inc. and the World Petroleum
Congresses. Estimates are prepared in
accordance with Woodside’s
Hydrocarbon Resource Inventory
Management Process and subject to
internal and external review. Currently
about 90% of Woodside’s Proved
Reserves have been externally verified
within the last four years.
Woodside has continued to use a
10-year average crude oil price for the
determination of oil Reserves and
individual project contracts terms and
prices for gas Reserves. The Ohanet
project in Algeria is governed by a Risk
Services Contract (RSC) under which
Woodside does not have any share in
the sales gas delivered, but is entitled to
cost recovery and a fixed return from the
sale of gas-liquid by-products. Woodside
has estimated Reserve volumes that
reflect the economic value of this asset,
using a 10-year average Condensate
price and a LPG price consistent with
other Woodside Reserves
determinations. For the Chinguetti oil
field development in Mauritania
Woodside’s net share of Reserves has
also been estimated based on the
economic value of this asset and in
accordance with the applicable
Production Sharing Contract (PSC) terms
and conditions.
Unless otherwise stated, all hydrocarbon
resource estimates are quoted as net
Woodside share. The Reserves
Statement’s annual production volume
(55.6 MMboe) differs from production
volumes (56.2 MMboe) reported in other
sections of this report due to differences
in sales product definitions and barrels of
oil equivalent conversion factors applied.
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Woodside’s Overall Reserves
and Contingent Resources
As a result of production, drilling, studies
and acquisitions/divestments during
2004, Woodside’s hydrocarbon Reserves
as at 31 December 2004 were 950.5
MMboe at the Proved level (29.6
MMboe lower than 2003) and 1,293.9
MMboe at the Proved plus Probable
level (9.7 MMboe lower than 2003).
Annual production of 55.6 MMboe
during 2004 was more than fully
replaced by new Reserve bookings for
the Blacktip gas project in Australia and
the Neptune oil field in the United States
of America, and positive revisions in the
Wanaea, Hermes, Corallina and
Legendre oil fields and the Echo-Yodel
and Perseus gas fields, all in Australia.
These additions also helped to partially
offset the divestment of Dry Gas and
Condensate Reserves in the NWS
Venture to CNOOC and Oil Reserves in
the Enfield and Vincent fields to Mitsui
E&P Australia Pty Ltd during 2004
(totalling 124.2 MMboe at the Proved
plus Probable level).
Woodside’s Reserves Replacement Ratio
for 2004 was 47% at the Proved level
and 83% at the Proved plus Probable
level. The Organic Annual Reserves
Replacement Ratio (which excludes
acquisitions, divestments and, this year,
changes to the NWS Venture future fuel
and flare gas accounting methodology)
was 80% at the Proved level and 125%
at the Proved plus Probable level. The
three-year rolling average Reserves
Replacement Ratio at the Proved level
was 115% and at the Proved plus
Probable level was 144%.

Employee looks out over the Timor Sea from the deck of the Northern Endeavour

The company’s portfolio of reserves
is considered to be low risk,
notwithstanding normal technical and
commercial uncertainties. At the Proved
and Probable level, about 93% of the
company’s Reserves are within Australia,
5% within Africa and 2% in the United
States of America. Dry Gas Reserves
under long-term supply agreements
represents about 69% of total Reserves
(on a barrels of oil equivalent basis), with
Condensate representing 11% and Oil
20%. About 5% of Woodside’s
Reserves are associated with Production
Sharing Contracts (PSCs) or Risk Sharing
Contracts (RSCs) in Africa.
Woodside’s Contingent Resources
(formerly known as Scope for Recovery
or ‘SFR’) as at 31 December 2004 have
increased from 2,866 to 3,017 MMbbl
(up 5%), primarily as a result of new
bookings associated with the Tiof,
Banda, Tevét, Penguin*, Midway and
Eskdale discoveries, and revision of
the Stybarrow discovery. Combined,
these changes total 249 MMboe and
offset the transfer of Neptune and
Blacktip volumes to Reserves by a factor
of 303%.

Australia
Woodside’s share of NWS Venture
Proved Dry Gas Reserves was 3,340 Bcf
at the Proved level and 4,305 Bcf at the
Proved plus Probable level. Woodside’s
share of NWS Venture Condensate
Reserves was 86.3 MMbbl at the Proved
level and 121.3 MMbbl at the Proved
plus Probable level. There were minor
revisions to estimates of Dry Gas and
Condensate Ultimate Recovery for the
gas fields, primarily Perseus and EchoYodel, which were increased based on
better than expected production
performance.

The previously announced agreement
with CNOOC to acquire gas and
associated liquids equal to about a 5.3%
interest in gas in the NWS Venture’s
titles was completed in December 2004.
Woodside’s interests in the NWS Venture
Reserves were reduced in accordance
with that agreement.
In addition, during 2004, Woodside’s
methodology of deducting both
upstream (offshore) and downstream
(onshore) future fuel and flare gas from
gas project Reserves was revised to
deduct only offshore fuel and flare gas,
bringing reporting in line with common
industry practice. This resulted in a
positive revision of 388 Bcf Dry Gas at
the Proved Level and 498 Bcf at the
Proved plus Probable level, which have
been excluded from the organic
Reserves Replacement Ratios reported
above.
Production from the NWS Venture oil
fields was partially offset with the
successful drilling of two new
development wells and one well
workover, together with multi-disciplinary
field studies incorporating preliminary
results of the Demeter 3-D seismic
survey, updated production information
and updated Egret Reserve estimates
following the drilling of the Egret-3 well.
As a result of these activities,
Woodside’s share of the NWS Venture’s
Oil Reserves was 18.5 MMbbl at the
Proved level and 38.5 MMbbl at the
Proved plus Probable level.
Outside the NWS Venture, Woodside’s
share of the Dry Gas reserves within
Australia increased to 541 Bcf at the
Proved level and 785 Bcf at the Proved
plus Probable level, largely due to the
first time booking of Blacktip Reserves.
Associated Condensate Reserves were
also increased slightly.

2004
Woodside Reserves
(Proved plus Probable)

Africa 5%
Australia 93%
United States
of America 2%

Woodside’s share of Oil Reserves within
Australia, but outside the NWS Venture,
decreased to 101.7 MMbbl at the Proved
level and 150.3 MMbbl at the Proved
plus Probable level due to revisions of
previous estimates and the divestment
of 40% equity in licence WA-28-L to
Mitsui E&P Australia Pty Ltd. Reserves
associated with the Laminaria, Corallina
and Legendre oil developments all
decreased largely in line with production.
Dry Gas and Condensate Reserves
associated with the Otway Basin
development in south east Australia
were unchanged.
During 2004, Contingent Resources
within Australia increased to 2,767
MMboe as a result of positive revisions
associated with the Sunrise-Troubadour
and Stybarrow fields, plus new bookings
for the Eskdale and Penguin discoveries.
These additions together fully offset the
loss of Contingent Resources due to
transfer of Blacktip volumes to Reserves,
sale of the Basker/Manta/Gummy gas
discoveries and sale of equity in
WA-271-P and WA-28-L to Mitsui E&P
Australia Pty Ltd. Activities to
commercialise the Sunrise and
Troubadour, Scott Reef and Brecknock
gas discoveries continued during 2004,
but by year-end had not matured
sufficiently to support Reserves
additions.

* Appraised by the Polkadot-1 exploration well.
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Reserves associated with the Ohanet
project, in Algeria, have been revised due
to updated 10-year average product price
assumptions, updated project cost
estimates and production.
Consequently, Reserves at year-end
2004 were 12 Bcf of Dry Gas and 8.6
MMbbls of Condensate at both the
Proved and Proved plus Probable levels.

United States of America
Development studies and the drilling of a
further appraisal well (Neptune-6/7)
during 2004 contributed to the
maturation of the Neptune oil field
development project, in the Gulf of
Mexico, and the first booking of
Reserves. Woodside share of the
project Reserves, net of royalty, is 12.4
MMbbl Oil and 7 Bcf Dry Gas at the
Proved level, and 19.3 MMbbl Oil and 12
Bcf Dry Gas at the Proved plus Probable
level. The field was discovered in late
1995 and formal project approval is
scheduled for 2005. The project is
expected to commence production in
late 2007 or early 2008.
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1,404.9**
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1200

1,303.6

"MMboe" means millions (106) of barrels of oil
equivalent. In common with international practice, Dry
Gas volumes are converted to oil equivalent volumes
via a constant conversion factor, which for Woodside is
5,700 standard cubic feet of Dry Gas per 1 barrel of oil
equivalent. Volumes of Oil and Condensate are both
converted from MMbbl to MMboe on a 1:1 ratio.

200

175

1,304.1

"MMbbl" means millions (106) of standard barrels of
oil, NGLs and condensates.

1300

1,214.3

"Bcf" means billions (109) of standard cubic feet of gas.

1400
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"Dry Gas" is defined as "C4 minus" hydrocarbon
components plus inerts. These volumes include LPG
(propane and butane) Reserves.

125

100

04

Proved plus Probable Reserves
RRR (Three-Year Average)
With Divestment
Without Divestments

"Reserves" are identified volumes that have been
demonstrated to be producible from known resources
in which the company has a material interest from a
given date forward, at commercial rates, under
presently anticipated production methods, operating
conditions, prices and costs. Woodside reports
Reserves net of the gas required for
upstream/offshore processing and transportation to
the customer (fuel and flare gas).
"Proved Reserves" are those Reserves that, to a high
degree of certainty (90% confidence) are recoverable.
There is relatively little risk associated with these
Reserves.

2004
Proved plus Probable Reserves by Product
1,293.9 MMboe
Crude Oil 20%

Dry Gas 69%
Condensate 11%

"Probable Reserves" are those Reserves which
analysis of geological and engineering data suggests
are more likely than not to be recoverable. There is at
least a 50% probability that the quantities actually
recovered will equal or exceed the sum of estimated
Proved plus Probable Reserves.
"Contingent Resource" is the recovery estimate of
any project for which implementation cannot be
shown with sufficient confidence to be technically
sound or commercially viable, but which could mature
based on reasonable assumptions about the success
of additional data gathering, improved reservoir
management, a maturing technology from current
research, relaxations in the market constraints and/or
terms and conditions for implementing such a project.
Contingent Resources were formerly referred to as
Scope for Recovery or ‘SFR’ volumes.
"Annual Reserves Replacement Ratio" means
Reserves change during the year, before the deduction
of production, divided by production during the year.
An Annual Reserves Replacement Ratio of 100%
indicates full replacement of production by Reserve
additions for that year. "Three-year Reserves
Replacement Ratio" means Reserves change over the
prior three years, before the deduction of production
for that period, divided by production during the same
period. The term "Organic Reserves Replacement
Ratio" means Reserves change during the year, before
the deduction of production and adjustment for
acquisition and divestments, divided by production
during the year.
This year, organic reserves replacement also excludes
changes to the NWS Venture fuel and flare gas
accounting methodology.

24

Proved plus Probable Reserves &
Three-Year Average Reserves
Replacement Ratio (RRR)

"Condensate" is defined as "C5 plus" hydrocarbon
components for NWS Venture, Otway Basin and
Blacktip fields, but is sales product for the Ohanet
project.

1,192.8

Woodside’s share of Oil Reserves
associated with the Chinguetti
development in Mauritania was 33.4
MMbbl at the Proved Level and 50.7
MMbbl at the Proved plus Probable level.
The field is governed by a PSC with the
Mauritanian Government and Woodside’s
share of Reserves was determined in
accordance with this contract. The
booking of Reserves in these
circumstances is recognised
international practice and based on the
‘economic interest’ approach, whereby
entitlement is calculated as the ratio of
Woodside’s share of pre-tax cash flow
divided by total project pre-tax cash flow.
For Chinguetti, this yielded an economic
interest of approximately 41.2%.
Funding for the project was formally
approved during 2004 and production is
scheduled to commence in March 2006.

Definitions:

Proved plus Probable Reserves
Million Barrels of Oil Equivalent

Africa

2004
Proved plus Probable Reserves Portfolio Maturity
1,293.9 MMboe

Planned
for Development 13%

On Production 60%

Under
Development 27%

Hydrocarbon Reserves as at 31 December 2004
Woodside Share

Proved Reserves

Proved plus Probable Reserves

Dry Gas
Bcf

Cond.
MMbbl

Oil
MMbbl

Total
MMboe

Dry Gas
Bcf

Cond.
MMbbl

Oil
MMbbl

Total
MMboe

Australia;
Greater North West Shelf

3,340

86.3

111.8

784.0

4,305

121.3

166.0

1,042.6

Northern Australia

248

1.5

8.4

53.3

335

2.1

22.8

83.6

South East Australia

294

3.8

0.0

55.4

450

6.0

0.0

84.9

12

8.6

33.4

44.1

12

8.6

50.7

61.4

7

0.0

12.4

13.7

12

0.0

19.3

21.4

3,901

100.2

166.0

950.5

5,114

138.0

258.8

1,293.9

Africa
United States of America
TOTAL

Reconciliation of Hydrocarbon Reserves
Woodside Share

Proved Reserves

Proved plus Probable Reserves

Dry Gas
Bcf

Cond.
MMbbl

Oil
MMbbl

Total
MMboe

Dry Gas
Bcf

Cond.
MMbbl

Oil
MMbbl

Total
MMboe

3,626

107.6

236.4

980.1

4,654

145.7

341.5

1,303.6

0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-6

3.5

-16.8

-14.5

15

4.9

-20.3

-12.6

Revision of NWSV Fuel & Flare*

388

0.0

0.0

68.1

498

0.0

0.0

87.3

Extensions and Discoveries

255

1.5

12.4

58.7

347

2.1

19.3

82.2

Acquisitions and Divestments

-182

-3.4

-51.0

-86.3

-220

-5.7

- 66.7

-111.0

Annual Production

-180

-9.0

-15.0

-55.6

-180

-9.0

-15.0

-55.6

Reserves Year-End 2004

3,901

100.2

166.0

950.5

5,114

138.0

258.8

1,293.9

Annual Reserves
Replacement Ratio

253%

18%

-369%

47%

356%

14%

-451%

83%

Excluding Acquisitions,
Divestments & Revisions to
NWSV Fuel & Flare

138%

56%

-29%

80%

201%

78%

-7%

125%

Reserves Year-End 2003
Improved Recovery
Revisions of Previous Estimates

* Woodside’s methodology of deducting both upstream (offshore) and downstream (onshore) future fuel and flare gas from gas project reserves has been revised to only deduct
offshore losses, so as to bring reporting in line with common industry practice.

Reconciliation of Contingent Resources
Woodside Share
MMboe

Year End
2003

Transfers to
Reserves

Revisions

Extensions &
Discoveries

Acquisitions &
Discoveries

Year End
2004

Australia;
Greater North West Shelf
Northern Australia
South East Australia
Papua New Guinea
Africa
United States of America
TOTAL

218.3

0.0

-5.6

16.8

- 40.6

188.9

2,486.7

- 60.8

84.7

14.0

18.0

2,542.6

99.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

- 63.2

36.0

25.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

25.8

0.0

0.0

2.9

217.6

0.0

220.5

36.2

-21.4

-11.8

0.4

0.0

3.4

2,866.2

-82.2

70.2

248.8

-85.8

3,017.2

Note: 1boe: 5.7 Mscf Dry Gas

The information contained in this Reserves Statement has been compiled by Mr Roland Hamp, a full-time employee of the company. Mr Hamp’s qualifications include a Master of
Engineering (Petroleum Engineering) degree from Imperial College, University of London, England and more than 17 years of relevant experience. Mr Hamp has consented in
writing to the inclusion of this information in this report.
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Australasia

Exploration
and Production
INTERESTS
as at 31 December 2004

dary
Australia / Indonesia Boun

Joint Petroleum
Development Area

Block Name

Woodside
Interest (%)

AUSTRALIA EXPLORATION
AC/P 8

85*

EPP-28 to 31

70*

NT/P 57

66.67*

T/30P, T/34P, VIC/P43

51.55*

VIC/P 37(V)

62.5

WA-191-P

8.2

WA-1-P

45.94*

WA-208-P

34.03

WA-248-P

45*

WA-254-P (1,3&4)

24.38

WA-254-P (2)

17.06

WA-255-P

50

LAMINARIA

WA-269-P, 293-P

80*

AC/L 5

WA-271-P

60*

LEGENDRE

WA-275-P

25*

50*

WA-20-L

45.94*

16.66*

NWS VENTURE

WA-294-P

21.66*

WA-1-L to 6-L

16.66*

WA-296-P

22.18*

WA-23-L, 24-L

16.66*

WA-297-P

23.57*

WA-7-R, 9-R, 10-R

16.66*

WA-313-P

50*

WA-9-L, 11-L, 16-L

16.66*

WA-28-P

WA-347-P, 348-P
350-P, 353-P

100*

BLACKTIP
WA-279-P

53.85*

WA-34-R

39*

ENFIELD
WA-28-L

60*

MUTINEER EXETER
WA-26-L, 27-L

8.2

51.55*

KIPPER
VIC/RL 2

R/2, TR/5

50*

WA-28-R, 29-R

25*

WA-30-R, 31-R, 32-R

50*

SUNRISE TROUBADOUR
JPDA 03-19

27.67*

JPDA 03-20

26.67*

NT/P 55

26.67*

NT/RL 2

35*

PAPUA NEW GUINEA

THYLACINE GEOGRAPHE
T/L 2, VIC/L 23

SCOTT REEF BRECKNOCK

PRL 10

40.45

* Woodside Operated

30

JAHAL KUDA TASI
JPDA 03-01

40*
Woodside Operator (Production Licence)

26

Woodside Operator (Permit)

Woodside Non-Operator Interests

Relinquished/Sold Permit

Africa

Title Name

Woodside
Interest (%)

Note

ALGERIA
ALG-401d
ALG-408a/409

26.25

1

37.5

1

Askarene Guelta

15

3

Dimeta West

15

3

Ohanet North, South

15

3

Block L-5

Block L-6

Block L-7

Block L-8

KENYA

Block L-9

Block L-11, L-5, L-7

40*

1

45*

2

Block L-11
Block L-10

LIBYA
NC205 to 210
MAURITANIA
Area A, Area B

53.85*

1

Area C2

41.75*

1, 5

Area C6

37.58*

1

75

1, 5

Blocks Ta11, Ta12
Block 7
Chinguetti EP

5

1, 5

47.384*

6

50

4

30

4

SIERRA LEONE
Blocks SL-6, SL-7
CANARY ISLANDS
Canarias-1 to 9

Notes
* Woodside Operated
1
Production Sharing Contract
2
Exploration and Production Sharing Agreement
3
Risk Service Contract
4
Exploration Permit
5
Subject to title transfer
6
Chinguetti Exploitation Perimeter

Woodside Operator (Production Licence)

Woodside Operator (Permit)

Woodside Non-Operator Interests

Relinquished/Sold Permit
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United States of America

Block Name

Woodside
Interest (%)

MU761

50

BA397

50

GB901

50

GC401

50

AT279
MUA80-82, 121

100*
50

GC246

33.33

EC268

50*

GB861, 905-906,
950, 995, 818, 860

33.33

GC798, 841-843, 885
973, 925

GC284, 328

12.5

50

MC449, 447

25

GB965

50

KC387, 388, 431

MC902

100*

AT573-575

MC858, 946

45

AT617-618

BA430

50

KC302

100*

MUA51

GB563

100*

GC410

12.5

GC972

50

MC294

AT95

24.995

20

KC287

6.78

GB817

50

50

GB875

33.33

WC318

AT40

100*

33.33

BAA16, 28, 30

50

GB598, 642

GAA79, 89

50

GA316

50

33.33

100*

MC338-339
MIA9
MC598-599, 554-555
GC755, 799

10.5625
37.5
50
20
12.5
50
2.75
50

50

AC946

100*

BAA48, 69

50

BA364, 342

50

GAA92-93

50

GC532

50
100*

GA327

50

GC573, 574

50

GB935-937, 979

20

KC301

EC158

50

GA379, 380

50

GAA38-39

50

BA478, 490

50

GC710, 181, 146-147,
190-193

50

HIA81-82

50

KC434, 477-478

100*

MU752, 768-769

50

PN968, 977-978

50

GC749, 793

50

GAA120-121

50

MC993

45

WR123

33.33

AT445, 446, 489, 490
491, 534, 488

16.665

GC45-46

50

GA355-356

50

AC73, 117

16.25

GAA176-178, 201

50

GA324, 353

50

BAA39

50

Woodside Operator (Production Licence)

28

50

AT370-371

WR122, 121
WR37, 81

50

20

GB943-944

GB822

33.33

GC226-227

50*

100*
24.995

GB813-815, 858, 903, 947

GC140

100*

VR218

MC1008
GC688

40

WR342

Woodside Operator (Permit)

KC286

10.5625

BAA7

50

MUA28

50

AC445

45

GC388

25

AC489-490

45

* Woodside Operated

AC533-534

45

GA464-465

50

Woodside Non-Operator Interests

Relinquished/Sold Permit

Woodside's Treasury team members
Sam Groenewold (left), Mark Davies
and Stephanie Hillbeck.

Financial Risk
MANAGEMENT
Identifying and managing financial
risks to assist Woodside in
meeting its strategic objectives.

Financial Risk Management
Woodside’s management of financial risk
is aimed at ensuring net cash flows are
sufficient to:
• meet its financial commitments as
and when they fall due;
• maintain the capacity to fund its
forecast development program and
exploration strategy;
• continue to pay dividends; and
• sustain financial ratios which maintain
an investment grade credit rating.
Woodside continually monitors and tests
its forecast financial position against
these criteria and in general will
undertake hedging activity only when
necessary to ensure that these
objectives will be met. There may be
other circumstances which lead to
hedging activities, for example those
associated with the purchase of
reserves.
Hedging activity is governed by Boardapproved treasury policies and
processes. No new long-term oil price
or exchange rate hedges were
undertaken in 2004.

Financial Instruments
Oil Price Hedging
As at 31 December 2004, oil hedges
totalled 0.06 MMboe. These positions
all matured in January 2005.
From February 2005, Woodside had no
remaining oil hedges in place.

As at year-end, the mark-to-market
valuation of the existing oil price hedging
was an unrealised liability of $1.5 million
($31.5 million in 2003). The cost of oil
hedging (after tax) included in
Woodside’s 2004 Full Financial Report is
$47.3 million ($77.1 million in 2003).

Currency Hedging
As at 31 December 2004, US$75.5
million had been previously hedged
against specific future expenditure
commitments by way of forward
exchange and currency option contracts
with varying maturities out to two years
at a weighted average hedge rate of
US$0.5341.
As at year-end, the mark-to-market
valuation of the existing currency
hedging was an unrealised asset of
$37.8 million ($67.3 million asset in
2003). The gain of currency hedging
(after tax) included in the 2004 Full
Financial Report is $34.5 million
($13.9 million gain in 2003).

Debt Portfolio
Woodside maintains a diversified
portfolio of available debt facilities with
the specific objectives of spreading its
source of borrowings, maintaining a
spread of maturities and achieving a
balance between fixed and floating
interest rates. As at 31 December 2004,
total debt was US$800 million.

Sensitivity Analysis
The table below shows the impact of an
increase in realised oil price, exchange
rate and United States interest rate on
the company’s 2004 net profit after tax
together with the forecast impact for
2005. The impact is reversed for a
decrease in the listed items.
($m)
2005*

($m)
2004

US$1/bbl

20

23

1 cent

(12)#

(12)

1%

(5)

(5)

Increase
Released
Oil Price
Exchange Rate
(A$/US$)
US Interest Rate

Interest Rate Management
Woodside manages its United States
interest rate exposure by maintaining a
balance between fixed and floating rate
debt within its portfolio. This exposure is
managed by undertaking fixed to floating
interest rate swaps.
As at 31 December 2004, US$430
million fixed to floating rate swaps were
outstanding with maturities out to 2013.
During 2004, fixed to floating interest
rate swaps of US$150 million
were placed.

* Forecast
# Excludes proceeds of Enfield divestment

Governance and Assurance
The Financial Risk Management function
operates under a set of strict policies
and procedures. Monthly treasury
reports are presented to the Board
detailing open positions, any new
transactions and any policy breaches.
The Board Audit & Risk Committee
oversees both the internal and external
audit reviews of the treasury function.
External treasury specialists were
engaged during 2004 to review
Woodside’s treasury operations and the
result was found to be satisfactory with
no material adverse findings.
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Roebourne school children enjoying a musical
interaction during the WA Youth Orchestra's visit to
the Pilbara, Western Australia.

Community
PARTNERSHIPS
Making a difference for the future
of young people is the key focus
of Woodside’s community
partnership program.

Australian Partnerships

International Partnerships

Australian programs supported in 2004
included:

International community partnerships
supported in 2004 included:

In 2004, Woodside committed
$3.7 million to community and aid
organisations.

New partnerships were formed with
Lifeline WA to provide 24-hour crisis
telephone counselling, suicide
intervention training, counselling,
Charity Link, and the Dads@Lifeline, with
The Salvation Army Community Youth
Program to address anti-social behaviour
and guide youth into training and
employment, and with the West Pilbara
Volunteer Sea Search and Rescue, to
carry out up to 60 search and rescue
missions each year.

Highlights included:
• A $500,000 contribution to the
Association of the Blind to build the
Woodside Guide Dog Discovery
Centre, a state-of-the-art education
centre for the vision impaired and
general public;
• Funding of Foodbank’s Bush
Breakfast program that provided
breakfast at regional schools for
disadvantaged children;
• A $250,000 donation by the company
in support of aid to Tsunami disaster
victims. This was followed in,
January 2005, by $116,000 donated
by Woodside staff;
• Long-term community partners, such
as WA Youth Orchestra, WA
Symphony Orchestra and the Art
Gallery of WA, promoted the
company’s 50th Anniversary with
special events;
• Receipt of a specially-commissioned
certificate from the Minister for
Disability Services for the volunteer
activity by Woodside staff; and
• Being awarded the 2004 State Arts
Sponsorship Award for Outstanding
Commitment to Regional Arts and
Culture for the WA Youth Orchestra’s
tour of the Pilbara.
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Western Australia

Successful partnerships continued with
the Karratha Autumn Club, the Police and
Citizens Youth Club in Roebourne and
Pilbara Homecare.

Victoria
The Port Campbell Surf Life Saving
Club’s Nippers Squad was provided with
training kits.
Landcare received assistance to plant
native trees at Curdies Estuary, and
Arena Children’s Theatre Company was
funded to tour the Otway region,
Melbourne and Perth, performing its
acclaimed production, ‘Game Girl’.

Northern Territory
Community partnerships included
Asthma Swim NT, the Darwin Symphony
Orchestra, the Rugby NT Youth
Development program, the Taminmin
High School, the NT Young Achiever
Awards, NT Surf Lifesaving and the
Government House Foundation.

Timor-Lesté
A project to supply clean water and help
build a medical clinic in Eraulo was
completed. A Tetum language course
was run for geology students in Western
Australia and a symposium on natural
resources in Timor-Lesté was held at the
University of Western Australia.

Mauritania
Computers were provided to aid
students in mechanical, electrical and
administrative professions, and to The
English Language Centre. Experienced
advisers from the Western Australian
Department of Agriculture assessed
locust control and advised key
Mauritanian officials on mitigation
measures and agricultural practices.

Libya
Support was provided to the Al Hana
Philanthropic Association, which assists
disadvantaged families, and to the Sarah
Hearing Centre, to assist with providing
hearing aids to young Libyans.

Employee Involvement
Woodside’s ’Employee Champions‘ and
volunteers received acknowledgement in
a specially commissioned Award from
the Minister for Disability Services and
continued strongly supporting their
chosen causes, raising $19,000 in the
Mission Australia Christmas Appeal,
$116,000 for the Tsunami victims and
‘adopting’ the Kids Cancer Support
Group of volunteer parents of children
affected by cancer.

Operations Technician Shane O’Neil on the
Goodwyn A platform’s helideck.

Health, Safety
Environment
and SECURITY

Woodside achieved a 69% reduction in
reportable environmental incidents with
14 reported for the year. This reflected
the focus on improving temporary oil-inwater exceedences in water discharged
from offshore operating facilities and
was achieved by improved operating
procedures and upgrading oil/water
separation equipment.
Regrettably five reportable oil/fuel spills
were recorded totalling 25,800 litres,
including the escape of 23,000 litres of
diesel from the Cossack Pioneer FPSO
prior to offtake operations.
In 2004, the NWS Venture’s onshore gas
plant at Karratha, Western Australia
joined the North Rankin A and Goodwyn
A facilities in achieving ISO14001
certification, an international standard
for environmental management.
Woodside was also awarded a
certificate of merit from the West
Australian Department of Industry and
Resources for the environmental
management of the Goodwyn A
platform shutdown in October 2003.

Health Performance (TROIF)
5.0
4.1

4.0

3.0

2.9
2.6
2.1

2.0
1.0

1.0

0
00

01

02

03

04

Data relates to all Woodside employees
and contractors

Safety Performance
15.0
12.5

12.4

10.0

9.3*

7.5

6.7

6.2*
5.4

5.0
2.5
0

*

1.2

Woodside achieved a Total Recordable
Case Frequency (TRCF) of 5.4 in 2004 a
13% improvement over the previous
year and a Lost Time Injury Frequency
(LTIF) of 1.2 a 33% improvement on
2003.

Environment

1.8

Safety

More than 20 response exercises were
conducted to maintain Woodside’s
preparedness to respond to a major
emergency. This included Woodside’s
participation in a major Australian
Government security exercise.

2.0

After achieving a significant reduction in
the Total Recordable Occupational
Illness Frequency (TROIF) over the
previous two years, it is disappointing to
report a significant increase was
recorded for 2004. Most illnesses were
successfully treated by onsite first aid,
with five cases requiring medical
treatment (three cases in 2003). These
illnesses are not acceptable to the
company and Woodside will continue its
efforts to increase awareness of health
risks and implement targeted health
programs in areas of concern.

Security and Emergency
Response

2.1

Health

The company’s 2003 safety
improvement performance was
acknowledged during the year with
Woodside receiving the Australian
Petroleum Production & Exploration
Association (APPEA) Safety Award
(Category A – Production) for safety
achievement in the petroleum
exploration and production industry.

4.2

A summary of Woodside’s key
challenges and achievements for 2004
are detailed below.

During the year, Woodside started a
program to significantly reduce
emissions of oxides of nitrogen (NOx),
benzene, toluene and xylene (BTX),
greenhouse gases and hydrocarbons
from the Karratha onshore gas plant.
This included the completion of
equipment modifications and solvent
change out on LNG Train 1 and similar
technology has been incorporated in
LNG Train 4.

Per Million Hours Worked

The company is also committed to
openly communicate performance in
these areas with the workforce,
governments and the wider community.
As part of this commitment, Woodside
will publish its inaugural Health, Safety
and Environment (HSE) Report in April
2005, detailing its achievements and
challenges for 2004. This report will be
available on request or from the
company’s website
(www.woodside.com.au).

Against its improving performance, it
was disappointing that 69 people were
injured in 2004, with 15 injuries
requiring time off work. Two major
safety workshops with senior managers,
including contractors, were conducted
during 2004 and were followed up by a
targeted safety improvement plan.

Per Million Hours Worked

Woodside is focused on achieving
the highest standards of health,
safety and environmental
performance; and to ensuring the
security of its employees and
operational assets.

00

01

02

03

04

TRCF
LTIF
Data relates to all Woodside employees and
contractors
Adjusted for late incident reporting post year-end
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Operations Technician Steve Lock
onboard the North Rankin platform.

People
and CULTURE
Building a high performance
culture aligned with Woodside’s
strategic objectives.
In an increasingly competitive exploration
and production business, Woodside
continues to build its international
capability and enhancing its focus on
tangible business success. The
Woodside culture is shifting to a broader,
diverse workforce aligned to delivery of
the company’s business aspirations.

Capability
Woodside has a well-developed
Workforce Planning Strategy to
determine the people capability required
over the next five years. The plan
identifies the business areas requiring
increased technical capability or
personnel to support the company’s
business plans.
A targeted development plan for internal
talent and targeted external recruitment
was instigated to meet the identified
needs. Two major international
recruitment campaigns were conducted
during the year, supported by the
development of a dedicated employment
website www.woodsidehiringnow.com.
At the 2004 year-end, Woodside’s total
workforce comprised 2,528 people, up
by 309 people on the previous year due
to growth in Woodside’s Africa business
and projects and development portfolio.
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The group’s turnover rate increased
slightly in 2004, from 6.3% (three-year
rolling average) to 6.4%. Targeted
retention strategies have been
developed and implemented in 2004 to
ensure Woodside retains its ability to
deliver the company’s growth plans.
Diversity with regard to indigenous
employees was reviewed in 2004.
Following this review, a specialist group
was formed to improve Woodside’s
involvement in indigenous matters in
Australia and overseas by providing
employment, training and developing
a stronger relationship with the
indigenous community.

Alignment
During the year, Woodside’s
organisational structure was modified to
provide clear definition of value creation
(the future) and value delivery (the
present) roles throughout the company.
Operational business units were aligned
with Woodside’s geographic focus areas
of the North West Shelf, Australia, Africa
and the United States; while functional
units were defined in exploration,
projects, development, operations and
corporate services.
This matrix structure provides Woodside
with greater flexibility to capture and
execute opportunities as they are
identified and allows the speed of
value delivery to be accelerated.
Business unit reporting metrics and
accountability measures were also more
clearly defined.

Engagement
An employee survey in 2003 indicated
that some employees were not fully
engaged to deliver against the
company’s key objectives. Initiatives
implemented to address this included
increased employee communications,
staff briefings and increased involvement
in decision-making.
Woodside CEO Don Voelte and senior
executives conducted two companywide staff briefings in 2004. These
provided employees at all locations with
stronger insight of the company’s goals,
strategies and objectives and how they
can individually contribute.
Results from a comparative employee
survey in 2004 show positive results
over 2003, including:
• area of “aligned direction”(+16%);
• strong improvement in “vision and
direction” (+25%); and
• improvement in communication
(+7%).
Continued focus to achieve
improvements will be ongoing
through 2005.
Woodside’s employee relations planning
and implementation ensured effective
outcomes in support of continuing the
group’s operational performance and the
successful completion of the NWS
Venture’s LNG Train 4 in Karratha,
Western Australia.

Executive
MANAGEMENT
Don Voelte
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Don joined Woodside in April 2004 as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer. He has 29 years
experience in the global oil and gas business, including 22
years with Mobil Corporation, four years with Atlantic
Richfield Company and most recently as CEO of Chroma
Energy, a private exploration and production company
specialising in proprietary seismic pattern recognition
technology.
Key Accountabilities:
To lead and direct the achievement of Woodside's short,
medium and longer-term business objectives, as agreed
with the Board and within the ruling statutory, legislative
and ethical frameworks, and provide for the longer-term
protection and growth of shareholder investment.
Age: 52

Agu Kantsler
Director Exploration and
New Ventures

Agu was seconded by Shell to Woodside in mid-1995 as
General Manager and then Director of the New Ventures
Business Unit, following 15 years of international
exploration activity with Shell. In 2000, Agu formally joined
Woodside as a permanent employee and was appointed
Director Exploration in 2001.
Key Accountabilities:
To deliver new development and production opportunities
in the company’s focus regions of Australasia and Africa via
successful, low-cost near-field and greenfield exploration;
to support the Gulf of Mexico business; and work to
capture new business opportunities in potential new focus
areas such as the Middle East. Agu is also accountable for
the provision of world-class sub-surface technical services
to the organisation.
Age: 53

Keith Spence
Chief Operating Officer (COO)

David Maxwell
Director Gas & Marketing

Keith joined Woodside in 1998 and was Acting Chief
Executive Officer from September 2003 to April 2004 prior
to being appointed Chief Operating Officer. He was
previously Director Oil Business Unit with more than 25
years experience in the oil and gas industry. Before joining
Woodside, Keith was on secondment from Shell and was
responsible for the NWS Venture's exploration activities.

David joined Woodside in 1996 and was previously Director
of the Gas Business Unit. His prior roles in Woodside
include General Manager Commercial, General Manager
LNG Marketing and General Manager North West Shelf
Gas Pty Ltd. Before joining Woodside, David held senior
management roles with Santos Ltd, The Barrack Group of
companies and CSR Limited.

Key Accountabilities:
To lead and direct the operational and functional business
units to maximise value delivered to Woodside’s
shareholders from the company’s existing businesses and
to develop new reserves.

Key Accountabilities:
To maximise the value of Woodside's gas business,
develop new gas/LNG projects and opportunities and to
manage the marketing of Woodside hydrocarbons. David is
also responsible for managing Woodside's overall gas and
LNG strategy, and greenhouse gas strategy and associated
activities.

Age: 51

Age: 51
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Board
and GOVERNANCE
Encouraging a culture that
promotes ethical and responsible
decision-making throughout the
company.

Corporate Governance
Statement
This statement reports on Woodside’s key
governance principles and practices.
These principles and practices are
reviewed regularly and upgraded or
amended to reflect changes in law and
what is regarded as best practice.

ASX Principles and
Recommendations
In March 2003 the Australian Stock
Exchange Limited (ASX) Corporate
Governance Council released its
Principles of Good Corporate Governance
and Best Practice Recommendations
(ASX Principles). In 2003, Woodside
compared its existing practices with
those described in the ASX Principles and
accompanying best practice
recommendations and determined it
substantially complied with the majority
of the ASX recommendations.
During 2004, the company has
reviewed and updated its policies and
procedures to ensure compliance with
the ASX Principles and associated
recommendations. Details of Woodside’s
compliance are set out below and in the
ASX Principles Compliance Statement
found on pages 42 to 45 of this report
and the corporate governance section of
the company’s website
(www.woodside.com.au).
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Shareholders
Woodside’s shareholders play a
fundamental role in enabling the company
to meet its objectives through the
election or re-election each year of
Directors to the Board and via their
ongoing support as investors in Woodside
shares.
Directors recognise that shareholders, as
the ultimate owners of the company, are
entitled to receive timely and relevant
high quality information about their
investment. Similarly, prospective new
investors are entitled to be able to make
informed investment decisions when
considering the purchase of Woodside
shares.
The Board has approved a Shareholder
Communication Policy which provides
that Woodside will communicate
effectively with its shareholders and will
give shareholders ready access to
balanced and understandable information
about the company and its corporate
proposals.
The ways it will do this include:
• ensuring that published financial and
other statutory reports are prepared in
accordance with applicable laws and
industry best practice;
• ensuring the disclosure of full and
timely information about the
company’s activities in accordance
with the general and continuous
disclosure principles in the ASX Listing
Rules and the Corporations Act in
Australia;

maintaining focus

Contents
Corporate Governance Statement

34

ASX Principles and Recommendations 34
Shareholders

34

Continuous Disclosure and Market
Communications Policy

35

Board Charter

35

Board Composition

36

Directors’ Retirement and Re-election

36

Skills, Knowledge and Experience

36

Board Succession Planning

37

Professional Advice

37

• providing detailed reports from the
Chairman and from the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) at the company’s Annual
General Meeting (AGM);

for market communications. This policy
is described in more detail on page 44 of
this report.

Board Charter

Director Independence

37

• placing all material information
released to the market (including
notices of meeting and explanatory
materials) on the company’s website
as soon as practical following release;

The Board has adopted a formal Board
Charter which details its role, powers,
duties and functions. The central role of
the Board is to set the company’s
strategic direction, to select and appoint
a CEO and to oversee the company’s
management and business activities.

Conflicts of Interest

38

Chairman

38

Company Secretaries

38

Board Performance Evaluation

38

Terms of Appointment, Induction
Training and Continuing Education

38

Powers reserved to the Board include:

Directors’ Remuneration

38

• placing the company’s market
announcements and financial data for
the preceding three years on its
website; and

• the appointment and removal of the
CEO and the Company Secretary;

Securities Ownership and Dealing

38

Codes of Conduct

39

Political Donations

39

• evaluating the use of additional forms
of electronic communication with
shareholders.

• authorising expenditures which
exceed the CEO’s authority levels;

Board Meetings

39

Committees of the Board

39

• approving strategic plans, budgets
and performance objectives;

Audit & Risk Committee

40

• ensuring that notices of meeting,
annual reports and other shareholder
communications are drafted clearly
and concisely;

Continuous Disclosure and Market
Communications Policy
Woodside is committed to ensuring that
shareholders and the market are
provided with full and timely information
and that all stakeholders have equal and
timely access to material information
concerning the company.
The company’s Continuous Disclosure
and Market Communications Policy
and the associated implementation
guidelines reinforce Woodside’s
commitment to continuous disclosure
and outline management’s
accountabilities and the processes
followed for ensuring compliance. It also
describes Woodside’s guiding principles

• authorising equity issues and major
debt raisings;

• approving the appointment and
removal of direct reports to the CEO;
• approving senior management
succession plans;
• approving the acquisition and sale of
significant businesses; and
• approving annual and half year reports
and significant disclosures to the
market.
The Board also recognises its
responsibilities to Woodside’s
employees, the communities and the
environments within which Woodside
operates and, where appropriate, other
stakeholders. Responsibility for
management of Woodside’s business

Governance & Nominations Committee 40
Human Resources &
Compensation Committee

40

External Auditor Relationship

41

Risk Management

41

Management Assurance

41
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Compliance Statement

42

Board of Directors
Profiles

Directors’ Report

46

47

Remuneration Report

48

Concise Financial Report

53
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Table 1 – Names of Directors in office as at the date of this report
Directors

First Appointed

RES Argyle

Non-executive

Independent

Seeking Re-election
at 2005 AGM

1 November 1995

Yes

Yes

No

No

JR Broadbent

17 June 1998

Yes

Yes

No

No

E Fraunschiel

No

1 December 2002

Yes

Yes

No

CB Goode

3 February 1988

Yes

Yes

No

No

A Jamieson

16 February 2005

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

PJMH Jungels

1 December 2002

Yes

Yes

No

No

PJB Rose

6 December 1990

Yes

Yes

No

No

PM van Rossum

15 April 2004

Yes

No

No

No

DR Voelte

5 April 2004

No

No

No

No

TN Warren

15 July 2002

Yes

No

No

No

activities is delegated to the CEO who is
accountable to the Board.
Because of the uncertainties of the oil
and gas business and the need to
replace depleting assets, the Board
places significant emphasis on longrange planning, as well as participation in
joint ventures to share risks. To achieve
these objectives, management is
expected to engage in commercial
relations with others in a manner that
will continue to make Woodside their
“partner of choice”.

Board Composition
The names of the Directors in office at
the date of this report, the date they
were first appointed, their status as nonexecutive, independent or executive
Directors and whether they are retiring
by rotation and seeking re-election or are
newly appointed Directors seeking
election by shareholders at the 2005
AGM, are set out in Table 1 above.
Biographical details for each Director are
set out on page 46 of this report. As
foreshadowed in last year’s annual
report, Mr Richard Searby and Mr Ken
Dean retired at the 2004 AGM. Shell
Energy Holdings Australia Limited’s
(Shell) nominee to replace Mr Dean,
Mr Peter van Rossum, was elected by
shareholders at that meeting.

The only other changes to the Board
were:
• the appointment of Mr Donald Voelte
as Managing Director at the same
time as his commencement as
Woodside CEO; and
• the retirement of Mr Peter de Wit, a
Shell-nominated non-executive
Director, with effect from 15 February
2005 and his replacement on the
Board by Mr Andrew Jamieson, as a
Shell-nominated non-executive
Director on 16 February 2005. Mr
Jamieson will retire at the 2005 AGM
and will make himself available for
election by shareholders at that
meeting. Mr Jamieson’s biographical
details will be included in the 2005
Notice of Annual General Meeting.
The number of non-executive Directors
reduced during the year from 10 to the
preferred number of nine.

Directors’ Retirement
and Re-election
Non-executive Directors must retire at
the third AGM following their election or
most recent re-election. At least one
non-executive Director must stand for
election at each AGM. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy since
the date of the previous AGM must
submit themselves to shareholders for
election at the next AGM.
Re-appointment of Directors retiring by
rotation is not automatic. All Directors
are subject to an annual performance
evaluation in accordance with the
evaluation process described on page 38
of this report.
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Retiring at
2005 AGM

Skills, Knowledge and Experience
The Board considers that between them
the non-executive Directors, including
those offering themselves for election at
the forthcoming AGM, bring the range of
skills, knowledge and experience
necessary to direct the company.
In assessing the composition of the
Board, the Directors have regard to the
following policy:
• the Chairman should be
non-executive, independent and an
Australian citizen or permanent
resident;
• the CEO should be a full-time
employee of the company;
• more than half of the Board should
comprise Directors who are both
non-executive and independent;
• the Board should represent a broad
range of qualifications, experience
and expertise considered of benefit
to the company; and
• the number of Shell-nominated
Directors, as a proportion of the
Board, should normally be in the
proportion that Shell’s holding of fully
paid ordinary shares in the company
bears to all of the issued fully paid
ordinary shares in the company.

Board Succession Planning
The Board manages its succession plan
with the assistance of the Governance &
Nominations Committee.
The committee reviews annually the size
and composition of the Board and the
mix of existing and desired
competencies across members and
reports its conclusions to the Board.
The Board may engage an independent
recruitment organisation to undertake a
search for suitable candidates.
Criteria considered by the Governance &
Nominations Committee when
evaluating prospective candidates are
contained in the committee’s charter,
which is available in the corporate
governance section of the company’s
website.

Professional Advice
Directors may, in carrying out their
duties to the company, seek external
professional advice. They are entitled to
reimbursement of all reasonable costs
where such request for advice is
approved by the Chairman. In the case
of a request made by the Chairman,
approval is required by the Chairman of
the Governance & Nominations
Committee.

Director Independence
The Board has approved a Policy on
Independence of Directors, a copy of
which is available in the corporate
governance section of the company’s
website.
The purpose of this policy is to:
• describe the test that will be used
and the criteria that will be taken into
account by the Board when assessing
the independence of each Director;
• identify the information that will be
collected from each Director to make
the assessment of independence;
and
• outline the disclosure to shareholders
of the assessment of independence
of Directors, including the disclosure
of any relationships and associations
that may be perceived to affect the
independence or objectivity of a
Director.

The policy provides that the
independence of a Director will be
assessed by determining whether the
Director is independent of management
and free of any business or other
relationship that could materially
interfere with, or could reasonably be
perceived to materially interfere with, the
exercise of their unfettered and
independent judgement.
The test of whether a relationship or
business is material is based on the
nature of the relationship or business
and on the circumstances and activities
of the Director. Materiality is considered
from the perspective of the company
and its group members, the persons or
organisations with which the Director
has an affiliation and from the
perspective of the Director. Materiality
thresholds are considered by the Board
from time to time. The Board considers
that:
• a material customer is a customer of
the company or the group member
which accounts for more than 2% of
the company’s consolidated gross
revenue;
• a supplier is material if the company
or the group accounts for more than
2% of the supplier’s consolidated
gross revenue; and
• service on the Board for a period
exceeding 10 years is a period which
could, or could reasonably be
perceived to, materially interfere with
a Director’s ability to act in the best
interests of the company.
In the event that one or more of these
thresholds is exceeded, the Board then
focuses on whether or not in their view
that exceedence impacts materially on
the independence of judgement of the
Director.
The Board has considered the
associations of each of the nine nonexecutive Directors in office at the date
of this report and its determination in
relation to their independence is set out
in Table 1 on page 36.
The three non-executive Directors not
considered to be independent are
current executives or nominees of Shell,
which is a substantial shareholder of the
company. In most years, the number of
decisions the Board makes on matters

where the three Shell-nominated
Directors are considered to have a
conflict of interest is few. Such matters
are dealt with under the Board’s Conflict
of Interest Guidelines.
For the vast majority of decisions made
by the Board, the three Shell-nominated
Directors bring substantial global oil and
gas industry expertise to the Board. The
Board considers that the value of this
expertise far outweighs any issues
associated with their not having
“independent Director” status.
None of the non-executive Directors are
considered to have business or other
relationships that could materially
interfere with, or could reasonably be
perceived to materially interfere with, the
exercise of their independent judgement,
except in the case of the three Shellnominees in matters where Shell may
have an interest. Apart from Mr
Jamieson, who was seconded to
Woodside as General Manager North
West Shelf Ventures from 1997 to 1999,
none of non-executive Directors have
ever been employed by Woodside.
Two non-executive Directors have served
as members of the Board for periods in
excess of 10 years, namely, Mr Charles
Goode (17 years) and Dr John Rose
(14 years). The Board has concluded that
notwithstanding these periods of
service, both Directors retain their
independence.
Mr Fraunschiel serves on the Board
of WorleyParsons Limited, a supplier
of engineering services to Woodside.
The value of services provided by
WorleyParsons Limited to Woodside
in 2004 exceeded the Board’s materiality
threshold relating to suppliers. Dr
Jungels serves on the Board of Offshore
Logistics Inc. The value of services
provided by members of the Offshore
Logistics group of companies to
Woodside in 2004 also exceeded the
Board’s materiality threshold relating to
suppliers. The Board is satisfied that
neither Mr Fraunschiel’s nor Dr Jungels’
independence is affected. Should a
matter involving either WorleyParsons
Limited or Offshore Logistics Inc. come
before the Board, the Conflict of Interest
Guidelines would apply.
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Certain non-executive Directors hold
directorships or executive positions in
companies with which Woodside has
commercial relationships. Details of
other directorships and executive
positions held by non-executive Directors
are set out on page 46 of this report.

Conflicts of Interest
The Board has approved Conflict of
Interest Guidelines which apply if
there is, or may be, a conflict between
the personal or other interests of a
Director and the business of Woodside.
A Director with an actual or potential
conflict of interest in relation to a matter
before the Board does not receive the
Board papers relating to that matter and
when the matter comes before the
Board for discussion, the Director
withdraws from the meeting for the
period the matter is considered and
takes no part in the discussions or
decision-making process.
Minutes reporting on matters in which a
Director is considered to have a conflict
of interest are not provided to that
Director. However, the Director is given
notice of the nature of the matter for
discussion and, as much as practicable,
of the general nature of the discussion
or decision reached.

Chairman
The Chairman of the Board, Mr Charles
Goode, is an independent, non-executive
Director and a resident Australian citizen.
The Chairman is responsible for
leadership of the Board, for the efficient
organisation and conduct of the Board’s
function and for the promotion of
relations between Board members and
between Board and management that
are open, cordial and conducive to
productive co-operation. The Chairman’s
responsibilities are set out in more detail
in the Board Charter.
Mr Goode is also Chairman of Australia
and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
(ANZ). The Board considers that neither
his Chairmanship of ANZ, nor any of his
other commitments (listed on page 46
of this report), interfere with the
discharge of his duties to Woodside.
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The Board is satisfied that he commits
the time necessary to discharge his
role effectively.

Company Secretaries
Woodside’s Company Secretaries are
Ms Frances Kernot and Mr David Martin.
The qualifications and experience of each
Company Secretary are set out on page
47. The appointment and removal of a
Company Secretary is a matter for
decision by the Board. The Company
Secretaries are responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are complied with
and that governance matters are
addressed, and are set out in more detail
in the Board Charter. All Directors have
access to the Company Secretaries’
advice and services.

Board Performance Evaluation
The Governance & Nominations
Committee is responsible for
determining the process for evaluating
Board performance. Evaluations are
conducted every year. The performances
of the Board as a whole and each of its
committees are reviewed against the
requirements of their respective
charters. In addition, the individual
performances of the Chairman, the CEO,
and the Directors are also reviewed.
These annual evaluations have produced
continuing improvements in Board
processes and overall efficiency.
The Chairman’s performance is reviewed
annually and feedback provided to the
Chairman through a written report
followed up by discussion with members
of the Governance & Nominations
Committee.
Individual Directors’ performance
reports are provided to the individuals
and copied to the Chairman. The
performance of each Director retiring at
the next AGM is taken into account by
the Chairman of the Board when
discussing with the Governance &
Nominations Committee the committee’s
recommendation as to whether or not
the Board should support the
re-election of the Director.
The Human Resources & Compensation
Committee reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on the
criteria for, and the evaluation of, the
performance of the CEO.

Terms of Appointment, Induction
Training and Continuing Education
All new Directors are provided with a
form of letter of appointment setting out
the key terms and conditions relative to
the appointment, including duties, rights
and responsibilities, the time
commitment envisaged and the Board’s
expectations regarding their involvement
with committee work.
Induction training is provided to all new
Directors. It includes a comprehensive
induction manual, meetings with the
CEO and key executives, information on
key corporate and Board policies and the
option to visit the company’s principal
operations either immediately on
appointment or with the Board during its
next inspection tour.
All Directors are expected to maintain
the skills required to discharge their
obligations to the company. Directors
are encouraged to undertake continuing
professional education and where this
involves industry seminars and approved
education courses, this is paid for by the
company where appropriate. In addition,
the company provides the Board with
regular educational information papers
and presentations on industry-related
matters and new developments with
potential to impact the company.
The Directors regularly conduct tours of
inspection of Woodside’s sites and
operations. During these tours,
Directors meet directly with the
company’s operational staff, review
health, safety and environmental
performance and consider the progress
of major new projects.

Directors’ Remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to Directors
(executive and non-executive) are set out
on pages 50 and 51 of this report.

Securities Ownership and Dealing
The company has a Securities Dealing
Policy which is binding on all Directors
and employees. The purpose of this
policy is to provide a brief summary of
the law on insider trading and other
relevant laws, set out the restrictions on
dealing in securities by people who work
for or are associated with Woodside and
assist in maintaining market confidence
in the integrity of dealings in Woodside
securities.

The policy stipulates that the only
appropriate time for a Director or
employee to deal in Woodside securities
is when he or she is not in possession of
price sensitive information that is not
generally available to the market.
Directors wishing to deal in Woodside
securities may only do so after first
having advised the Chairman of his or
her intention. Key executives must first
notify the CEO. Confirmation of any
dealing must also be given by the
Director or key executive within two
business days after the dealing. In the
case of other employees, there is no
notification requirement.
Non-executive Directors who are not
Shell-nominees may elect to participate
in the Non-Executive Directors’ Share
Plan approved by shareholders at the
2000 AGM. On-market purchases as a
result of such elections are made at predetermined intervals, but only after
Directors have determined they are not
in possession of price sensitive
information that has not been released
to the market.
Similarly for purchases made for
employees under the Woodside
employee share plans, any employees in
possession of price sensitive information
that has not been released to the market
are not permitted to participate under
the plans until such time as the
information has either been disclosed to
the market or it has ceased to be price
sensitive.
Any securities dealing by Directors is
notified to the ASX within five business
days of the dealing.

Codes of Conduct
The Board has approved a Code of
Conduct for Directors and Key
Executives which describes the
standards of ethical behaviour that
Directors and key executives are
required to maintain. A summary of this
code is available in the corporate
governance section of the company’s
website.
The Board has also approved a Corporate
Code of Conduct which has been
designed to demonstrate and codify
Woodside’s commitment to appropriate
and ethical corporate practices.
Compliance with the Corporate Code of

Conduct by Woodside’s Directors and
employees will also assist the company
in effectively managing its operating risks
and meeting its legal and compliance
obligations, as well as enhancing
Woodside’s corporate reputation.
The Corporate Code of Conduct
describes Woodside’s mission and
vision, together with the business
principles approved by the Board. It also
summarises Woodside’s policies on
matters such as confidentiality, conflicts
of interest, sound employment practices,
compliance with laws and regulations
and the protection and proper use of
Woodside’s assets. A summary of the
main provisions of the Corporate Code
of Conduct is available in the corporate
governance section of Woodside’s
website.
The Board has also approved a
Whistleblower Policy which documents
Woodside’s commitment to maintaining
an open working environment in which
employees and contractors are able to
report instances of unethical, unlawful or
undesirable conduct without fear of
intimidation or reprisal.
The purpose of the Whistleblower Policy
is to:

The Chairman sets the agenda for each
meeting in conjunction with the CEO
and the Company Secretary. Any
Director may request additional matters
be added to the agenda. Members of
senior management attend meetings of
the Board by invitation, but sessions are
also scheduled at each formal Board
meeting for non-executive Directors to
meet without management present.
Copies of Board papers are circulated in
advance of the meetings in either
electronic or hard copy form. Directors
are entitled to request additional
information where they consider the
information is necessary to support
informed decision-making.
The Board works to an annual agenda
encompassing periodic reviews of the
company’s operating business units,
recurring statutory obligations, business
approvals and other responsibilities
identified in the Board Charter.

Committees of the Board
The Board has established three
standing committees to assist in the
discharge of its responsibilities. These
are the:
• Audit & Risk Committee;

• help detect and address unacceptable
conduct;

• Governance & Nominations
Committee; and

• help provide employees and
contractors with a supportive working
environment in which they feel able
to raise issues of legitimate concern
to them and to Woodside;

• Human Resources & Compensation
Committee (formerly called
Compensation Committee).

• provide an external helpline which can
be used for reporting unacceptable
conduct; and
• help protect people who report
unacceptable conduct in good faith.

Political Donations
The Board’s policy is not to donate funds
to any political party, politician, or
candidate for public office in any country.

Board Meetings
During the year ended 31 December
2004, the Board held six scheduled
meetings and one unscheduled meeting.
Generally, scheduled meetings run for
one to two days. Details of Directors’
attendance at these meetings are set
out in Table 2 on page 40 of this report.

Each of the standing committees has its
own charter which describes its role and
duties. The office of the Company
Secretary provides secretariat services
for each committee.
All papers considered by the standing
committees are available on request to
Directors not on that committee.
Minutes of all standing committee
meetings are provided to all Directors
and the proceedings of each meeting are
reported by the Chairman of the
committee at the next Board meeting.
All Directors may, through the Chairman
of the committee, recommend the
inclusion of specific topics on committee
agendas.
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Table 2 – Directors’ attendances at meetings
Directors

Board
A

B

Audit & Risk
A

B

CB Goode

7

7

6

54

RES Argyle

7

7

6

6

JR Broadbent

7

7

6

5

KA Dean

2

1

1

1

BPT de Wit

7

7

E Fraunschiel

7

63

6

6

PJMH Jungels

7

7

PJB Rose

7

63

RH Searby

2

2

P van Rossum

5

5

5

5

DR Voelte1

5

5

5

54

7

53

TN Warren

Human Resources
& Compensation

Governance &
Nominations

Shell
Relationship

Other2

A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

10

74

6

6

6

6

1

1

6

6

6

6

6

6

1

1

10

10

10

10

6

14

6

6

6

44

5

44

10

10

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

1

1

5

5

Column A indicates the number of meetings held during the period of each Director’s tenure
Column B indicates the number of those meetings attended by the Director
Note 1: The Managing Director and CEO attends all committee meetings as an invitee unless there are items of conflict
Note 2: Accounts Approvals Committee
Note 3: Directors unable to attend one Board meeting called at short notice
Note 4: Indicates attended the meetings at the invitation of the committee

Ad hoc committees are convened from
time to time to address major
transactions or other matters calling for
special attention.
The term of the Shell Relationship
Committee, formed as an ad hoc
committee in August 2000, has been
extended to June 2005. Its members
comprise all of the Directors that are not
nominated by Shell. The purpose of the
committee is to provide a forum in which
Directors can discuss, in the absence of
Shell-nominated Directors, any matters
relating to the ongoing relationship
with Shell.
The number of committee meetings held
during the year, and members’
attendances at these meetings, is set
out in Table 2 above.

and the external auditors, the internal
auditors and the management of
Woodside.
The committee’s charter, detailing
its duties, is available in the corporate
governance section of the company’s
website.
Members of the Audit & Risk Committee
are Mr E Fraunschiel (Chairman),
Mr RES Argyle, Ms JR Broadbent and
Mr PM van Rossum. The external
auditors, the CEO, the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), the Group Financial
Controller and the Audit & Business Risk
Manager attend committee meetings by
invitation. The committee meets with
the external auditors at regular
scheduled sessions without
management present. The committee
met six times during the year.

Audit & Risk Committee
The role of the Audit & Risk Committee
is to assist the Board to meet its
oversight responsibilities in relation to
the company’s financial reporting,
internal control structure, risk
management procedures and the
internal and external audit function.
In doing so, it is the committee’s
responsibility to maintain free and open
communication between the committee

40

Governance & Nominations
Committee
The role of the Governance &
Nominations Committee is to assist
the Board to meet its oversight
responsibilities in relation to the
company’s governance practices and
to review Board composition and
Board succession planning.

The committee’s charter, detailing its
duties, is available in the corporate
governance section of Woodside’s
website.
Members of the Governance &
Nominations Committee are Mr RES
Argyle (Chairman), Mr CB Goode,
Dr PJB Rose and Mr TN Warren.
The CEO and the General Counsel
attend committee meetings by
invitation. The committee met six times
during the year.

Human Resources &
Compensation Committee
The role of the Human Resources &
Compensation Committee is to assist
the Board in establishing policies and
practices which:
• enable Woodside to attract talented
Directors and to attract, retain and
motivate employees who achieve
operational excellence and create
value for shareholders;
• reward employees fairly and
responsibly, regard being had to
the company’s results of the
Woodside group, individual
performance and general
remuneration conditions;

• reflect best practice in people
development while meeting
Woodside’s business needs; and
• comply with the ASX Listing Rules
and the Corporations Act in Australia.
The committee’s charter, detailing its
duties, is available in the corporate
governance section of the company’s
website.
Members of the Human Resources &
Compensation Committee are Dr PJB
Rose (Chairman), Ms JR Broadbent and
Mr TN Warren. The CEO and the
Director Human Resources attend
committee meetings by invitation.
The committee met 10 times during the
year on a formal basis and one additional
time for a workshop with external
consultants.

The services considered not acceptable
for provision by the external auditor are:
• internal audit;
• acquisition accounting due diligence
where the external auditor is also the
auditor of the other party;
• book-keeping or services relating to
accounting records;
• the design, implementation, operation
or supervision of information
technology systems;
• mergers and acquisitions support
where the external auditor is also
auditor of the other party;
• appraisal or valuation and fairness
opinions;
• risk management
outsourcing/partnering;
• financial risk management;

External Auditor Relationship
Pursuant to the External Auditor Policy,
the Audit & Risk Committee oversees
detailed External Auditor Guidelines
covering the terms of engagement
of Woodside’s external auditor. The
guidelines include provisions directed to
maintaining the independence of the
external auditor and in assessing
whether the provision of any non-audit
service by the external auditor that may
be proposed is appropriate. Such
provisions are referenced to the Code of
Ethics published by the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC).
The External Auditor Guidelines contain a
set of controls which address threats to
the independence of the external auditor
including, in particular, any threat which
may arise by reason of self-interest, selfreview, advocacy, familiarity or
intimidation (all terms defined by the
IFAC’s Code of Ethics). The External
Auditor Guidelines classify a range of
non-audit services which could
potentially be provided by the external
auditor as:
• acceptable within limits;
• requiring the approval of the CFO;
• requiring the approval of the Audit &
Risk Committee; or
• not acceptable.

• taxation transactions/structuring or
assistance in resolution of disputes;
• human resources;
• corporate financing, funding or similar
activities; or

These business plans are discussed at
regular leadership performance reviews
and each business unit must report
annually on the application and
effectiveness of the risk management
process within the business unit.
A description of Woodside’s risk profile is
available in the corporate governance
section of the company’s website.
The Audit & Risk Committee oversees
the scope of the internal audit function,
approves the appointment and dismissal
of the Audit & Business Risk Manager
and has access to the internal audit
function without the presence of other
management. The company’s internal
audit function provides reports to the
Audit & Risk Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk-based control
framework in the company. Woodside’s
internal audit function reports to
management and has all necessary
access to management and information.
The internal and external audit functions
are separate and independent of
each other.

• legal services.

Management Assurance

Further, the External Auditor Guidelines
require rotation of the audit and review
partner at least every five years, prohibit
the reinvolvement of a previous audit or
review partner in the audit service for
two years following rotation, and provide
that a former partner of the audit firm or
member of the audit team may only be
recruited into a position as a Director or
senior employee of Woodside after the
expiry of at least two years.

Consistent with ASX Recommendation
7.2, the CEO and the Acting CFO have
stated in writing to the Board that the
company’s financial reports present a
true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the company’s financial
condition and operational results and are
in accordance with relevant accounting
standards.

Risk Management
Through the Audit & Risk Committee,
the Board is responsible for overseeing
the implementation of the company’s
Enterprise Risk and Internal Control
Policy.
The company has, embedded in its
management systems, a comprehensive
program for the identification and
assessment of risks and for their
systematic management. This process is
based on the COSO control framework
for enterprise risk management. Every
business unit, corporate function and
significant project initiative has a risk
management section within its annual
business plan.

The CEO and the Acting CFO have also
stated in writing to the Board that the
statement they have given relating to the
integrity of the company’s financial
statements and notes is founded on a
sound system of risk management and
internal compliance and control which
implements the policies approved by the
Board, and that Woodside’s risk
management and internal compliance
and control systems, to the extent they
relate to financial reporting, are operating
reliably in all material respects.

Woodside Petroleum Ltd. | Concise Annual Report 2004

41

ASX Principles
Compliance Statement
This ASX Principles Compliance
Statement provides a description of the
manner in which Woodside complies
with the ASX Principles and associated
recommendations. A more detailed
compliance statement is also available in
the corporate governance section of the
company’s website
(www.woodside.com.au).

Principle 1 - Lay solid foundations
for management and oversight
ASX Principle 1 states that a company
should “recognise and publish the
respective roles and responsibilities of
board and management”. Woodside
complies with this principle and
associated recommendations in the
following manner.

Board Charter
The Board Charter sets out, amongst
other things, the functions and
responsibilities of:
• the Board;
• the Chairman of the Board;
• the Woodside non-executive Directors
collectively; and
• the individual non-executive Directors.
Other than as specifically reserved to the
Board in the Board Charter, responsibility
for the management of Woodside’s
business has been formally delegated
to the Managing Director and CEO. The
Board Charter and the delegation of
Board authority to the CEO are reviewed
regularly.

Director appointment letters
Each new non-executive Director is
required to sign and return a letter of
appointment which sets out the key
terms of the Director’s appointment.
The content of the letters of
appointment for new non-executive
Directors is consistent with the ASX
Principles.
Woodside also enters into formal
employment contracts with the CEO and
the CFO which describe, amongst other
things, their terms of office, duties,
rights, responsibilities and entitlements
on termination.
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Reporting on ASX Principle 1
A copy of the Woodside Board Charter is
available in the corporate governance
section of the company’s website.

Principle 2 - Structure the Board to
add value
ASX Principle 2 states that a company
should “have a board of an effective
composition, size and commitment to
adequately discharge its responsibilities
and duties”. Woodside complies with
this principle and associated
recommendations in the following
manner.

The Governance & Nominations
Committee
The Board Charter provides for the
establishment of a Governance &
Nominations Committee. The Board has
approved a Governance & Nominations
Committee Charter which sets out the
committee’s role and responsibilities,
composition, structure and membership
requirements.

Assessment of Director
independence
The Board Charter requires that more
than half of the Board should comprise
Directors who are non-executive and
independent. The independence of a
Director is determined in accordance
with Woodside’s Policy on Independence
of Directors, which is described in
the Corporate Governance Statement
contained on pages 34 to 41 of
this report.
The Governance & Nominations
Committee reviews the independence of
the Directors prior to their appointment
and annually with reference to:
• the requirements of, and the
materiality thresholds set out in, the
Policy on Independence of Directors;
• the Directors’ standing notices of
material personal interests and
Woodside’s relationship with any
people or organisations disclosed in
those standing notices; and
• any other relevant information.
The Governance & Nominations
Committee makes a recommendation to
the Board on Directors’ independence.

At or before the December Board
meeting each year, the Board:
• considers the recommendation of the
Governance & Nominations
Committee regarding independence
of Directors;
• considers whether any exceedance of
materiality thresholds has or could
reasonably be perceived to interfere
materially with the independent
judgement of a Director; and
• determines the independence status
of its Directors.

Disclosure of independence
The Board has made the following
disclosure to shareholders in the
Corporate Governance Statement in this
annual report:
• the independence or otherwise of
each Director and the basis of the
assessment of independence;
• a specific explanation of any
assessment of independence for a
Director who does not meet the
independence criteria contained in
the Policy on Independence of
Directors;
• material relationships, associations
and other business of each Director,
including details of any relationships
or circumstances which the Board
believes do not affect independence
but which could be perceived as
influencing the Director’s judgement,
objectivity or ability to act in the best
interests of Woodside;
• the period of office held by each
Director; and
• the materiality thresholds adopted by
the Board to assist in the assessment
and determination of independence.
The independence status of Directors
standing for election or re-election will
also be identified in the notice of AGM.
If the Board’s assessment of a Director’s
independence changes, that change will
be disclosed immediately through ASX
announcement.

Independent decision-making
The Board has agreed a procedure under
which Directors are entitled to obtain
independent legal, accounting or other
professional advice at Woodside’s
expense.

The Chairman

• other directorships held;

Securities Dealing Policy

As required by the Board Charter, the
Chairman of the Board is an
independent, non-executive Director and
a resident Australian citizen. The
positions of Chairman and CEO are not
filled by the same person.

• particulars of other positions which
involve significant time commitments;

Board composition

Non-executive Directors are elected by
shareholders for a three-year term and
should, prior to the conclusion of that
term, declare their availability or
otherwise for a further term. As
previously mentioned, Board support for
a Director’s re-election is not automatic
and is subject to satisfactory Director
performance (as evidenced in the
Director’s individual performance
evaluation report) and the continuing
satisfaction of the selection criteria and
other requirements of the Board and the
Governance & Nominations Committee.

The Board has approved a Securities
Dealing Policy which sets out a brief
summary of the law on insider trading
and other relevant laws and sets out the
restrictions on dealing in securities by
people who work for or are associated
with Woodside.

It is the Board’s current view that the
appropriate composition of the Board is
nine non-executive Directors and the
CEO. This number may be increased
(providing it does not exceed 15) where
it is felt that additional expertise is
required in specific areas, or where an
outstanding candidate is identified.
Where the Board has more than nine
non-executive Directors it is the intention
of the Board to return the number to
nine upon the retirement or resignation
of the next independent Director, subject
to the resulting composition continuing
to satisfy Board policy.

Selection of new Directors
The Governance & Nominations
Committee is responsible for evaluating
Board candidates and recommending
individuals for appointment to the Board.
Suitable nominees may be appointed by
the Board subject to shareholder election
at the next AGM.
Prior to appointment, preferred
candidates must disclose to the
Chairman the nature and extent of their
other appointments and activities.
Candidates must also demonstrate that
they understand what is expected of
them and confirm that they are willing to
make the necessary commitments, and
will have available the time required,
to discharge their responsibilities
as a Director.

Shareholder election of Directors
All Directors seeking election by
shareholders must agree to submit the
following details for inclusion in the
relevant notice of meeting:
• biographical details, including
competencies and qualifications, and
information sufficient to enable
assessment of the independence of
the Director;
• details of relationships between the
candidate and Woodside and the
candidate and the Directors of
Woodside;

• the term of office currently served by
any Director seeking re-election; and
• any other particulars required by law.

Director competencies and
succession planning

Conflict of Interest Guidelines
The Board has approved guidelines for
the determination of conflicts.

Reporting on ASX Principle 3
A summary of the main provisions of the
Code of Conduct for Directors and Key
Executives and the main provisions of
the Securities Dealing Policy are available
in the corporate governance section of
the company’s website.

Principle 4 – Safeguard integrity in
financial reporting

Board succession is reviewed each year
by the Governance & Nominations
Committee.

ASX Principle 4 states that a company
should “have a structure to
independently verify and safeguard the
integrity of the company’s financial
reporting”. Woodside complies with this
principle and associated
recommendations in the following
manner.

Reporting on ASX Principle 2

Financial Reporting Policy

A copy of the Governance &
Nominations Committee Charter and a
description of Woodside’s procedure for
the selection and appointment of new
Directors is available in the corporate
governance section of the company’s
website.

The Board has approved a Financial
Reporting Policy which is designed to
ensure the presentation of a true and fair
view of Woodside’s financial position.
The Financial Reporting Policy requires
the CEO and the CFO to state in writing
to the Board that Woodside’s financial
statements and notes:

The Governance & Nominations
Committee has a process for identifying
and assessing Director competencies.

Principle 3 – Promote ethical and
responsible decision making
ASX Principle 3 states that a company
should “actively promote ethical and
responsible decision-making”. Woodside
complies with this principle and
associated recommendations in the
following manner.

• have been maintained properly in
accordance with the Corporations Act
2001;
• are in accordance with relevant
accounting standards; and
• present a true and fair view, in all
material respects, of Woodside’s
financial position and performance.

Code of Conduct for Directors and
Key Executives

Audit & Risk Committee

The Board has approved a Code of
Conduct for Directors and Key
Executives which describes the
standards of ethical behaviour that
Directors and key executives are
required to maintain.

The Board Charter provides for the
establishment of an Audit & Risk
Committee. The Board has approved an
Audit & Risk Committee Charter which
sets out the committee’s role and
responsibilities, composition, structure
and membership requirements.
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External auditor relationship

Commentary on financial results

The Audit & Risk Committee also
oversees the Board’s External Auditor
Policy and detailed Auditor Independence
Guidelines which address the terms of
engagement of Woodside’s external
auditor.

Woodside’s Statement of Financial
Reporting Integrity requires the inclusion
of commentary on Woodside’s financial
results to enhance the clarity and
balance of Woodside’s reporting.
This commentary includes information
needed by an investor to make an
informed assessment of Woodside’s
activities and results.

Reporting on ASX Principle 4
A copy of the Audit & Risk Committee
Charter and information on the
procedures for the selection and
appointment of the external auditor and
for the rotation of external audit
engagement partners are available in the
corporate governance section of the
company’s website.

Principle 5 - Make timely and
balanced disclosure
ASX Principle 5 states that a company
should “promote timely and balanced
disclosure of all material matters
concerning the company”. Woodside
complies with this ASX Principle and
associated recommendations in the
following manner.

Reporting on ASX Principle 5
A copy of the Continuous Disclosure and
Market Communications Policy is
available in the corporate governance
section of the company’s website.

Principle 6 - Respect the rights of
shareholders
ASX Principle 6 states that a company
should “respect the rights of
shareholders and facilitate the effective
exercise of those rights”. Woodside
complies with this ASX Principle and
associated recommendations in the
following manner.

Shareholder communication
Continuous disclosure
Woodside is committed to ensuring that
shareholders, other stakeholders and the
market are provided with full and timely
information concerning the company. In
this regard the Board has approved a
Continuous Disclosure and Market
Communications Policy which is
designed to:
• record and communicate the
company’s commitment to
continuous disclosure;
• outline the processes followed by the
company to ensure compliance with
its disclosure obligations; and
• outline the corporate governance
standards applied by the company in
its market communications practices.
Woodside has also introduced
Implementation Guidelines for the
Continuous Disclosure and Market
Communications Policy which describe
in more detail the methods by which
Woodside and its employees can ensure
compliance with the Continuous
Disclosure and Market Communications
Policy.
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The Board has approved a Shareholder
Communication Policy which provides,
amongst other things, that:
• Woodside will communicate
effectively with its shareholders and
will give shareholders ready access to
balanced and understandable
information about Woodside and its
corporate proposals; and
• Woodside recognises the importance
of shareholder participation in general
meetings and supports and
encourages that participation.

Auditor attendance at AGMs
The Shareholder Communication Policy
also provides that the company’s
external auditors are required to attend
the company’s AGMs and be available to
answer shareholder questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report.

Reporting on ASX Principle 6
A description of the arrangements
Woodside has in place to promote
communication with shareholders is
available in the corporate governance
section of the company’s website.

Principle 7 - Recognise and
manage risk
ASX Principle 7 states that a company
should “establish a sound system of
risk oversight and management and
internal control”. Woodside complies
with this principle and associated
recommendations in the
following manner.

Policy on risk oversight and
management and internal control
The Board has approved an Enterprise
Risk and Internal Control Policy which
describes the manner in which Woodside
ensures a sound system of risk oversight
and management and internal control.
This policy is implemented within
Woodside by:
• establishing and implementing across
the group a formal risk management
and internal control process;
• identifying from this risk management
and internal control process specific
project, business unit and corporate
risks which may impact upon the
group;
• regularly monitoring and assessing
the performance and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal
control process;
• ensuring the risk management and
internal control process is overseen
by the Audit & Risk Committee; and
• requiring the CEO and the CFO to
certify to the Board that Woodside’s
risk management and internal control
system is operating efficiently and
effectively in all material respects.

CEO and CFO certification of risk
management and internal
compliance and controls
As discussed above, the Enterprise Risk
and Internal Control Policy requires
Woodside’s CEO and CFO to state to the
Board in writing that:
• the statement given by the CEO and
the CFO relating to the integrity of
the Woodside financial statements is
founded on a sound system of risk
management and internal compliance
and control which implements the
policies approved by the Board; and

• Woodside’s risk management and
internal compliance and control
system is operating efficiently and
effectively in all material respects.

Reporting on ASX Principle 7
A description of Woodside’s risk profile,
risk management policy and internal
compliance and control system is
available in the corporate governance
section of the company’s website.

Principle 8 - Encourage enhanced
performance
ASX Principle 8 states that a company
should “fairly review and actively
encourage enhanced board and
management effectiveness”. Woodside
complies with this ASX Principle and
associated recommendations in the
following manner.

Performance evaluations
In accordance with the Board Charter
and the Governance & Nominations
Committee Charter, the Board (with the
assistance of the Governance &
Nominations Committee) conducts the
following annual reviews:
• Board performance against the
requirements of the Board Charter;
• Committee performances against
their respective charters;
• the performance of the Chairman,
both as a Chairman and as an
individual member of the Board;
• Board composition against a matrix of
desired competencies across all
Board members, with the Board
forming a view as to whether or not it
has (with the Director or Directors
next coming up for re-election) the
requisite balance of skills, knowledge
and experience to direct Woodside
going forward;
• the performance of the individual
Directors against criteria determined
by the Governance & Nominations
Committee;
• the independence of Directors; and
• the performance of the CEO against
criteria set by the Board.

Induction and continuing
education
Details of the induction training available
to all new Directors is described on page
38 of this report. Details of Directors’
continuing education are discussed on
page 38 of this report.

Reporting on ASX Principle 8
A description of Woodside’s process for
performance evaluation of the Board, its
committees and individual directors and
key executives is available in the
corporate governance section of the
company’s website.

Principle 9 - Remunerate fairly and
responsibly
ASX Principle 9 states that a company
should “ensure that the level and
composition of remuneration is sufficient
and reasonable and that its relationship
to corporate and individual performance
is defined”. Woodside complies with this
principle and associated
recommendations in the following
manner.

Director and Key Executive
remuneration
Woodside has developed an
Executive Remuneration Policy and a
Non-executive Director Remuneration
Policy which set out Woodside’s position
with regard to remunerating Directors
and key executives. These policies
require, amongst other things:
• full disclosure to investors of
Woodside’s remuneration policies;
• the structure of key executive
remuneration to be distinguished
from the remuneration of nonexecutive Directors;
• that the payment of equity-based
remuneration be made in accordance
with thresholds approved by
shareholders; and
• compliance with the ASX Principles
with regard to remuneration and the
inclusion in the Woodside annual
report of a description of any
departures from ASX Principle 9.

Woodside will also disclose to the
market, through the ASX, a summary of
the main terms of any new employment
agreement with the CEO, including
termination entitlements.

Human Resources &
Compensation Committee
The Board Charter provides for the
establishment of a Human Resources &
Compensation Committee. The Board
has approved a Human Resources &
Compensation Committee Charter which
sets out the committee’s role and
responsibilities, composition, structure
and membership requirements.

Reporting on ASX Principle 9
A copy of the Human Resources &
Compensation Committee Charter is
available in the corporate governance
section of the company’s website.

Principle 10 - Recognise the
legitimate interests of stakeholders
ASX Principle 10 states that a company
should “recognise legal and other
obligations to all legitimate
stakeholders”. Woodside complies with
this ASX Principle and associated
recommendations in the following
manner.

Corporate Code of Conduct
The Board has approved a Corporate
Code of Conduct which has been
designed to demonstrate and codify
Woodside’s commitment to appropriate
and ethical corporate practices.
All Woodside Directors, employees and
contractors are required to comply
with the Corporate Code of Conduct.
Any breach of applicable laws, prevailing
business ethics or other aspects of the
Corporate Code of Conduct may result in
disciplinary action. Such disciplinary
action may include (depending on the
severity of the breach) reprimand,
formal warning, demotion or termination
of employment.

Reporting on ASX Principle 10
A summary of the main provisions of the
Corporate Code of Conduct is available in
the corporate governance section of the
company’s website.
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Back row (left to right): Peter van Rossum, Erich Fraunschiel,
Rory Argyle, Jillian Broadbent, Pierre Jungels, Peter de Wit.
Front row: John Rose, Charles Goode (Chairman),
Donald Voelte (Managing Director & CEO), Tim Warren.

Board of Directors

Jillian R Broadbent, AO

Dr PJB (John) Rose, AO

as at 31 December 2004

BA (Economics and Maths), Hon. D.
Litt (UWS)

BCom (NZ), DipEc (Camb), PhD, Hon. D.
Bus (Melb)

Charles B Goode, AC
(Chairman)

Appointed a Director in June 1998.
Member of the Audit & Risk, Human
Resources & Compensation and Shell
Relationship Committees. Board
member of the Reserve Bank of
Australia. Director of Coca-Cola Amatil
Limited and the Special Broadcasting
Service. Extensive experience in the
finance sector, principally as a senior
executive of Bankers Trust Australia.
Age: 56

Appointed a Director in December 1990.
Chairman of the Human Resources &
Compensation Committee. Member of
the Governance & Nominations and Shell
Relationship Committees. Director of
Australian United Investment Company
Limited, The Ian Potter Foundation Ltd
and the Australian Ballet Centre.
Formerly, a senior adviser to the Prime
Minister of Australia from 1977 to 1983.
Director of the University of Melbourne
Business School and the Sidney Myer
Professor of Commerce and Business
Administration. Age: 69

BCom (Hons) (Melb), MBA (Columbia),
Hon.LLD (Melb), Hon.LLD (Monash)
Appointed a Director in February 1988
and Chairman in May 1999. Chairman of
the Shell Relationship Committee.
Member of the Governance &
Nominations Committee and attends
most other Board committee meetings.
Chairman of Australia and New Zealand
Banking Group Limited, Australian United
Investment Company Limited,
Diversified United Investment Limited
and The Ian Potter Foundation Ltd.
Director of Singapore Airlines Ltd and
The Howard Florey Institute of
Experimental Physiology and Medicine
and a member of the Australia-China
Council. Over 35 years experience in the
financial services industry. Age: 66

Donald R Voelte
(Managing Director and CEO)

BA (Hons), MA (Dub)
Appointed a Director in August 2002.
Director of Shell International Gas
Limited, London and Shell MDS
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd. Member of the Gas
and Power Executive Committee, Royal
Dutch/Shell Group. Over 30 years
experience in the oil and gas industry.
Resigned as a Director on 15 February
2005. Age: 55

BSc. (University of Nebraska)

Erich Fraunschiel

Appointed as Managing Director in April
2004. Member of the Shell Relationship
Committee and attends most other
Board committee meetings. Mr Voelte
has 29 years experience in the global oil
and gas business, including 22 years
with Mobil Corporation, four years with
Atlantic Richfield Company and most
recently as CEO of Chroma Energy, a
private exploration and production
company specialising in proprietary
seismic pattern recognition technology.
Age: 52

BCom (Hons) (UWA)

Rory ES Argyle
LLB, DIP PL (Dundee), Hon.LLD
(Murdoch), FAICD
Appointed a Director in November 1995.
Chairman of the Governance &
Nominations Committee. Member of
the Audit & Risk and Shell Relationship
Committees. Consultant to Freehills
Solicitors. Chairman of St George’s
College Foundation Inc. and Governor of
Leeuwin Ocean Adventure Foundation
Limited. Over 35 years experience as a
commercial and resources lawyer in
Perth. Age: 68
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BPT (Peter) de Wit

Appointed a Director in December 2002.
Chairman of the Audit & Risk
Committee. Member of the Shell
Relationship Committee. Director of
West Australian Newspapers Holdings
Limited, WorleyParsons Limited and
Rabobank Australia Limited. Chairman of
Wesfarmers Federation Insurance
Limited and Lumley General Insurance
Limited. Board member of the West
Australian Opera Inc. Over 18 years
experience in senior executive positions
with Wesfarmers Limited, including 10
years as Chief Financial Officer and
Executive Director. Age: 59

Dr Pierre JMH Jungels, CBE
PhD (Geophysics and Hydraulics)
(Caltech)
Appointed a Director in December 2002.
Member of the Shell Relationship
Committee. Chairman of OHM Ltd.
Director of Imperial Tobacco Group PLC
and Offshore Logistics Inc. Former
President of the Institute of Petroleum.
Over 30 years experience in the
international oil and gas industry.
Age: 60

Peter M van Rossum
CA, MbusEcon (Free University
Amsterdam)
Appointed a Director in April 2004.
Member of the Audit & Risk Committee.
Currently Regional Finance Director for
Shell Exploration and Production in the
Asia Pacific and Director of Shell EP
International Limited (Singapore Branch).
Previously Chief Financial Officer of an
incorporated Shell/Exxon Mobil joint
venture, Finance Manager for the Shell
Chemical Company’s Chemical Portfolio
Divestment Task Force and Controller
and Deputy Finance Director for Shell
Exploration and Production in the United
Kingdom. Over 20 years experience
working for Shell. Age: 48

Tim N Warren
BSc (Hons) St Andrews
Appointed a Director in July 2002.
Member of the Governance &
Nominations and Human Resources &
Compensation Committees. Chairman of
Shell Australia Limited and Shell Energy
Holdings Australia Limited. Chairman and
Managing Director of Shell Todd Oil
Services Limited. Over 30 years
experience in the international oil and
gas industry. Age: 56

Directors’ Report
The Directors of Woodside Petroleum
Ltd. present their report together with
the Concise Financial Report of the
consolidated entity, being Woodside
Petroleum Ltd. and its controlled entities,
for the year ended 31 December 2004
and the external auditor’s report thereon.

Table 3 - Names of Directors in office during or since the end of 2004
Directors

Date Appointed

CB Goode

3 February 1988

17 years

DR Voelte

5 April 2004

10 months

RES Argyle

9 years, 3 months

17 June 1998

6 years, 8 months

18 February 1998

15 April 2004

13 August 2002

15 February 2005

BPT de Wit

Directors

E Fraunschiel

Period
in Office*

1 November 1995

JR Broadbent
KA Dean

Date Retired

6 years, 2 months
2 years, 6 months

1 December 2002

2 years, 2 months

A Jamieson

16 February 2005

–

PJMH Jungels

1 December 2002

2 years, 2 months

PJB Rose

6 December 1990

RH Searby

17 June 1999

PM van Rossum

15 April 2004

10 months

Additional information on the Directors in
office at any time during or since the end
of the 2004 financial year is set out on
pages 36 to 38, 40, 41 and pages 46, 50
and 51 of this report.

TN Warren

15 July 2002

2 years, 7 months

KA Lange

Directors’ Meetings

Company Secretary

Ms Lange was appointed a Company
Secretary on 22 October 1999 and
ceased to be a Company Secretary
on 16 September 2004.

The number of Directors’ meetings held
(including meetings of committees of the
Board) and the number of meetings
attended by each of the Directors of
Woodside Petroleum Ltd. during the
financial year are shown on page 40 of
this report.

The Directors of Woodside Petroleum
Ltd. in office at any time during or since
the end of the 2004 financial year are
detailed in Table 3 (right).

The following individuals have acted as
Company Secretary during 2004:

Mr Martin holds Bachelor of
Jurisprudence and Bachelor of Laws
degrees and is the company’s General
Counsel. He was appointed a Secretary
of the company on 21 October 2004.
Mr Martin joined Woodside in
September 2001 after 12 years working
in London, Singapore and Hong Kong,
including nine years as a partner in an
international law firm.

FM Kernot
B Com (Hons) (UWA), CA, Grad. Dip.
CSP
Ms Kernot holds a Bachelor of
Commerce with Honours and is a
Chartered Accountant. She has also
completed the Australian Institute of
Company Secretaries’ Graduate Diploma
in Company Secretarial Practice. Ms
Kernot has over 15 years experience in
company secretarial, compliance and
financial accounting roles. She has been
employed by Woodside since September
2003, was appointed a Secretary of the
company on 16 April 2004 and is also
Company Secretary for Woodside’s
Australian subsidiaries.

5 years, 10 months

* Period in office calculated to the date of this report being 16 February 2005, rounded to the nearest month.

DR Martin
B.Juris, LLB (UWA)

14 years, 2 months
15 April 2004

AM Niardone
Mr Niardone was appointed a Company
Secretary on 6 May 2002 and ceased to
be a Company Secretary on 6 February
2004.

Corporate Information
Woodside Petroleum Ltd. is a company
limited by shares that is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia (Victoria). It is the
ultimate parent entity of the group.
The registered office of Woodside
Petroleum Ltd. is located at:
Woodside Plaza
240 St Georges Terrace
Perth Western Australia 6000

Bankers
JPMorgan Chase Bank

Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services Pty.
Limited

Auditors
Ernst & Young

Principal Activities
The principal activities and operations of
the company during the financial year
were hydrocarbon exploration,
evaluation, development, production and
marketing.
Other than as previously referred to in
this report, there were no other
significant changes in the nature of the
activities of the consolidated entity
during the year.

Number of Employees
As at 31 December 2004, the company
had 2,528 employees. This compares
with 2,219 employees as at 31
December 2003.

Consolidated Results
The consolidated operating profit
attributable to the company’s
shareholders after provision for income
tax and individually significant items was
$1,083.6 million ($526.7 million in 2003).
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Review of Operations

Dividend

A review of the operations during the
financial year and the results of those
operations are set out on pages 12 to 21
of this report and in the Concise
Financial Statements contained in this
report.

A final dividend of 25 cents per ordinary
share (fully franked) was paid to
shareholders on 26 March 2004 in
respect of the year ended 31 December
2003. Together with the fully franked
interim dividend of 27 cents per share
paid to shareholders on 24 September
2004, the total dividend paid during the
2004 year was 59 cents per share (fully
franked).

Significant Changes in State of
Affairs
The review of operations sets out a
number of matters which have had an
effect on the state of affairs of the
consolidated entity. Other than those
matters, there were no significant
changes in the state of affairs of the
consolidated entity during the financial
year.

Events Subsequent to End of
Financial Year
No events, other than those disclosed in
Note 7 of the Concise Financial Report
on page 64, have occurred subsequent
to balance date which have a material
effect on the financial statements of the
consolidated entity.

Likely Developments
In general terms, the review of
operations gives an indication of likely
developments and the expected results
of the operations.

The Directors have declared a final
dividend out of profits of the company in
respect of the year ended 31 December
2004 of 32 cents per ordinary share (fully
franked) payable on 23 March 2005.

Corporate Governance
A statement of the Board’s governance
practices in effect during the year is set
out on pages 34 to 41 of this report.

Remuneration Report
Woodside Group Structure and
Employees
Woodside Petroleum Ltd. is the listed
parent and holding company of the
Woodside group of companies. The
CEO, Mr Don Voelte, is the only
employee of Woodside Petroleum Ltd.
Most Woodside group employees,
including the key executives discussed in
this Remuneration Report, are employed
by Woodside Energy Ltd.

Environmental Compliance
Woodside is subject to a range of
environmental legislation in Australia and
other countries in which it operates.
During 2004, Woodside complied in all
material respects with the requirements
of that legislation. More detailed
information on the company’s
environmental performance is provided
on page 31 of this report.
Through its environmental policy,
Woodside plans and performs activities
so that adverse effects on the
environment are avoided or kept as low
as reasonably practicable.
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The remuneration disclosure and
practices discussed in this report relate
to both Woodside Petroleum Ltd. and
the Woodside group. References to
Woodside are to be taken to include a
reference to the Woodside group as
appropriate.

Woodside Executive
Remuneration Policy
The Board recognises that the
company’s performance is dependent on
the quality of its people. To achieve its
financial and operating objectives,
Woodside must be able to attract, retain
and motivate highly-skilled executives.
Woodside’s executive remuneration
policy and principles are designed to
ensure that the company:
• provides competitive rewards that
attract, retain and motivate executives
of the highest calibre;
• sets demanding performance levels
that are clearly linked to an
executive’s remuneration; and that
there is a clear relationship between
the company’s performance,
individual performance and
remuneration;
• structures remuneration at a level that
reflects the executive’s duties and
accountabilities and is competitive
within Australia and, for certain roles,
internationally;
• benchmarks remuneration against
appropriate comparator groups at the
75th percentile;
• aligns executive incentive rewards
with the creation of value for
shareholders;
• complies with applicable legal
requirements and appropriate
standards of governance; and
• openly communicates the policy
underlying executive remuneration.
Executive remuneration is reviewed
annually having regard to individual and
business performance against agreed
targets set at the start of the year,
relevant comparative information and
internal and independent expert advice.

Relationship between
Remuneration Policy and Woodside
Performance
The Human Resources & Compensation
Committee and the Board continually
seek to strengthen the link between
executive remuneration and Woodside’s
performance. As notified to
shareholders last year, the Committee
undertook an extensive review of the
variable performance-related

components of executive remuneration
packages with the intention of
strengthening the links between individual
rewards and Woodside performance.
Following the completion of this review,
the committee recommended to the Board
that the existing incentive-based
components of executive remuneration be
replaced with a new Executive Incentive
Plan (EIP). The key objective of the EIP is
to transparently align the executives’
interests with the creation of sustainable
shareholder value. The Board has approved
the EIP and proposes it be implemented
with effect from 1 January 2005, subject to
shareholder approval at the company’s
2005 AGM.
Full details of the EIP are set out in the
Notice of Meeting for the 2005 AGM.

Remuneration Structure
Woodside’s remuneration structure for the
CEO and senior executives is currently
divided into three components:
• fixed annual reward (FAR);
• short-term incentives (STI); and

Short-Term Incentive

The variable components of an executive’s
remuneration for a given year are not finally
determined and paid until the following
year. The variable components of
remuneration detailed in this report are
therefore reported on a "lag" basis, and will
relate to incentives which were earned in
respect of the 2003 financial year but
which were finally determined and paid in
the 2004 financial year.

The STI component of executive
remuneration comprises an annual cash
incentive which is linked to the
performance of both Woodside and the
individual executive.
Each year the Board sets a series of key
performance indicators (KPIs) for the
company that are linked to Woodside’s
business principles, budget and business
plan. The degree to which these KPIs are
achieved determines the size of the
incentive pool available for distribution to all
employees by way of an STI payment.

Details of the remuneration paid to the
CEO and specified executives in the 2004
financial year is set out in Table 4 below.

Fixed Annual Reward

KPIs are agreed in the executives’
performance agreements at the start of
each year to ensure they meet specific
business objectives for which the individual
is responsible. The KPIs are aligned with
Business Unit scorecards which are in turn
aligned with the company’s KPIs.
Performance agreements have a number of
key financial and non-financial focus areas.
Examples of focus areas include:
increasing the value of assets, increasing
production at lower cost, and improving
HSE performance.

The FAR component of executive
remuneration comprises base salary,
superannuation contribution and other
allowances such as motor vehicle and
health insurance. It is determined by the
scope of each executive’s role, their level
of knowledge, skill and experience and
individual performance. Woodside annually
reviews, forecasts and benchmarks this
component of executive remuneration
against appropriate market comparisons
using information and advice from external
consultants.

• long-term incentives (LTI).
Individual performance determines the
proportion of the STI incentive pool

Table 4 - Remuneration details for the six most highly paid executives of the group (A$)
Primary

Post
Employment

Equity

Cash Salary
& Fees

Cash
Bonuses

Non
Monetary

Pension
Super

Options and
Rights

Salaries,
Fees and
Allowances

Short-Term
Incentive/
Bonus

Benefits &
Allowances

Company
Contributions to
Superannuation

Share
Plan

(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

D W Bailey
Chief Financial Officer
S Ollerearnshaw
CEO North West Shelf Ventures

Termination
Benefits

Total

495,916

1,341,086

5,802

9,362

308,737

10,401

2,171,304

1,054,351

118,925

195,700

432,960

-

-

1,801,936

K W Spence
Chief Operating Officer

603,092

400,000

24,639

154,130

191,370

-

1,373,231

D G P Parkinson
General Manager NWS Supply Development

578,347

63,054

364,700

228,174

-

-

1,234,275

D P Maxwell
Director Gas & Marketing

375,103

311,635

52,114

118,260

148,892

-

1,006,004

A J Kantsler
Director Exploration & New Ventures

379,682

276,856

49,381

72,921

115,003

-

893,843

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Reflects the value of allowances and benefits including but not limited to travel, motor vehicles and health insurance.
D Bailey elected to be paid balance of superannuation benefit as a superannuation in lieu allowance. Amount is included in Salaries, Fees and Allowances.
Represents the option value of the Woodside Employee Share Plan calculated in accordance Accounting Standard AASB 2.
D Bailey includes amounts paid for Woodside's full and final settlement of all claims arising under an Executive Employment Agreement, taking into consideration his
performance during 2004.
(e) S Ollerearnshaw and D Parkinson are Shell expatriate secondees.
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received by an individual executive. The
quantum of the incentive is determined
by the CEO and recommended to the
committee for approval on the basis of
demonstrated performance at the end of
the performance year.

The value of the loans made available to
an executive under the WESP is linked to
the size and complexity of the
executive’s role within Woodside, and is
based on a percentage of the executive’s
FAR. Loans provided under the WESP
are reduced by a portion of the dividends
paid on the shares acquired with those
loans and have been topped up on an
annual basis.

Long-Term Incentive
The LTI component of executive
remuneration currently involves the
provision of an interest-free limited
recourse loan that is used to purchase
Woodside shares under the Woodside
Employee Share Plan (WESP). The
WESP is a broadly-based employee
share plan available to all permanent
Woodside employees. The plan was last
approved by shareholders in 1997 and
participation is at Board discretion.

Restructure of non-executive
Director Remuneration
At the 2004 AGM shareholders approved
a restructure of non-executive Directors’
remuneration under which:

The Board believes the current LTI for
executives is not best practice as there
is not a strong enough relationship
between an individual’s performance and
their remuneration. Hence the Board
will recommend the implementation of a
new EIP to shareholders at the 2005
AGM. As part of the transition to the
EIP, the grant of loans and the top up of
loans to senior executives under the
WESP ceased with effect from 30 June
2004.

As shares acquired under the WESP do
not vest in the executive for a period of
three years after acquisition, this longterm incentive is designed to:

Fees paid to non-executive Directors of
Woodside (for the purposes of AASB
1046: Director and Executive
Disclosures, the "Specified Directors")
are based on advice from external
remuneration consultants. This advice
takes into consideration the level of fees

encourage executives to improve
company performance and
consequently the value of Woodside
shares.

•

the accrual of retirement benefits
(other than statutory superannuation)
by non-executive Directors ceased at
30 April 2004; and

•

the maximum aggregate annual
remuneration payable to nonexecutive Directors was increased
from $1.65 million to $2.3 million.

The accrued entitlements of nonexecutive Directors at 30 April 2004 will
be carried forward to retirement and will
be collected by non-executive Directors
when they retire as either:

Non-executive Directors

• provide a direct link between
Woodside’s performance and the
remuneration of executives; and
•

paid to directors by other major
Australian corporations, the size and
complexity of Woodside’s operations, its
growing international dimensions, and
the responsibilities and work
requirements of Board members.

• a cash payment, being the
entitlement accrued up to 30 April
2004, indexed to preserve its value
by reference to the Average Weekly
Ordinary Times Earnings figures

Table 5 - Remuneration details for each Director of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. (A$)
Primary
Cash Salary
& Fees
Salaries,
Fees and
Allowances

Post Employment
Cash
Bonuses

NEDS
Plan

Short Term
Incentive/
Bonus

(a)

Non
Monetary

Pension
Super

Benefits &
Company
Allowances Contributions to
Superannuation
(b)

Equity
Prescribed
Benefits

Options &
Rights

Directors’
Retiring
Allowance

Share
Plan

(c)

(d)

Total

Executive Director
D Voelte

989,384

-

-

111,482

8,543

-

-

1,109,409

C B Goode

156,037

223,862

-

-

34,191

13,667

-

427,757

R E S Argyle

120,797

21,866

-

-

12,840

29,760

-

185,263

J R Broadbent

71,540

61,790

-

-

12,000

15,032

-

160,362

K A Dean

29,983

-

-

-

2,698

-

-

32,681

P van Rossum

96,958

-

-

-

-

-

-

96,958

B P T de Wit

114,810

-

-

-

-

-

-

114,810

E Fraunschiel

137,700

-

-

-

-

45,467

-

183,167

P H Jungels

132,417

42,393

-

-

-

39,623

-

214,433

P J B Rose

69,836

83,124

-

-

-

6,783

-

159,743

R H Searby

25,903

-

-

-

2,332

4,038

-

32,273

T N Warren

145,330

-

-

-

-

-

-

145,330

Non-Executive
Directors

(a) Participation in the Non-Executive Directors’ Share Plan
(b) Reflects the value of allowances and benefits including but not limited to travel, motor vehicles and health insurance.
(c) Mr Voelte elected to be paid balance of super benefit as a super in lieu allowance. Amount is included in Salaries, Fees and Allowances.
(d) Relates to the provision for Directors’ Retiring Allowance made during the year. In accordance with the Non-executive Director restructure, on 30 April 2004, all Directors except
one, elected to convert the balance of their provision to shares in Woodside which shall vest on retirement.
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Table 6 – Annual Board and Committee fees payable to
non-executive Directors are as follows:
published by the Australian Bureau of
Statistics; or

Position

Annual fee up to
30 April 2004

Chairman of the Board

• a number of Woodside shares,
calculated by dividing the accrued
entitlement amount by the average
Woodside share price for the 5
trading days leading up to 30 April
2004.
Non-executive Directors were asked to
choose between these alternatives. One
non-executive Director elected to receive
a cash payment upon retirement. The
remaining non-executive Directors have
chosen to convert their accrued
entitlement into Woodside shares.
Details of the accrued retirement
benefits of the non-executive Directors
are set out in Table 5 on page 50.

Remuneration payable
Following the restructure described
above, and with effect from 1 May 2004,
non-executive Director remuneration
now consists only of base fees,
committee fees and superannuation
contributions (or payments in lieu). Base
fees may be adjusted to reflect special
factors, such as travelling time for
overseas directors.
Fees payable to non-executive Directors
are reviewed annually and fixed by the
Board and detailed in Table 6 above.
Non-executive Directors are not entitled
to incentive rewards for annual results or
otherwise according to Woodside’s
performance.

Annual fee from
1 May 2004

$321,000

$409,349 (inclusive of all
committee work)

Non-executive Directors
other than the Chairman

$89,000

$113,495

Chairman of a Board Committee

$21,000

$21,000

Members of a Board Committee
(other than Chairman of Committee)

$14,000

$14,000

International travel allowance
(currently only paid to Dr Jungels)

$10,000

$10,000

(per meeting)

(per meeting)

Under the terms of the Non-Executive
Directors’ Share (NEDS) Plan, nonexecutive Directors may elect to receive
part of their remuneration in the shares
of the company. These shares are
acquired by on-market purchase.
Board fees are not paid to executive
Directors since the responsibilities of
Board membership are considered in
determining the remuneration provided
as part of their normal employment
conditions.
In addition to Board and committee fees,
non-executive Directors are entitled to:
• either a contribution to
superannuation or an allowance
equivalent to the superannuation
guarantee levy (currently 9%),
dependent on their personal
circumstances and based on Board
and committee fees; and
• all reasonable travel, accommodation
and other expenses incurred in
attending meetings of the Board,

committees or shareholders or while
engaged on Woodside business.
The total remuneration for each nonexecutive Director in 2004 is set out in
the Table 5 on page 50.

Directors’ and Executives’ Benefits
Directors’ and executives’ remuneration
disclosures are set out in Note 35 to the
Full Financial Report and information on
Directors’ and executives’ shareholding
and loans is set out in Note 36 to the
Full Financial Report. Table 5 on page
50 of this report shows remuneration
details for each Director of the company.
Table 4 on page 49 shows the
remuneration details for the six most
highly remunerated officers of the
Woodside group.

Directors’ Interests in Shares
The particulars of Directors’ interests in
shares of the company as at 16 February
2005 are set out in Table 7 below.

Table 7 – Directors’ interests in shares as at 16 February 2005
1

2

3

4

5

-

-

-

-

-

C B Goode

2,000

27,279

54,180

98,000

-

R E S Argyle

7,000

661

-

-

11,300

J R Broadbent

-

7,690

11,228

20,000

5,000

B P T de Wit

-

-

-

-

-

E Fraunschiel

-

-

2,702

30,000

-

3,000

-

-

-

-

P H Jungels

-

3,560

2,355

-

-

P J B Rose

4,000

6,662

19,810

-

-

P van Rossum

-

-

-

-

-

TN Warren

-

-

-

-

-

Executive Director
D Voelte
Non-Executive Directors

A Jamieson

(1) Beneficial, in own name.
(2) Beneficial, in own name via Non-Executive Directors’ Share Plan.
(3) Conversion of balance of Directors’ Retiring Allowance provision to shares in Woodside which vest on retirement in accordance with the Non-executive Director restructure,
on 30 April 2004
(4) Beneficial, private company or trust.
(5) Related interest.
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D

Directors’ Benefits
During or since the end of the financial
year, no Director of the company has
received, or became entitled to receive,
a benefit by reason of a contract made
by the company, its controlled entities or
a related body corporate with a Director
or with a firm of which a Director is a
member, or with an entity in which a
Director is a member, or with an entity in
which a Director has a substantial
interest other than:
• a benefit included in the aggregate
amount of remuneration received, or
due and receivable, by Directors other
than as reported in the consolidated
accounts;
•

normal benefits as a full-time
employee of the company or a related
corporation; or

• as outlined under the heading
Indemnification and Insurance of
Directors and Officers.

Indemnification and Insurance of
Directors and Officers
The company’s Constitution (Rule 118)
requires the company to indemnify each
Director, secretary, executive officer or
employee of the company against
liabilities (to the extent the company is
not precluded by law from doing so)
incurred in or arising out of the conduct
of the business of the company or the
discharge of the duties of any such
person. Following approval at the 2004
AGM, the company has entered into
new deeds of indemnity with each of its
Directors in terms of the indemnity
provided under the company’s
Constitution.

The company has paid a premium under
a contract insuring each Director,
secretary, executive officer or employee
of the company and its controlled
entities against liability incurred in that
capacity.
Disclosure of the nature of the liability
covered by and the amount of the
premium payable for such insurance is
subject to a confidentiality clause under
the contract of insurance.
The company has not provided any
insurance for the external auditor of the
company or a body corporate related to
the external auditor.

Rounding of Amounts
The amounts contained in this report
have been rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars under the option
available to the company under
Australian Securities and Investments
Commission Class Order 98/0100 dated
10 July 1998.
On behalf of the Board and in
accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors made on 16 February
2005.

Charles Goode, AC
Chairman

Donald Voelte
Chief Executive Officer
Dated at Perth this 16th day of February 2005.
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The financial statements and other specific disclosures have been derived from Woodside
Petroleum Ltd. and its controlled entities’ (the "Group") Full Financial Report for the year.
Other information included in the Concise Financial Report is consistent with the Group’s Full
Financial Report.
The Concise Financial Report does not, and cannot be expected to, provide as full an understanding
of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of the Group as
the Full Financial Report.
A copy of the Group’s 2004 Full Financial Report, including the independent audit report, is
available to all shareholders, and will be sent to shareholders without charge upon request.
The 2004 Full Financial Report can be requested by telephone (Australia: 1300 557 010,
Overseas: (61) 39615 5970) and by Internet at www.woodside.com.au.
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Statement of Financial Performance
For the Year ended 31 December 2004

Group
2004
$000

2003
$000

Revenues from oil and gas operations
Cost of Sales

2,158,641
(859,206)

2,059,282
(799,849)

Gross profit

1,299,435

1,259,433

Other revenues from ordinary activities
Share of associates’ net profits/(losses)
Borrowing costs expensed

844,670
(4,684)
(61,915)

152,398
(5,859)
(54,036)

Other expenses from ordinary activities

(595,295)

(524,008)

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax

1,482,211

Income tax expense attributable to ordinary activities

(398,580)

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd.
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)
Dividend per share (cents)

827,928
(301,243)

1,083,631

526,685

162.5

79.0

59.0

46.0

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 55 of this Report and
the notes to the Concise Financial Report set out on pages 60 to 64 of this Report.
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Discussion and Analysis of the Statement of Financial Performance

Overview
Woodside's 2004 underlying financial performance increased by 23.6%, due principally to sustained high oil prices which more than
offset lower oil volumes and unfavourable AUD/USD exchange rate movements. The 2004 reported results have also been impacted
by three significant items namely the sale of a 40% interest in the Enfield permit/project, the conclusion of the China Equity sale and
the adoption of tax consolidations (see note 2).

2004
$000

2003
$000

Net Profit After Tax – Before Significant Items

650,895

526,685

(Less)/Plus Significant Items
Gain on sale of interest in Enfield project / WA-271-P
Gain on China Equity Sale
Adoption of Tax Consolidations

430,975
73,481
(71,720)

Reported Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax

1,083,631

526,685

Issues that affected the Groups financial performance in the period were:
Revenue from oil and gas operations Lower sales volumes reduced revenue by $218.4 million, resulting predominantly from natural
field decline on the Laminaria and Legendre projects. Increased LNG sales due to the commencement of operations of the fourth
LNG train were offset by lower Domestic Gas sales caused by the ongoing suspension of operations at the BHP Billiton HBI Plant.
The average realised oil price in 2004 was US$38.27 per barrel compared with US$27.62 in 2003, increasing revenues by A$529.1
million. Appreciation of the Australian dollar against the US dollar decreased revenue by A$210.1 million with an average A$/US$
exchange rate in 2004 of 0.7360 compared with 0.6523 in 2003.
Cost of sales Production costs increased by $59.5 million largely as a result of production taxes increasing by $35.2 million with
increased Legendre excise payments more than offsetting reduced Laminaria PRRT expense. Depreciation and amortisation
increased by $33.7 million including the reassessment of useful life of specific offshore assets including the impact of the Goodwyn
low pressure train project.
Other revenues from ordinary activities Proceeds on the WA-271-P/Enfield sale and the China Equity sale contributed $708.3
million. Other revenues decreased by $12.0 million due to 2003 one-off sale of the Oil Search Ltd. investment and increased interest
revenue in 2004 due to higher cash holdings.
Borrowing costs expensed Debt levels remained unchanged through the year, however, reductions in interest capitalised against
construction projects have increased the net borrowing costs expensed in 2004.
Other expenses from ordinary activities The costs of assets sold for 2004 significant items is $198.2 million. Other expenses have
reduced by $127.0 million. The main factors contributing to this decrease were a $40.1 million reduction in exploration and evaluation
expense and a reduction in foreign exchange losses of $46.5 million.
Income Tax attributable to ordinary activities The effective tax rate, after eliminating significant items, has decreased to 33% in
2004 from 36% in 2003 mainly due to reductions in non deductible foreign exploration expenditure.

Key metrics
Return on equity (net profit attributable to the members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. on total equity) increased from 21.6% to 34.2%
due to the significant items incurred in 2004 (see note 2). Adjusting for significant items, return on equity increased from 21.6% to
23.8%.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2004

Group

E

2004
$000

2003
$000

732,163
420,074
31,071
43,428
16,322

177,601
260,878
14,007
73,123
11,342

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

1,243,058

536,951

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Inventories
Equity accounted investments
Other financial assets
Exploration and evaluation
Oil and gas properties
Other plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

127,814
11,489
1,619
120,311
389,266
3,517,400
109,180
25,717

307,252
18,264
9,096
106,034
653,518
2,985,154
137,910
649

23,681

27,471

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

4,326,477

4,245,348

TOTAL ASSETS

5,569,535

4,782,299

328,772
51,024
52,679

335,783
100,992
55,064

46,294

86,747

478,769

578,586

1,027,749
527,047

1,068,376
455,090

Provisions

189,119

156,552

Other liabilities

176,356

90,164

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

1,920,271

1,770,182

TOTAL LIABILITIES

2,399,040

2,348,768

NET ASSETS

3,170,495

2,433,531

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash assets
Receivables
Inventories
Other financial assets
Other assets

Other assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Current tax liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed equity

706,491

706,491

Retained profits

2,464,004

1,727,040

TOTAL EQUITY

3,170,495

2,433,531

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 57 of this Report and the
notes to the Concise Financial Report set out on pages 60 to 64 of this Report.
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Discussion and Analysis of the Statement of Financial Position

Overview
The Group’s net assets increased by 30.3% to $3,170.5 million over the year.
Issues that affected the Group’s financial position in the period were:
Assets
•
Cash - $554.6 million increase due to sustained operating cashflows from high oil prices and proceeds from WA-271-P/ Enfield sale
and China Equity sale.
•

Receivables – The Greater Sunrise receivable was transferred from Non-Current to Current (received in January 2005).

•

Other financial assets (Current and Non-Current) – Deferred values on open hedges reduced by $49.9 million after accounting for
the increases in oil prices, the appreciation of the A$/US$ exchange rate and the lower level of hedging.

•

Exploration and evaluation (E&E) – Transfer of $342.1 million of E&E to oil and gas properties with various projects achieving Final
Investment Decision (Enfield, Chinguetti, Otway).

•

Oil and gas properties – Significant additions during the period include, Enfield $246.7 million and Chinguetti $142.4 million plus
$342.1 million E&E transferred into projects in development. Offsetting these additions was depreciation and amortisation of
$263.7 million.

•

Other plant and equipment – Reduction mainly due to sale of computer assets.

•

Deferred tax assets – Increase due to recognition of foreign tax loss assets in Mauritania.

Liabilities
•
Interest bearing liabilities – $US debt remains at US$800 million. There was a $40.6 million reduction in the A$ value of US$ debt
due to the appreciation of the A$/US$ exchange rate.
•

Provisions (Non-Current) – Increased due to ongoing provision for restoration obligations of $24.7 million.

•

Other liabilities (Non-Current) – Deferred exchange gain on US$ borrowings increased $40.4 million.

•

Deferred tax liabilities – Primary impact arises from the entry into Australian tax consolidations regime.

Equity
•
The increase in equity arises from the reported profit for the financial year less the payment of dividends.

Key metrics
Gearing (net debt/net debt + equity) has decreased from 26.8% in 2003 to 8.5% in the current period. The company has substantial
long term undrawn financing facilities totalling $878.1 million and cash of $732.2 million for any long or short term funding
requirements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year ended 31 December 2004

Group
2004
$000

2003
$000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Interest received – other entities
Dividends received – other entities
Payments to suppliers and employees
Borrowing costs paid (net of capitalised amounts)
Management and other fees – other entities
Royalty, Excise and PRRT payments
Income tax / GST paid

2,378,241
19,164
8,089
(319,521)
(58,819)
26,075
(351,694)
(383,421)

2,123,110
12,112
12,150
(333,556)
(66,725)
44,095
(271,388)
(316,925)

Net Cash from Operating Activities

1,318,114

1,202,873

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital and exploration expenditure
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from sale of exploration and evaluation assets
Proceeds from sale of oil and gas properties
Proceeds from sale of other plant and equipment
Payments for investments in controlled entities
Payments for investments in other entities
Advances to employees relating to share plan
Repayments from employees relating to share plan

(1,073,147)
200
708,502
18,963
(64,535)
(23,945)
(37,277)
39,319

(812,104)
62,179
9,089
1,580
(1,000)
(23,434)
23,006

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

(431,920)

(740,684)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdown of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid

(346,667)

1,190,901
(1,195,177)
(413,333)

Debt establishment costs paid
Net Cash used in Financing Activities

-

(1,153)

(346,667)

(418,762)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD

539,527

43,427

CASH AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR

177,601

155,352

15,035

(21,178)

732,163

177,601

Effects of exchange rate changes on the
balances of cash held in foreign currencies
CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 59 of this Report and the notes of
the Concise Financial Report set out on pages 60 to 64 of this Report.
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Discussion and Analysis of the Statement of Cash Flows

Overview
Cashflows from operations plus proceeds from sales in the period provided sufficient funds to meet all expenditure requirements for
investing activities and dividends.
Issues that affected the Group’s cash flows in the period were:
Cash flows from operating activities
•
Increased receipts from customers arise mainly due to the increase in revenues and trade debtor movements.
•

Lower PRRT payments caused by lower Laminaria sales are more than offset by increased Legendre excise payments.

Cash flows used in investing activities
•
Increased oil and gas property expenditure on a number of new projects (Enfield, Chinguetti, Otway) was partially offset by
completion of previous projects (LNG Train 4, Second Trunkline, Ohanet). Exploration and evaluation expenditure reduced in 2004.
•

The 2003 proceeds from sale of investments represent the proceeds on the sale of the investment in Oil Search Limited.

•

Proceeds on sale of exploration and evaluation and oil and gas properties arise primarily from the WA-271-P (Enfield) and the China
Equity transactions.

•

Proceeds from the sale of other plant and equipment arises from the sale of computer equipment.

•

Payments for investments in controlled entities relates to the acquisition of AGIP Mauritania BV in January 2004.

•

Payments for investments in other entities primarily relates to the take-up of Hardman Resources rights issue to maintain
proportional equity investment.

Cash flows used in financing activities
•
During the year there was no debt drawn or repaid.
•
Dividend payments were lower in 2004.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2004

1.

Preparation of Concise Financial Report
The Concise Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB 1039
Concise Financial Reports and applicable Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views. The financial statements and specific disclosures
required by AASB 1039 have been derived from the Group’s Full Financial Report for the financial year. Other information included
in the Concise Financial Report is consistent with the Group’s Full Financial Report. The Concise Financial Report does not, and
cannot be expected to, provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing
activities of the Group as the Full Financial Report.
The accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous year.

Group
2004
$000
2.

2003
$000

Specific items within Profit from Ordinary Activities
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax, includes the following
revenues and expenses whose disclosure is relevant in explaining
the financial performance of the entity.

(a)

Individually significant items

(i)

Sale of 40% interest in permit WA-271-P
Proceeds on sale
Cost of assets sold
Applicable income tax

(ii)

China LNG Equity Agreement
Proceeds on sale
Cost of assets sold
Applicable income tax

(iii)

Effects of Tax Consolidation on Tax Expense

(b)

Gains/(losses) from sale of assets
(Excluding items in note 2(a))
Exploration and evaluation
Oil and gas properties
Other plant and equipment
Total gains/(losses) on sale of assets

3.

-

430,975

-

78,183
(4,702)
73,481
-

-

73,481

-

(71,720)

-

210
(755)
(427)
(972)

9,089
(826)
8,263

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are identical.
Earnings/(loss) used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares on issue used in calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
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630,085
(193,473)
436,612
(5,637)

1,083,631

526,685

666,666,667

666,666,667

162.5

79.0

Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2004

4.

Dividends

(a)

Dividends recognised in the current year by the Company are:

Cents
per share
2004
2003 Final – ordinary
2004 Interim – ordinary

Total amount
$000

25.0
27.0

Total franked amount

2003
2002 Final – ordinary
2003 Interim – ordinary

166,667
180,000

Date of
payment

Tax rate for
franking credit

Percentage
franked

26/3/04
24/9/04

30%
30%

100%
100%

21/3/2003
5/9/2003

30%
30%

100%
100%

346,667

41.0
21.0

Total franked amount

273,333
140,000
413,333

No unfranked dividends have been declared or paid during the year.

Group
2004
$000

2003
$000

180,000

140,000

213,333

166,667
-

393,333

306,667

59.0 cents

46.0 cents

Balance at beginning of year
Adjustment arising from adoption of revised
accounting standard AASB 1028 Employee Benefits

1,727,040

1,613,891

-

(203)

Net profit/(loss) attributable to members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd.

1,083,631

(b)

Summary of dividends in relation to reported periods
Interim dividend 27.0 cents (2003: 21.0 cents) (declared and paid)
Final dividend
Declared February 2004 : 25.0 cents
Declared February 2005 : 32.0 cents

Dividend in respect of financial year

5.

(Note 7)

Retained Profits

Movements in retained profits

Dividends provided for or paid
Balance at end of year

(346,667)
2,464,004

526,685
(413,333)
1,727,040
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2004

6.

Segment Reporting

(a)

Business Segments
The Group has the following reportable segments.
North West Shelf Business Unit
Exploration, evaluation, development, production and sales of LNG, Domgas, Condensate, LPG and Crude Oil from the North
West Shelf Ventures.
Australia Business Unit
Exploration, evaluation, development, production and sale of crude oil, in assigned permit areas and from the Laminaria and
Legendre, Exeter Mutineer, Enfield and Otway projects.
Africa Business Unit
Evaluation, development and production from the Algerian Ohanet project and Mauritanian Chinguetti development.
Group and Unallocated
This segment comprises the activities undertaken by all other business units and corporate costs.

(b)

Geographical Segments
The Group’s divisions operate in three main geographical segments. These segments are derived on the basis of revenue from
oil and gas operations and the location of the customer providing that revenue.
Australia
The main operating activities of the entity, producing assets and a significant portion of sales are within Australia.
Asia
The majority of the entity’s sales are made to customers within this region.
Africa
Revenues are received from the Algerian Ohanet project and include the development of the Mauritanian Chinguetti project.
Other
Exploration, evaluation and development activities in other areas. It also reflects sales to customers in the United States.
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6.

Segment Reporting (Continued)

Segment accounting policies
Segment accounting policies are the same as the consolidated group’s policies.

Primary Reporting - Business Segments

Revenue
Revenue from oil
and gas operations
Cost of Sales
Production costs
Royalties, Excise and PRRT
Shipping and marketing
Depreciation and amortisation
Restoration provision
Total cost of sales
Gross Profit
Other revenue
Share of net profit of equity
accounted associates
Borrowing costs expensed
Other expenses from
ordinary activities
Segment result

North West Shelf
Ventures

Australia Business
Unit

Africa Business
Unit

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

1,588,788

1,498,897

492,785

551,935

77,068

8,450

-

-

2,158,641

2,059,282

(106,160)
(185,552)
(79,946)
(102,654)
(23,127)

(42,270)
(132,723)
(7,473)
(59,518)
(7,241)

(68,352)
(95,406)
(11,044)
(115,176)
(6,349)

(6,404)
(116)
(44,248)
-

(795)
(5,288)
-

-

-

(497,439)

(104,750)
(183,405)
(95,783)
(159,894)
(15,213)
(559,575)

Group and
Unallocated

Consolidated

(249,225)

(296,327)

(50,768)

(6,083)

-

-

1,001,458

243,560

255,608

26,300

2,367

-

-

1,299,435

1,259,433

87,602

19,783

634,238

3,904

36,706

-

86,124

128,711

844,670

152,398

(828)

2,030

177

(32)

53

2,571

(4,684)
(61,317)

(5,859)
(58,605)

(4,684)
(61,915)

(5,859)
(54,036)

(13,446)

(18,213)

(595,295)

(524,008)

1,102,903

1,005,058

(174,130)

(16,734)

(21,670)

(7,150)

(386,049)

(481,911)

703,845

242,746

41,389

(2,212)

(365,926)

(417,664)

(859,206)

(175,307)
(280,958)
(90,990)
(223,118)
(29,476)

1,029,464

Income tax expense

1,482,211
(398,580)

Net profit/(loss)

Segment Assets

(153,424)
(316,128)
(103,464)
(263,549)
(22,641)

(799,849)

827,928
(301,243)

1,083,631

526,685

721,634

5,569,535

4,782,299

1,910,395 1,939,164

2,399,040

2,348,768

2,803,107

2,846,995

892,322

780,558

698,159

433,112

304,092

277,690

95,776

86,321

88,777

45,593

-

-

-

-

-

-

78,330

59,070

78,330

59,070

Acquisition of oil and gas property assets,
intangible assets and other non-current
assets (excluding exploration)
132,183

232,294

345,888

134,627

147,608

65,374

17,601

83,800

643,280

516,095

91,838

64,379

37,949

12,465

5,299

141,511

201,980

279,575

337,066

Segment Liabilities

1,175,947

Other segment information
Associates and other investments

Non-cash expenses other than
depreciation and amortisation

61,220
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
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6.

Segment Reporting (Continued)

Secondary Reporting – Geographical Segments

Australia

Asia

Africa

Other

Consolidated

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

2004
$000

2003
$000

454,063

460,191

1,506,425

1,439,620

77,068

8,450

121,085

151,021

2,158,641

2,059,282

4,822,431

4,196,297

40,554

116,123

624,997

437,435

81,553

32,444

5,569,535

4,782,299

Acquisition of oil and gas property assets,
intangible assets and other non-current
assets
495,614

440,799

-

-

147,608

65,374

57

9,923

643,279

516,096

Segment Revenue
(by location of customer)

Segment Assets
Other Segment Information

7.

Events subsequent to balance date
Dividends
Since the reporting date, the Directors have declared a fully franked dividend of 32.0 cents (2003: 25.0 cents), payable on 23 March
2005. The amount of this dividend will be $213,333,333 (2003: $166,666,667). No provision has been made for this dividend in the
financial report as the dividend was not declared or determined by the Directors on or before the end of the financial year.

Current Receivables
Deferred proceeds on the 2001 sale of a part interest in the Sunrise Gas project from Phillips STL Proprietary Limited of $190,937,540
were received on 3 January 2005.
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Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resolution of directors of Woodside Petroleum Ltd., we state that:In the opinion of the Directors:
The Concise Financial Report of the Group, comprising Woodside Petroleum Ltd. and its controlled entities for the year ended 31
December 2004, set out on pages 54 to 64:
(i)

has been derived from or is consistent with the full financial report for the financial year; and

(ii)

complies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

Dated at Perth this the 16th day of February 2005.

For and on behalf of the Board

Charles Goode AC.
Chairman

Don Voelte
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Audit Report on Concise Financial Report

Independent audit report to members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd.

Scope
The concise financial report and directors’ responsibility
The concise financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance, statement of cash
flows and accompanying notes to the financial statements for the consolidated entity for the year ended 31 December 2004. The
consolidated entity comprises both Woodside Petroleum Ltd. (the company) and the entities it controlled during the year.
The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a concise financial report that complies with Accounting Standard AASB
1039 "Concise Financial Reports", in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting
policies and accounting estimates inherent in the concise financial report.

Audit approach
We conducted an independent audit on the concise financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the
company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to
whether the concise financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use
of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than
conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.
We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the concise financial report is presented fairly in accordance with
Accounting Standard AASB 1039 "Concise Financial Reports". We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which
included:
•

testing that the information in the concise financial report is consistent with the full financial report, and

•

examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and other disclosures
in the concise financial report that were not directly derived from the full financial report.

We have also performed an independent audit of the full financial report of the company for the year ended 31 December 2004. Our
audit report on the full financial report was signed on 16 February 2005, and was not subject to any qualification. For a better
understanding of our approach to the audit of the full financial report, this report should be read in conjunction with our audit report on
the full financial report.

Independence
We are independent of the company, and have met the independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. In addition to our audit of the full and concise financial reports, we were engaged
to undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of the full financial report. The provision of these services
has not impaired our independence.

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the concise financial report of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. complies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 "Concise
Financial Reports".

Ernst & Young

J P Dowling
Partner
Perth
Date: 16 February 2005
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Shareholding Information
As at 4 February 2005

Number of Shareholders
There were 72,267 shareholders. All issued shares carry voting rights on a one for one basis.

Distribution of Shareholding
Size of
Shareholding

Number of
Shareholders

% of Holders

1–1,000

43,968

60.84

23,941,784

3.60

1,001–5,000

24,042

33.27

54,173,446

8.13

5,001–10,000

2,687

3.72

19,609,609

2.94

10,001–100,000

1,443

2.0

33,093,607

4.96

127

0.17

535,848,221

80.37

72,267

100

666,666,667

100

100,001 and over
Total

Number of
Shares

% of Shares

Unmarketable Parcels
There were 335 members holding less than a marketable parcel of shares in the company.

Listing
The company’s shares are quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange.

Twenty Largest Shareholders
Shares Held

% of Issued Capital

Shell Energy Holdings Australia Limited

228,456,275

34.27

Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited

56,094,334

8.41

National Nominees Limited

55,937,608

8.39

JP Morgan Nominees Australia

54,947,103

8.24

ANZ Nominees Limited

32,514,305

4.88

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

17,779,669

2.67

Queensland Investment Corporation

11,105,197

1.67

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited

7,552,611

1.13

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited

6,405,827

0.96

AMP Life Limited

5,377,705

0.81

IOOF Investment Management Limited

3,814,928

0.57

ANZ Nominees Pty Limited

2,608,350

0.39

Citigroup Nominees Pty Limited (CFS WSLE Imputation Fund Account)

2,602,744

0.39

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited (SMP Accounts)

2,264,960

0.34

RBG Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited (BKCUST Account)

2,264,037

0.34

IAG Nominees Pty Limited

2,173,957

0.33

Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited

2,150,000

0.32

UBS Private Clients Australia Nominees Pty Ltd

2,052,825

0.31

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited (CFS WSLE Geared SHR Fund Account)

2,047,236

0.31

Westpac Financial Services Limited

1,766,849

0.27

499,916,520

75.00

Total

Substantial shareholders as disclosed in substantial shareholder notices given to the company are as follows:
Shell Energy Holdings Australia Limited

228,456,275

34.27
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Ten-Year Comparative Data Summary
Year Ended 31 December

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

1997

1996

1995

Sales Revenues
LNG/Domgas
Condensate
LPG
NWS Oil
Laminaria
Legendre Oil
Total

729
499
94
303
276
217
2,119

708
415
57
287
348
204
2,019

666
398
59
296
565
208
2,192

705
349
60
295
817
119
2,345

620
366
72
317
979
2,354

554
256
41
47
91
989

550
268
20
109
947

501
240
26
103
870

467
165
12
93
737

451
151
1
6
609

EBITDAX Before Significant Items1
EBITDA After Significant Items2
EBIT After Significant Items2
Exploration After Significant Items2
Depreciation & Amortisation
Borrowing Costs/Interest Received/Receivable
Tax After Significant Items2
NPAT Before Significant Items3
NPAT After Significant Items2
EPS (cents) Before Significant Items3
EPS (cents) After Significant Items2
DPS (cents)4
Payout ratio (%) After Significant Items2
EBITDA/Op Cash Flow (%)

1,526
1,780
1,504
256
277
21
399
651
1,084
97.6
162.5
59
36.3
135.1

1,386
1,090
854
296
236
26
301
527
527
79.0
79.0
46
58.2
90.6

1,382
404
114
978
290
46
160
658
(92)
98.6
(13.8)
62
(449.3)
33.5

1,779
1,683
1,331
96
352
70
351
818
910
122.7
136.5
70
51.3
151.8

1,937
1,908
1,510
29
398
102
441
877
967
131.6
145.0
82
56.6
127.8

605
587
443
18
144
59
53
327
331
49.1
49.7
26
52.3
105.7

691
676
523
16
153
52
170
300
300
45.0
45.0
23
51.1
171.6

667
661
510
6
151
76
159
275
275
41.2
41.2
20
48.5
130.9

560
554
384
6
170
76
117
196
191
29.4
28.6
16
55.9
107.6

450
447
309
3
138
104
85
141
121
21.1
18.1
12
66.4
134.8

266
763
5,570
1,028
296
3,170

305
516
4,782
1,068
891
2,434

232
482
5,011
1,429
1,274
2,320

278
511
6,115
1,662
1,502
2,554

243
245
5,969
1,415
1,140
2,111

148
288
4,721
1,835
1,691
1,691

216
554
4,403
1,583
1,466
1,533

76
282
3,435
1,081
1,005
1,387

43
62
3,016
1,007
876
1,245

48
106
3,157
1,411
1,263
1,161

1,318
(432)
(347)

1,203
(741)
(419)

1,207
(730)
(484)

1,108
(811)
(418)

1,493
(428)
(948)

555
(717)
212

394
(637)
265

505
(325)
(258)

515
(113)
(412)

332
(161)
(203)

17.3
28.5
23.8

14.9
14.9
21.7

16.5
(1.5)
28.4

22.4
24.8
32.0

26.8
30.7
41.5

11.0
12.4
19.4

11.9
12.7
19.6

13.7
13.7
19.8

10.1
10.5
15.7

8.0
8.8
12.1

34.2

21.7

(4.0)

35.6

45.8

19.6

19.6

19.8

15.3

10.4

8.5

26.8

35.5

37.0

35.1

50.0

48.9

42.0

41.3

52.1

Profit and Loss ($m)

Balance Sheet ($m)
Capital Expenditure
Exploration
PP&E and E&D
Total Assets
Debt
Net Debt
Shareholder Equity

Cash Flow ($m)
Cash Flow From
Operations
Investing
Financing

Ratios (%)
ROACE - Before Significant Items3
ROACE - After Significant Items
Return on Shareholders’ Funds
Before Significant Items3
Return on Shareholders’ Funds
After Significant Items
Gearing

Volumes
Sales

LNG (Tonnes)
Domgas (Tj)
Condensate (bbl)
NWS Oil (bbl)
Laminaria (bbl)
Legendre (bbl)
LPG (Tonnes)
Ohanet Condensate (bbls)
Total boe 000’s6

1,492,705 1,340,269 1,248,444 1,249,969 1,265,168
101,192
110,230
97,455
97,820
88,572
8,636,556 9,708,503 9,740,893 8,970,219 8,759,449
5,628,916 6,447,015 7,124,958 7,164,489 7,381,405
5,391,077 8,537,260 14,408,915 20,953,851 25,410,972
3,854,907 4,797,926 5,132,164 2,844,026
183,301
134,680
127,372
131,726
127,631
677,870
125,554
55,500
60,640
62,702
66,391
64,726

1,271,100 1,242,599
90,155
86,576
8,803,565 10,823,889
1,914,704 4,198,358
2,640,596
137,439
100,897

1,548,143
101,192
8,657,260
5,622,862
5,159,050
4,167,357
178,234
677,870
56,154

1,291,740 1,285,232
90,155
86,576
9,130,320 10,159,324
2,281,375 3,955,874
2,657,409
107,978
111,952

39,140

39,634

1,216,444 1,219,115 1,203,000
78,181
74,192
70,965
9,080,221 6,730,571 6,434,000
3,748,847 3,934,938
88,704
51,633
35,941

33,113

29,059

Production
LNG (Tonnes)
Domgas (Tj)
Condensate (bbl)
NWS Oil (bbl)
Laminaria (bbl)
Legendre (bbl)
LPG (Tonnes)
Ohanet Condensate (bbls)
Total boe 000’s6

1,355,207 1,272,685 1,291,703 1,279,944
110,230
97,455
97,820
88,572
9,873,712 9,950,809 8,741,254 8,935,707
6,550,742 7,291,095 7,147,796 7,068,042
8,439,050 15,164,362 20,613,879 25,591,993
4,619,770 5,209,508 2,975,846
134,481
135,188
133,937
133,655
125,554
60,655
64,210
66,322
64,988

1,255,290 1,252,949 1,242,959
78,181
74,192
70,873
9,182,002 7,199,067 5,801,076
3,648,807 4,316,060 260,105
92,100
56,199
6,660

39,735

39,270

36,312

34,232

28,098

Reserves (Probable)
Gas (Tcf)
Condensate (MMbbl)
Oil (MMbbl)

Other
Employees
Shares High ($)
Low ($)
Close ($)
Number (000’s)

No. Shareholders
Market Capitalisation ($m)
Finding Costs (A$/boe) (3-year average)5
Effective Tax Rate (%)
Net Debt/ Total Cap (%)
1
2
3
4
5
6
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5.11
138
259

4.65
145.7
341.5

4.84
154.9
300.1

4.54
154.6
263.6

4.60
149.4
236.4

4.72
159.2
146.1

4.63
158.9
137.3

4.68
161.2
113.9

4.46
164.1
123.5

3.12
142.0
45.9

2,528
21.48
14.11
20.10
666,666

2,219
15.10
10.00
14.80
666,666
69,491
9,867
2.06
36.4
9.0

2,418
15.05
11.50
12.38
666,666
67,523
8,253
1.37
235.8
15.4

2,420
16.42
12.29
13.39
666,666
55,347
8,927
1.23
27.9
16.8

2,198
15.25
9.30
14.75
666,666
42,135
9,833
0.61
31.3
11.6

2,141
12.25
7.10
11.25
666,666
43,201
7,500
0.52
13.8
22.6

2,365
10.86
6.80
7.30
666,666
43,898
4,867
0.73
36.2
30.1

1,661
13.36
8.66
10.82
666,666
34,526
7,213
0.42
36.6
13.9

1,332
9.19
6.61
9.19
666,666
30,669
6,127
0.42
38.1
14.3

1,054
7.20
4.60
6.86
666,666
27,885
4,587
n/a
41.2
27.5

72,267

13,400
2.10
26.9
2.2

Excludes Significant Items other than 2002 Successful Efforts and 2001 Gulf of Mexico E&E write off.
Includes Significant Items.
Excludes Significant Items (2002 results restated to reflect effect of Successful Efforts approach from January 2002).
DPS for 2004 includes a 32.0 cents dividend that was declared after 31 December 2004.
Finding Cost for 2003 includes acquisitions of additional Scope for Recovery volumes.
From 2003, Woodside reports oil and condensate on volumetric basis.

Key Announcements
Key announcements made by Woodside during 2004 are listed below. All announcements are listed on the
company’s website at www.woodside.com.au
January
5
6
22

Woodside farm-in Sierra Leone acreage
Chinguetti discovery declared commercial
NWS Venture and Chubu Electric LNG sales and purchase agreement signed

February
2
2
17

Woodside concludes Mauritania transaction
First gas in second NWS Venture trunkline
Voelte named as new MD and CEO, Spence as COO

March
4
19
31

NWS Venture and Western Power Corporation signed gas sales and purchase agreement
Woodside approves Enfield oil development
Woodside sells 40% interest in Enfield oil project

April
15
27

Woodside and TXU sign gas sales agreement
New LNG ship maiden voyage

May
20
31

Otway gas project approved
Chinguetti oil project approved

July
2
5
28
28

NWS Venture LNG Train 4 start-up
Major Mauritanian drilling campaign approved
15 years of NWS Venture LNG production
NWS Venture and Kansai Electric signed LNG sales and purchase agreement

August
23

20 years of NWS gas to Western Australia

September
10

Mauritanian drilling campaign starts

October
28

Woodside backs Crystal Energy’s US LNG terminal

November
5
16

Woodside and Alcan sign gas sales agreement
Mauritanian Government backs-in to Chinguetti oil field

December
13
20

Guangdong, China LNG agreement finalised
CNOOC equity agreement finalised

Full announcements available at

www.woodside.com.au
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Shareholder
Information
Annual General Meeting
The 34th Annual General Meeting will be
held at 10am (AWST) on Tuesday, 19
April 2005 at the Auditorium, Perth
Convention Exhibition Centre, 21
Mounts Bay Road, Perth, Western
Australia. Full details of the meeting are
contained in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting sent with this Report.

Stock Exchange Listing
Woodside Petroleum Ltd. securities are
listed on the Australian Stock Exchange
(ASX) under the Code “WPL”.

American Depository Receipts
The Bank of New York sponsors a Level
One American Depository Receipts
(ADR) program in the United States of
America. One Woodside share equals
one ADR and trades over the counter
under the symbol “WOPEY”.
ADR holders should deal directly with
the Bank of New York on all matters
relating to their ADRs. Enquiries should
be directed to:
The Bank of New York
ADR Division
101 Barclay Street
22nd Floor West
New York NY 10286
USA Toll Free
Number: 1-888-BNY-ADRS
Website:www.adrbny.com

Dividends
The company usually pays an interim
dividend in September and a final
dividend in March of each year. The
2004 final dividend will be paid on
23 March 2005. The record date for the
2004 final dividend is 3 March 2005.
The history of dividends paid by the
company can be found on the Woodside
website under the share information
page in the Investor section. The
following options are available regarding
payment of dividends:
i. By cheque payable to the
shareholder. Lost or stolen cheques
should be reported immediately to
Computershare, in writing; or
ii. By electronic funds transfer to an
Australian bank, building society or
credit union account.
Electronic payments are credited on the
dividend payment date and confirmed
by a payment advice sent to the
shareholder. Request forms for this
service are available from
Computershare.
Shareholders with a registered United
Kingdom (UK) address will receive a UK
currency cheque.

Share Registry

Change of Address

All shareholding related enquiries should
be directed to the company’s registry Computershare Investor Services Pty.
Limited (Computershare) - at the
following contact points:

It is very important that shareholders
notify Computershare immediately, in
writing, of any change to their registered
address.

Computershare Investor
Services Pty. Limited
GPO Box D182
Perth Western Australia 6840
E-mail:
web.queries@computershare.com.au
Telephone:
(61) 3 9415 5000 (outside Australia)
1300 557 010 (within Australia)
Facsimile: (61) 8 9323 2033
All written enquiries should include your
Holder Identification Number (HIN) or
Securityholder Reference Number (SRN)
as it appears on your Holding Statement
along with your current address.
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The Woodside website at
www.woodside.com.au allows access
to general registry information on
Woodside and most frequently
requested forms. Visitors to the website
can obtain share price and related
graphical information.

Change of Name
Shareholders should notify
Computershare, in writing, and attach a
certified copy of a relevant marriage
certificate or deed poll.

Tax File Numbers (TFN)
Although it is not compulsory for each
shareholder to provide a TFN or
exemption details, for those
shareholders who choose not to, the
company will be obliged to deduct tax
from any unfranked portion of their
dividends at the top marginal rate.

TFN notification forms can be
downloaded from the Woodside website
or obtained from Computershare, any
Australia Post office or the Australian
Taxation Office.

Woodside Publications
Concise Annual Report and Half
Yearly Report
The Concise Annual Report is mailed to
shareholders in March. Shareholders
also receive a half-year report in
September.

Optional Full Financial Report
The company produces a Full Financial
Report for shareholders who wish to
receive the full financial statements and
notes for the year. This report is
provided to shareholders at no cost.
Shareholders wanting to receive the Full
Financial Report are requested to notify
Computershare. The report is available in
printed form or electronically from the
company’s website.

Shareholders who do not want to
receive a Report
Shareholders who have previously
notified Computershare that they do not
want to receive the annual report will
not be sent either the Concise Annual
Report or the Full Financial Report
unless they notify Computershare
otherwise. Shareholders currently in
receipt of the Concise Annual Report,
but who no longer wish to receive any
reports, including the company’s
half-year report, can also notify
Computershare.

Information about Woodside
Further information about the company
can be obtained from the company’s
website at www.woodside.com.au
Requests for specific information on the
company can be directed to the
Company Secretary at the following
address:
Woodside Plaza
240 St Georges Terrace
Perth Western Australia 6000
Telephone: (61) 8 9348 4000
Facsimile: (61) 8 9348 2777
E-mail: investor@woodside.com.au

Glossary
appraisal well

a well drilled to follow up a discovery and evaluate its commercial potential

bbl, bbl/d

barrels, barrels per day

boe

barrels of oil equivalent

condensate

hydrocarbons, which are gaseous in a reservoir, but which condense to form a liquid
as they rise to the surface

development well

a well drilled specifically into a previously discovered field

EPSA

exploration and production sharing agreement

finding cost

cost of finding a barrel of oil

FPSO

a floating production storage and offloading facility

HSE

health, safety and environment

hydrocarbons

compounds containing only the elements hydrogen and carbon, they may exist as solids,
liquids or gases

joint venture

a group of companies who share the cost and rewards of exploring for and producing oil or
gas from a Permit or Licence

kms, km2

kilometres, square kilometres

licence

area of specified size, which is licensed to a company by the government for production of oil and gas

LNG

liquefied natural gas

LPG

liquefied petroleum gas

MMbbl

million barrels

MMboe

million barrels of oil equivalent

Mt, Mt/a

million tonnes, million tonnes per annum

NWS, NWS Venture

North West Shelf, North West Shelf Venture

operator

a company which organises the exploration and production programs in a permit or
licence on behalf of all the interest holders in the permit or licence

permit

area of specified size, which is licensed to a company by the government for exploration of oil and gas

PJ, PJ/a

petajoules, petajoules per annum

proved/probable reserves

refer to definitions on page 24 of the report

PSC

Production Sharing Contract

reserves replacement ratio

refer to definitions on page 24 of the report

contingent resource

refer to definitions on page 24 of the report

t, t/d

tonnes, tonnes per day

Tcf

trillion (1012) cubic feet

TJ/, TJ/d

Terajoules, terajoules per day

2-D, 3-D

two-dimensional, three-dimensional

$, $m

Australian dollars unless otherwise stated, millions of dollars

Conversion Factors
To align with generally accepted industry practice, Woodside now reports condensate and oil on a volumetric basis
(1 boe = 1 barrel of oil equivalent) instead of a calorific (heating) basis.
The 2003 boe comparatives have been recalculated using the revised method.
Conversion Factors*

Factors

2004

Previously reported
2003

Domestic Gas

1TJ

=

163.6 boe

163.6 boe

Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG)

1 tonne

=

8.9055 boe

8.9055 boe

NWS Condensate

1 bbl

=

1.000 boe

0.9031 boe

Cossack Oil

1 bbl

=

1.000 boe

0.9750 boe

NWS Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)

1 tonne

=

8.1876 boe

8.1876 boe

Laminaria Oil

1 bbl

=

1.000 boe

0.9115 boe

Legendre Oil

1 bbl

=

1.000 boe

0.9718 boe

Ohanet Condensate

1 bbl

=

1.000 boe

N/A

Ohanet Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)

1 tonne

=

8.1876 boe

N/A

* minor changes to some conversion factors can occur over time due to gradual changes in the process stream.
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Shareholder Information
For detailed shareholder information, please
refer to page 70 of this report.
Key shareholder contact points are:
Woodside Petroleum Ltd.
Woodside Plaza
240 St Georges Terrace
Perth Western Australia 6000
Telephone: (+61) 8 9348 4000
Facsimile: (+61) 8 9214 2777
Website: www.woodside.com.au
Company Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services Pty. Limited
GPO Box D182
Perth Western Australia 6840
Telephone:
(+61) 3 9415 5000 (outside Australia)
1300 557 010 (within Australia)
Facsimile: (+61) 8 9323 2033
Email: web.queries@computershare.com.au
Website: www.computershare.com

Business Directory
Woodside Petroleum Ltd.
240 St Georges Terrace
Perth WA 6000
Telephone: (61) 8 9348 4000
Facsimile: (61) 8 9241 2777

Annual General Meeting
The 34th Annual General Meeting of Woodside
Petroleum Ltd. will be held at the Perth
Convention Exhibition Centre, 21 Mounts Bay
Road, Perth, Western Australia on Tuesday, 19
April 2005 at 10am (AWST)

Mail Address
GPO D188
Perth WA 6840
www.woodside.com.au

Australia
Darwin
NT House
Level 8
22 Mitchell Street
Darwin NT 0800
Telephone: (61) 8 8980 2700
Facsimile: (61) 8 8980 2710
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2004 Health, Safety and Environment Report

International

Karratha
Burrup Peninsula
Karratha WA 6714
Telephone: (61) 8 9348 4000
Facsimile: (61) 8 9158 8000

Houston
Woodside Energy (USA) Inc.
Sage Plaza
5151 San Felipe, 12th Floor
Houston Texas 77056 USA
Telephone: (1) 713 963 8490
Facsimile: (1) 713 969 8868

Melbourne
Level 9
313 La Trobe Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
Telephone: (61) 3 9252 2000
Facsimile: (61) 3 9252 2099

London
Woodside Energy (UK) Ltd
4th Floor, 7 Albemarle Street
London WIS 4HQ UK
Telephone: (44) 20 7514 5560
Facsimile: (44) 20 7629 9096

Woodside will publish its inaugural Health, Safety
and Environment (HSE) Report in April 2005,
detailing its achievements and challenges for
2004. This report will be available on request or
from the company’s website
(www.woodside.com.au).

F

NWS Venture’s ninth LNG carrier, the Northwest Swan set sail on its maiden voyage in April 2005

Shareholder 2005
EVENTS CALENDAR
Key calendar dates for Woodside shareholders in 2005. Please note, dates subject to change.

January
19

Fourth Quarter 2004 Report

February
16
25

2004 Full Year Result and final dividend announcement
Ex-dividend date

March
3
18

23

Dividend record date
2004 Concise Annual Report & Full Financial Reports available
Notice of 2005 Annual General Meeting and Proxy Form
mailed to shareholders
Final dividend payment

17
18
19

Proxy returns close at 10.00am (AWST)
First Quarter 2005 Report
2005 Annual General Meeting

30

Woodside financial half-year end

20

Second Quarter 2005 Report

April

June

July

August
17
29
September
2
23

2005 Half Year Result and interim dividend announcement
Ex-dividend date

Dividend record date
Interim dividend payment
2005 Half Year Report available

October
19

Third Quarter 2005 Report

December
31

Woodside financial year end
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